
 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, August 19, 2021 

RDOS Boardroom – 101 Martin Street, Penticton 
 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 
 

 
 

9:00 am - 9:45 am  Planning and Development Services Committee 
 

9:45 am - 11:15 am  Protective Services Committee 
 

11:15 am - 11:30 am  Break 
 

11:30 am - 12:15 pm  Corporate Services Committee 
 

12:15 pm - 1:15 pm  Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
 

1:15 pm - 1:45 pm  Lunch 
 

1:45 pm - 2:00 pm  OSRHD Board of Directors 

     

2:00 pm - 3:30 pm  RDOS Board of Directors 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2021 Notice of Meetings 

September 2  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

September 23  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

October 7  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

October 21  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

November 4  
RDOS Board 

Inaugural 
OSRHD Board 

Inaugural 
 

 

“Karla Kozakevich” 

Karla Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Planning and Development Committee 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 
9:00 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Planning and Development Committee Meeting of August 19, 2021 be 
adopted. 

 
 

B. ZONING REVIEW – FAULDER WATER SYSTEM SERVICE AREA (ELECTORAL AREA F) 
1. Bylaw No. 2790.03 (draft) 
2. Bylaw No. 2461.19 (draft) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2  
THAT the Regional District commence a review of the Area “F” Official Community Plan and Zoning 
Bylaw for the purposes of protecting the aquifer which serves the Faulder Water System and those 
who have wells on the Meadow Valley Aquifer. 

 
 

C. STREET LIGHTING POLICIES AND REGULATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3  
THAT the Regional District commence consultation on moving street lighting into the Official 
Community Plans and removing them from the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw. 

 
 

D. MOBILE HOME REGULATIONS IN THE ELECTORAL AREA ZONING BYLAWS 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4  
THAT the resolution passed by he Board of Variance (BoV) at its meeting of April 6, 2021, requesting a 
review of zoning regulations governing the placement of mobile homes in the ALR be respectfully 
denied. 

 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 



  

                                                         File No: F2021.011-ZONE 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

TO: Planning & Development Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Zoning Review – Faulder Water System Service Area (Electoral Area “F”) 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT THE Regional District commence a review of the Area “F” Official Community Plan and 
Zoning Bylaw for the purposes of protecting the aquifer which serves the Faulder Water System 
and those who have wells on the Meadow Valley Aquifer. 

Purpose: 
To strengthen the policies and regulations governing subdivision and land use in the Faulder Water 
System Service Area and Meadow Valley Aquifer. 
 
References: 
• Faulder Water Supply Capacity Review – Technical Memorandum, Associated Engineering, April 

2008. 
• Groundwater Provenance and Water Level Assessment, Faulder, British Columbia, Golder 

Associates, August 2008. 
• Groundwater Development in the Meadow Valley Aquifer, District of Summerland, British 

Columbia, Golder Associates, November 2013. 
• Faulder Well Aquifer Assessment and Water Supply Options Evaluation, Golder Associates, 

December 2013. 
• Water Conservation Plan – Faulder Water System, Ecora, February 2016. 
• Faulder Water System Well Protection Planning Report, Ecora, February 2016. 

 
Background: 
The Faulder Water System relies on groundwater from the Meadow Valley Aquifer for water supply 
and, in 2015, a new community well was drilled to address depleting water levels and to add a 
Uranium Extraction Plant to supply domestic water to an estimated 215 residents.  Other properties 
outside the Faulder Water System area also use the Meadow Valley Aquifer. 

Water levels in the acquifer are again depleting and further study is required to determine how 
growth in the area will affect the greater Meadow Valley Aquifer.  The acquifer seems to be subject to 
irregular recharge rates. 



  

                                                         File No: F2021.011-ZONE 
Page 2 of 4 

A 1996 review of the Faulder water system completed by Stantec concluded that “the water system 
was designed to supply a maximum of 80 lots … [and that] prior to exceeding the original 80 lots, we 
would recommend a review of the actual demands be completed.” 

In 2008, the Faulder water system lost its supply of water due to drought conditions and water was 
trucked into the community.  In 2015, the new deeper well was drilled, yet water quantity remains a 
concern. 

When the Electoral Area “F” OCP Bylaw was reviewed between 2016-18, this situation was captured 
in a number of statements and policies that speak to water supply and quality concerns in the Faulder 
community.   

Since 2020, the Regional District has received a number of development proposals involving 
properties within or immediately adjacent to the Faulder Water Service Area, including: 

** 3-lot subdivision of 8025 Princeton-Summerland Road (in Water Service Area); 

** 2-lot subdivision and rezoning of 8151 Princeton-Summerland Road (in Water Service Area); 

** 2-lot subdivision of 8064 Princeton-Summerland Road (in Water Service Area);  

• 2-lot subdivision* of 8208 Princeton-Summerland Road (adjacent Water Service Area); and 

• a Petition to enter the Water Service Area for District Lot 2893, ODYD, Portion EX PT S & W PL 
A67, Except Plan A67 27332, which is 11.2 ha in area (adjacent Water Service Area). 

* rezoning required 
** Those properties within the the Water System Service are required to pay the tax to maintain 

the system; and, if subdivision was approved, any new lots would also be required to pay, even 
if not granted access to the system.  Further, if new lots were compliant with zoning, they would 
have the option to drill their own well to meet the water requirements of subdivision. 

Since 2014, the Regional District has also received a number of rezoning proposals to facilitate the 
subdivision of properties within the broader Meadow Valley Aquifer, including: 

• 464 Fish Lake Road (rezoning refused in 2014 to allow a 3-lot subdivision); 

• 66 Deans Road (rezoning approved in 2016 to allow a 2-lot subdivision); 

• 633 Meadow Valley Road (rezoning refused in 2017 to allow a 2-lot subdivision); 

• 15 Deans Road (rezoning approved in 2018 to allow a 2-lot subdivision); and 

• 8475 Princeton-Summerland Road (active rezoning proposal to allow a 3-lot subdivision). 

For reference purposes, the location of these properties vis-à-vis the Faulder Community Water 
Service Area is shown at Attachment No. 1. 

At its meeting of May 6, 2021, the Regional District Board deferred consideration of 3rd reading of 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.15, 2021, and directed that a second public information meeting (PIM) 
be scheduled.  This was seen to be a result of water concerns raised by residents in Faulder as part of 
the public hearing process for the rezoning of 8475 Princeton-Summerland Road. 
 
 



  

                                                         File No: F2021.011-ZONE 
Page 3 of 4 

Analysis: 
While there are a number of background statements within the Electoral Area “F” OCP Bylaw 
speaking to concerns regarding the availability of water in the Faulder community, the current policy 
statements within the Plan may not accurately reflect these. 

The strongest statement in the bylaw against further growth and development in the Faulder 
Community Water Service Area is a somewhat generic statement that “the Board “discourages 
subdivision of properties in order to maintain the rural character of the [Faulder] area” [emphasis 
added].  “Rural character” is an imprecise term that could relate to any number of characteristics, 
with water being only one of many potential considerations. 

Further, the zoning that applies to the Faulder community contemplates the potential subdivision of a 
number of parcels and also allows for uses and density that may be inconsistent with these water 
concerns (i.e. allowing agriculture and accessory dwellings). 

In light of this, as well as the direction provided by the Board at its meeting of May 6, 2021 to 
undertake additional community engagement on the rezoning of 8475 Princeton-Summerland Road 
and the recent volume of applications received to facilitate development within and around the 
Faulder Community Water System, it would appear to be an opportune time to review existing 
policies and zoning regulations. 

The introduction of stronger OCP policy statements that speak to not supporting further subdivision 
within or expansion of the Faulder Water System Service Area and to discourage the rezoning of 
parcels within the broader Meadow Valley Aquifer to facilitate subdivision may be beneficial. 

Consideration could also be given to introduce new zoning to be applied to all properties within the 
Faulder Water System Service Area in order to restrict further subdivision, density (i.e. accessory 
dwellings) and water-intensive uses (i.e. agriculture). 

For reference purposes, annotated versions of amendment bylaws that would introduce such policies 
and zoning regulations are attached to this report. 

Consultation with the Faulder community in conjunction with the consultation associated with the 
current rezonings in the area would be beneficial, but eventually OCP and Zoning Bylaw amendments 
would be required. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021, and 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021, be deferred; or 

2. THAT the Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021, and 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021, not be initiated. 

 
Respectfully submitted:   

_____________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 



  

                                                         File No: F2021.011-ZONE 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Attachment No. 1 – Development Proposals in Meadow Valley / Faulder Area (2014-present) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

633 Meadow Valley Road 
(Rezoning to facilitate a 2-lot 
subdivision refused in 2017) 

464 Fish Lake Road 
(Rezoning to facilitate a 3-lot 
subdivision refused in 2014) 

66 Deans Road 
(Rezoning to facilitate a 2-lot 

subdivision approved in 2016) 

15 Deans Road 
(Rezoning to facilitate a 2-lot 

subdivision approved in 2018) 

8475 Princeton-Summerland Road 
(Active rezoning to facilitate a 3-lot subdivision) 

Faulder Community 
Water Service Area 

(BLUE SHADED AREA) 

8208 Princeton-Summerland Road 
(Active 2-lot subdivision – rezoning required) 

8151 Princeton-Summerland Road 
(Active rezoning to facilitate a 2-lot subdivision) 

Part of District Lot 2893, ODYD 
(Active request to enter Faulder Water Service Area) 

8025 Princeton-Summerland Road 
(3-lot subdivision completed in 2021 – rezoning not required) 

8064 Princeton-Summerland Road 
(Active rezoning to facilitate a 2-lot subdivision) 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION – 2021-08-19  Page 1 of 3 

 _________________ 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2790.03  
 _________________ 
 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2790.03, 2021 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “F”  
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2790, 2018 

         

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021.” 

 
2. The Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2790, 2018, is amended by: 

i) replacing Section 7.3.1.3 (Policies) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow Valley Local 
Area Policies) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Does not support the subdivision of parcels within the Faulder Community Water 
System Local Service Area. 

 
ii) adding a new Section 7.3.1.4 (Policies) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow Valley Local 

Area Policies) to read as follows and re-numbering all subsequent sections: 

.4 Does not support the expansion of the Faulder Community Water System Local 
Service Area. 

 
iii) adding a new Section 7.3.1.5 (Policies) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow Valley Local 

Area Policies) to read as follows and re-numbering all subsequent sections: 

.5 Supports the professional decommissioning of all private water wells within the 
Faulder Community Water System Local Service Area in order to protect the local 
aquifer and prevent contamination. 

 
iv) adding a new Section 7.3.1.6 (Policies) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow Valley Local 

Area Policies) to read as follows and re-numbering all subsequent sections: 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION – 2021-08-19  Page 2 of 3 

.6 Discourages the rezoning of parcels in order to facilitate subdivision, particularly 
within the Meadow Valley Aquifer in order to maintain the rural character of the 
area and preserve existing water resources. 

 
v) adding a new Section 7.3.1.7 (Policies) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow Valley Local 

Area Policies) to read as follows and re-numbering all subsequent sections: 

.7 Supports an Aquifer Vulnerability Assessment being completed for the Meadow 
Valley and Enesas Creek Aquifers to develop aquifer vulnerability mapping and to 
inform future land use policy and decision making. 

 
vi) adding a new Figure 7.3.1 (Meadow Valley Aquifer) under Section 7.3 (Faulder / Meadow 

Valley Local Area Policies) to present as follows: 

 
Figure 7.3.1: Meadow Valley Aquifer  

 
vii) replacing the first three (3) sentences of the second paragraph under Section 19.4 

(Water Supply and Distribution) in its entirety with the following: 

NN

Meadow Valley 
Aquifer 

(BLUE SHADED AREA) 

FAULDER 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION – 2021-08-19  Page 3 of 3 

The Faulder system, which is currently is at capacity, was upgraded with a new well and 
uranium treatment and made operational in early 2017, bringing one of the two 
uranium removal canisters online. 

 
viii) replacing Section 19.4.2.1 (Policies) under Section 19.4 (Water Supply and Distribution) 

in its entirety with the following: 

.1  deleted. 
 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
ADOPTED this this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
_______________________        ______________________  
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 1 of 7 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2461.19 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2461.19, 2021 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008 
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “F” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021.” 

 
2. The “Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding  a new reference to “Faulder Small Holdings Zone SH7 under “Rural Zones” at 
Section 5.1 (Zoning Districts). 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 10.10 (Faulder Small Holdings (SH7) Zone) under Section 

10.0 (Rural) to read as follows: 

10.10 FAULDER SMALL HOLDINGS ZONE (SH7) 
10.10.1 Permitted Uses: 

Principal Uses:  

a) single detached dwelling;  

Accessory Uses:  

b) bed and breakfast operation, subject to Section 7.19;  

c) home occupation, subject to Section 7.17; and 

d) accessory building and structure, subject to Section 7.13.  
 

10.10.2 Site Specific Faulder Small Holdings (SH7s) Provisions: 

a) see Section 17.25 

Commented [CG1]: Proposed to delete allowance for agriculture 
and accessory dwellings as permitted uses. 
Secondary Suites are not currently permitted. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 2 of 7 
 

 

10.10.3 Minimum Parcel Size for Subdivision: 

a) 5.0 ha 
 

10.10.4 Minimum Parcel Width:  

a) Not less than 25% of the parcel depth. 
 

10.10.5 Maximum Number of Dwellings Permitted Per Parcel: 

a) one (1) principal dwelling unit. 
 

10.10.6 Minimum Setbacks: 

a) Buildings and structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 7.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 7.5 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 7.5 metres 

b) Accessory buildings and structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 4.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 

c) Despite Section 10.10.6(a) & (b), livestock shelters, generator sheds, 
boilers or walls with fans, and on-farm soil-less medium production 
facilities: 

i) Front parcel line: 15.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 15.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 15.0 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 15.0 metres 

d) Despite Section 10.10.6(a) & (b), incinerator or compost facility: 

i) Front parcel line: 30.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 30.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 30.0 metres 

Commented [CG2]: Proposed minimum parcel size of 5.0 ha for 
subdivision would preclude subdivision within the Faulder Water 
Service Area. 

Commented [CG3]: Proposed to delete allowance for agriculture 
and accessory dwellings as permitted uses. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 3 of 7 
 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 30.0 metres 
  

10.10.7 Maximum Height:  

a)  No building or structure shall exceed a height of 10.0 metres. 
 

10.10.8 Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 20% 
 

10.10.9Minimum Building Width: 

a) Dwelling Unit: 5.0 metres, as originally designed and constructed. 
 
 

iii) replacing Section 17.5.2 (Site Specific Small Holdings Two (SH2s) Provisions) under 
Section 17.0 (Site Specific Designations) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 deleted. 
 

iv) replacing Section 17.7.1 (Site Specific Small Holdings Four (SH4s) Provisions) under 
Section 17.0 (Site Specific Designations) in its entirety with the following: 

.1 deleted. 
 

v) adding a new Section 17.25 (Site Specific Faulder Small Holdings (SH7s) Provisions) 
under Section 17.0 (Site Specific Designations) to read as follows: 

17.25 Site Specific Faulder Small Holdings (SH7s) Provisions: 

.1 in the case an approximately 3.3 ha part of the land described as Lot 
10, Plan 27332, District Lot 2893, ODYD, Except Plan KAP51912 (8025 
Princeton-Summerland Road), and shown shaded yellow on Figure 
17.25.1: 

i)   despite Section 7.18.2, the maximum floor area utilized for a home 
industry,  including the indoor and outdoor storage of materials, 
commodities or finished products associated with the home industry 
shall not exceed 300.0 m2. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

.2 in the case of land described as Lot 3, Plan KAP51211, District Lot 2893, 
ODYD (8132 Princeton-Summerland Road), and shown hatched on 
Figure 17.25.2: 

i) the following accessory uses shall be permitted on the land in 
addition to the permitted uses listed in Section 10.10.1: 

a) eating and drinking establishment; and 

b) retail store, convenience. 
 
 

Figure 17.25.1 

Faulder Small Holdings 
Site Specific (SH7s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 
 

3. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 
2008, is amended by changing the land use designation of the land shown: 

i) shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Small Holdings 
Three (SH3) to Faulder Small Holdings (SH7); 

ii) shaded orange on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Small Holdings 
Two Site Specific (SH2s) to Faulder Small Holdings Site Specific (SH7s); 

iii) shaded blue on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Small Holdings Four 
Site Specific (SH4s) to Faulder Small Holdings Site Specific (SH7s); and 

iv) shaded purple on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Small Holdings 
Two (SH2) to Faulder Small Holdings (SH7). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 17.25.2 

NN

Faulder Small Holdings 
Site Specific (SH7s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 6 of 7 
 

 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 
(F2021.011-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2021-08-19  Page 7 of 7 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19, 2021 File No.  F2021.011-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

NN

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008: 
from:  Small Holdings Three (SH3) 
to:  Faulder Small Holdings (SH7) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 
 

Subject 
Parcels 

SUMMERLAND  

NARAMATA  

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008: 
from:  Small Holdings Two Site Specific (SH2s) 
to:  Faulder Small Holdings Site Specific (SH7s) 

(ORANGE SHADED AREA) 
 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008: 
from:  Small Holdings Four Site Specific (SH4s) 
to:  Faulder Small Holdings Site Specific (SH7s) 

(BLUE SHADED AREA) 
 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008: 
from:  Small Holdings Two (SH2) 
to:  Faulder Small Holdings (SH7) 

(PURPLE SHADED AREA) 
 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

 

                                                         File No: X2021.007-SSB 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Planning & Development Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Street Lighting Policies and Regulations 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Regional District commence consultation on moving street lighting into the Official 
Community Plans and removing them from the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw. 

 

Purpose: 
To review the street lighting policies and regulations in the context of Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 
2000, 2002. 
 
Background:  
The Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, currently requires street lighting 
be provided in the following instances: 

• any subdivision of land in a Low Density Residential area creating a parcel less than 2,500 m2 in 
area; 

• any subdivision of land in a Medium Density Residential area; 

• any building permit involving the construction of a building containing three (3) or more dwelling 
units (i.e. an apartment building or townhouse). 

The Bylaw further establishes very detailed design standards that must be complied with when 
required to install street lighting (i.e. minimum levels of illumination, pole locations, underground 
ducting locations, lamp standards, etc.). 

Street lighting requirements were first introduced in 1995 when a new subdivision servicing bylaw 
was prepared for the Regional District by a Kelowna consulting firm and appears to have been based 
upon a template used primarily for municipal clients. 

Existing Service Areas: 

The Regional District currently has 4 Services for street lighting, including: 

• Heritage Hills (Electoral Area “D”) 

• Naramata (Electoral Area “E”)  

• West Bench (Electoral Area “F”)  

• Schneider Road (Electoral Area “G”)  

A general principle of a street lighting service area is that the benefitting properties can extend far 
beyond the physical location of the street lights.  Consequently, a service area can be far more 
extensive than the actual location of the lights. 



       

                                                        File No: X2021.007-SSB 
Page 2 of 3 

At present, FortisBC owns, operates and maintains all street lighting networks within the street 
lighting services administered by the Regional District.  The Regional District is responsible for 
collecting the taxes to operate these lights and has contracts with FortisBC to maintain this 
infrastructure and will report any equipment issues to FortisBC on behalf of the public.   

There are generally two types of street lights within services administered by the Regional District: 

• “Overhead” street lights are typically mounted to a utility pole and are of a design determined 
by FortisBC; 

• “Ornamental” street lights are typically mounted on a metal pole of a non-standard design (i.e. 
unique / “decorative”). 

 
Other Regional Districts: 

A survey of 20 other Regional District indicates that 75% have not included any street lighting 
standards in their respective Subdivision & Development Servicing Bylaw. 

Of those that do include street lighting standards in their Subdivision & Development Servicing Bylaw, 
the RDOS is one of only three (3) regional districts that have incorporated very detailed standards.   

(NOTE: staff at one of these regional district’s advised that their street lighting standards similarly 
came from a consultant’s template prepared for municipal clients and is rarely used). 

The two (2) remaining regional districts surveyed reference the Master Municipal Construction 
Documents (MMCD) Design Guideline Manual for street lighting standards in their respective bylaws. 
 
Analysis: 
The Subdivision Servicing Bylaw is a poor predictor of where street lighting priorities are within an 
Electoral Area and is leading to sub-optimal outcomes.  For instance, the subdivision servicing bylaw 
cannot properly account for situations where: 

• there is no service established, and the creation of such a service may run counter to other Board 
objectives (i.e. focusing services on designated Growth Areas under the RGS); 

• an existing service is administered by a separate entity (i.e. an Irrigation District) that may not 
support the installation of additional street lighting as required by the RDOS; or  

• the location of the street light would be at a location that has not been deemed a priority (i.e. 
schools, parks, community mailboxes, hazardous intersections, etc.).  

Relief from the requirements of the bylaw can only be obtained through an approved development 
variance permit, which is seen to be an un-necessary cost and time delay. 

The current standards within the bylaw have not been updated in over 25 years and may no longer be 
reflective of the design options offered by FortisBC, or modern technologies.   

It would seem that removing street lighting requirements from the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw and 
replacing these with new objectives and policies in the Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) 
Bylaws may be more effective.  

Specifically, the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw could be simplified to support the standards of the 
authority having jurisdiction (i.e. FortisBC), to establish a delegation for an “Approved Products List” 



       

                                                        File No: X2021.007-SSB 
Page 3 of 3 

to be administered by staff and setting out acceptable “ornamental street light” types and to prohibit 
the use of high pressure sodium (HPS) lights. 

To guide street lighting in new or expanded services, priority locations for new street lights and other 
policy objectives (e.g. support for Primary & Rural Growth Areas, “dark skies” or improving energy 
efficiency) a new “Street Lighting” section could be introduced into the Electoral Area OCPs. 

Consultation: 

Due to the proposed amendments involving OCP Bylaws, Administration is proposing consultation 
with the Advisory Planning Commissions (APCs) as well as a broad level public engagement (e.g. 
newspaper advertisements, social media posts, CivicReady notification and material posted to the 
RDOS website) in order to satisfy the “early and ongoing” consultation requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Official Community Plan Street Lighting 
Update Amendment Bylaw No. 2944 and Street Lighting Standards Update Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2000.16 be deferred; or 

2. THAT the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Official Community Plan Street Lighting 
Update Amendment Bylaw No. 2944 and Street Lighting Standards Update Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2000.16 not be initiated. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted:   

______________________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2021/20210819 - Please Use Escribe For Agenda Items/Planning 
& Development/D. Mobile Homes Regulations In The Electoral Area Zoning Bylaws - Administrative Response.Docx File No:
 Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Planning & Development Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Mobile Homes Regulations in the Electoral Area Zoning Bylaws - 

Administrative Response 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the resolution passed by the Board of Variance (BoV) at its meeting of April 6, 2021, requesting a 
review of zoning regulations governing the placement of mobile homes in the ALR be respectfully denied.  
 
Purpose: 

To provide Committee with an overview of resource and work plan implications and to confirm legislative 
and/or legal authority regarding a resolution passed by the Board of Variance requesting a review of zoning 
regulations governing the placement of mobile homes in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of September 15, 2016, Bylaw No. 2743, 2016, which expanded the range of zones in which 
modular homes (CSA A277) and mobile homes (CSA Z240) could be sited was adopted.   

Prior to consideration of this bylaw, the Regional District had historically attempted to exclude mobile homes 
from being placed in certain zones.  A general exception to this approach was the Residential Manufactured 
Home Park (RSM1) Zone. 

In reviewing this issue in 2016, the Board directed that mobile homes (CSA Z240) generally continue to be 
restricted to parcels greater than 4.0 ha in area, and Bylaw No. 2743 reflected this. 

At its meeting of April 6, 2021, the Regional District’s Board of Variance (BoV) considered an application that 
sought to allow for the construction of a deck and external stairs on an existing non-conforming mobile 
home. 

In approving an exemption under Section 531(1) of the Local Government Act to allow for this addition to a 
non-conforming use, the BoV further requested that the Regional District align “zoning rules regarding siting 
structures to those of the ALR regarding parcels under 4 ha.” 

Under Section 32 (Additional Residence) of the Agricultural Land Reserve Use Regulation an additional 
residence is permitted without the need for approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) if that 
residence is a manufactured home that is less than 9.0 metres in width and is used by specified relatives of 
the property owner. 

Importantly, this regulatory provision is only valid until December 31, 2021, after which approval of the ALC 
will be required to place a manufactured home as an accessory dwelling on a property in the ALR. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2021/20210819 - Please Use Escribe For Agenda Items/Planning 
& Development/D. Mobile Homes Regulations In The Electoral Area Zoning Bylaws - Administrative Response.Docx File No:
 Click here to enter text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

At its meeting of June 3, 2021, the Board considered the Board of Variance Minutes from its April 13, 2021, 
meeting and directed that the minutes “be referred to administration to undertake a review of the 
recommendations therein to determine potential impact to current resources and workplans or to confirm 
legislative and/or legal authority.” 
 
Analysis: 

The regulation of dwelling types is generally within the Board’s authority and there are not seen to be any 
legislative or legal issues with reviewing the current regulatory approach. 

Due to the pending removal of the legislative exception for manufactured homes as an accessory dwelling 
type in the ALR on December 31, 2021, and in recognition that the Board recently (2016) completed its own 
review of the zoning regulations governing the placement of manufactured homes, this request would seem 
to be of minimal value. 

Other zoning regulations and land use issues that require attention and that have not been reviewed as 
recently as the zoning regulations for manufactured homes would seem to be of more value.  Undertaking a 
further review of manufactured home zoning requirements will direct staff resources away from these other 
items. 

 
Alternatives: 

1. THAT the resolution passed by the Board of Variance (BoV) at its meeting of April 6, 2021, 
requesting a review of zoning regulations governing vacation rental uses be brought forward 
for consideration as a strategic project for 2022. 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

 
 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Protective Services Committee 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 
9:45 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Protective Services Meeting of August 19, 2021 be adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATION - RCMP 
1. Superintendent Brian Hunter 
2. Sergeant Don Wrigglesworth, Area Detachment Commander for Oliver 
3. Sergeant Jason Bayda, Area Detachment Commander for Osoyoos 
4. Sergeant Rob Hughes, Area Detachment Commander for Princeton 
5. Sergeant Dave Preston, Area Detachment Commander for Summerland 
6. Corporal Chad Parsons, Area Detachment Commander for Keremeos 

 
 

C. DELEGATION – BC EMERGENCY HEALTH SERVICES 
1. Joe Puskaric, District Manager 

 
 

D. EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTRE UPDATE 
 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

                                                    
  

  

 
  

      

PENTICTON SOUTH OKANAGAN  

SIMILKAMEEN   

REGIONAL  DETACHMENT           
  

QUARTERLY REPORT   
 

  

  

  

  

    April – June 

   2021 

 
 

   



 

                                                    
  

                                             2021/22 Annual Performance Plan  

Policing Priorities 
 

 
Penticton: 
Crime Reduction (Property Crimes and Drugs)  
Traffic - Road Safety 
Family and Sexual Violence  
Homelessness, Addictions and Mental Health 
Employee Wellness 
 
Princeton: 
Substance Abuse - Drugs 
Traffic – Road Safety 
Employee Wellness 
 
Osoyoos: 
Crime Reduction (Theft from Vehicles) 
Traffic/Marine Safety 
Employee Wellness 
 
Keremeos: 
Police/Community Relations – Police Visibility 
Traffic – Road Safety (Impaired Driving) 
 
Oliver: 
Crime Reduction (Property Crimes) 
Traffic - Road Safety 
Police/Community Relations – Police Visibility 
Employee Wellness 
 
Summerland: 
Crime Reduction (Property Crimes, Theft from Vehicles) 
Traffic - Road Safety 
Police/Community Relations – Police Visibility 
 
 
 
 

 



 

                                                    
  

PENTICTON (MUNICIPAL) Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 

 

 
Criminal Code files: 1810 (up 4% from 1736 in Q2 2020) 

 
 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 4135 4227 2% 8020 7831 -2%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 107 124 16% 212 240 13%
Sex Offences 19 18 -5% 38 38 0%
Uttering Threats 56 84 50% 105 161 53%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 38 34 -11% 83 68 -18%
Violent Crime - Total 229 246 7% 444 494 11%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 29 33 14% 95 89 -6%
Bicycle Theft 39 32 -18% 57 45 -21%
Break & Enter - Business 44 41 -7% 117 83 -29%
Break & Enter - Residence 34 18 -47% 56 39 -30%
Break & Enter - Other 18 19 6% 47 55 17%
Mischief to Property 358 474 32% 671 901 34%
Theft - Other 98 116 18% 205 210 2%
Shoplifting 56 96 71% 228 208 -9%
Theft from Vehicle 235 155 -34% 443 300 -32%
Fraud 83 74 -11% 176 159 -10%
Property Crime - Total 1048 1101 5% 2195 2163 -1%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Unwanted Person 361
Disturbance 320
Theft 270
Check Wellbeing 263
Suspicious Person 251
Assist Other Agency 209
Traffic Incident 183
Suspicious Circumstances 163
Assist Police/Fire/Ambulance 144
Mischief 133

Top 10 Calls for Service - Penticton 
Detachment (Municipal)



 

                                                    
  

PENTICTON (RURAL) Q2 2021 STATS  

 

 

 
 

 
Criminal Code files: 222 (down 15% from 260 in Q2 2020) 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 804 833 4% 1471 1477 0%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 15 17 13% 24 26 8%
Sex Offences 2 3 50% 3 3 0%
Uttering Threats 7 7 0% 12 9 -25%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 6 6 0% 14 9 -36%
Violent Crime - Total 30 30 0% 51 53 4%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 6 7 17% 14 15 7%
Bicycle Theft 3 1 -67% 3 1 -67%
Break & Enter - Business 0 2 N/C 4 3 -25%
Break & Enter - Residence 4 1 -75% 5 1 -80%
Break & Enter - Other 3 5 67% 5 5 0%
Mischief to Property 28 34 21% 47 49 4%
Theft - Other 9 17 89% 14 22 57%
Shoplifting 0 0 N/C 1 1 0%
Theft from Vehicle 21 19 -10% 36 27 -25%
Fraud 11 6 -45% 20 21 5%
Property Crime - Total 98 102 4% 167 159 -5%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 160
Suspicious Vehicle 43
Hazardous Situation 38
Suspicious Circumstances 35
Disturbance 34
Alarm 31
Suspicious Person 31
MVI 29
Abandoned Vehicle 26
Check Wellbeing 26
Theft 26

Top 10 Calls for Service - Penticton 
Detachment (Rural)



 

                                                    
  

NARAMATA Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 1 2 100% 1 3 200%
Sex Offences 0 0 N/C 1 1 0%
Uttering Threats 1 0 -100% 1 0 -100%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Violent Crime - Total 2 2 0% 3 4 33%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 1 0 -100% 3 2 -33%
Bicycle Theft 3 1 -67% 3 1 -67%
Break & Enter - Business 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Break & Enter - Residence 0 0 N/C 4 1 -75%
Break & Enter - Other 1 0 -100% 3 3 0%
Mischief to Property 1 3 200% 3 6 100%
Theft - Other 2 2 0% 5 2 -60%
Shoplifting 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Theft from Vehicle 2 0 -100% 5 1 -80%
Fraud 0 1 N/C 1 3 200%
Property Crime - Total 11 8 -27% 29 21 -28%



 

                                                    
  

KALEDEN Q2 2021 STATS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 1 1 0% 1 2 100%
Sex Offences 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Uttering Threats 1 1 0% 2 2 0%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 1 0 -100% 1 1 0%
Violent Crime - Total 4 3 -25% 5 5 0%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 0 1 N/C 2 1 -50%
Bicycle Theft 1 1 0% 1 1 0%
Break & Enter - Business 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Break & Enter - Residence 0 2 N/C 0 2 N/C
Break & Enter - Other 0 1 N/C 0 1 N/C
Mischief to Property 1 2 100% 3 3 0%
Theft - Other 4 0 -100% 4 0 -100%
Shoplifting 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Theft from Vehicle 5 1 -80% 8 2 -75%
Fraud 2 2 0% 3 5 67%
Property Crime - Total 13 10 -23% 22 15 -32%



 

                                                    
  

OKANAGAN FALLS Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 7 6 -14% 10 11 10%
Sex Offences 2 2 0% 3 3 0%
Uttering Threats 9 1 -89% 12 3 -75%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 0 2 N/C 0 6 N/C
Violent Crime - Total 19 9 -53% 27 18 -33%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 2 2 0% 3 6 100%
Bicycle Theft 1 1 0% 1 1 0%
Break & Enter - Business 0 2 N/C 2 2 0%
Break & Enter - Residence 2 0 -100% 4 0 -100%
Break & Enter - Other 0 1 N/C 2 1 -50%
Mischief to Property 13 10 -23% 24 21 -13%
Theft - Other 2 1 -50% 6 7 17%
Shoplifting 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Theft from Vehicle 7 8 14% 19 16 -16%
Fraud 3 3 0% 4 5 25%
Property Crime - Total 32 30 -6% 67 62 -7%



 

                                                    
  

SUMMERLAND Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Criminal Code files: 255 (up 70% from 150 in Q2 2020) 
 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 696 867 25% 1226 1502 23%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 15 22 47% 34 35 3%
Sex Offences 3 4 33% 6 6 0%
Uttering Threats 9 15 67% 22 19 -14%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 6 7 17% 13 11 -15%
Violent Crime - Total 34 59 74% 79 92 16%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 4 9 125% 9 12 33%
Bicycle Theft 2 7 250% 2 9 350%
Break & Enter - Business 6 4 -33% 29 10 -66%
Break & Enter - Residence 2 6 200% 5 7 40%
Break & Enter - Other 2 7 250% 3 11 267%
Mischief to Property 29 49 69% 45 69 53%
Theft - Other 14 23 64% 23 29 26%
Shoplifting 1 2 100% 4 4 0%
Theft from Vehicle 14 24 71% 21 44 110%
Fraud 9 16 78% 27 33 22%
Property Crime - Total 86 149 73% 171 232 36%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 100
Theft 59
Property 56
Alarm 45
Suspicious Person 42
Suspicious Circumstances 37
Assist Other Agency 36
Assist General Public 35
Disturbance 32
Check Wellbeing 30

Top 10 Calls for Service - 
Summerland Detachment 



 

                                                    
  

PRINCETON Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Criminal Code files: 149 (up 35% from 110 in Q2 2020) 
 
 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 527 577 9% 950 981 3%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 21 14 -33% 37 33 -11%
Sex Offences 4 3 -25% 8 6 -25%
Uttering Threats 12 10 -17% 23 11 -52%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 5 3 -40% 12 10 -17%
Violent Crime - Total 36 34 -6% 74 62 -16%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 3 10 233% 7 11 57%
Bicycle Theft 1 0 -100% 1 1 0%
Break & Enter - Business 1 3 200% 2 3 50%
Break & Enter - Residence 2 4 100% 5 5 0%
Break & Enter - Other 1 1 0% 4 1 -75%
Mischief to Property 18 25 39% 28 37 32%
Theft - Other 12 8 -33% 22 13 -41%
Shoplifting 1 2 100% 2 4 100%
Theft from Vehicle 3 11 267% 4 18 350%
Fraud 6 4 -33% 15 7 -53%
Property Crime - Total 48 71 48% 90 104 16%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 63
Check Wellbeing 35
Assist General Public 33
Disturbance 33
MVI 28
Assist Police/Fire/Ambulance 27
Suspicious Circumstances 27
Theft 25
Property 21
Abandoned 911 20

Top 10 Calls for Service - Princeton 
Detachment



 

                                                    
  

KEREMEOS Q2 2021 STATS  

 

 

 

 
Criminal Code files: 78 (down 29% from 110 in Q2 2020) 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 387 364 -6% 668 650 -3%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 14 13 -7% 17 27 59%
Sex Offences 4 1 -75% 5 4 -20%
Uttering Threats 1 3 200% 1 6 500%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 7 5 -29% 8 15 88%
Violent Crime - Total 21 16 -24% 27 39 44%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 4 8 100% 7 14 100%
Bicycle Theft 3 0 -100% 3 0 -100%
Break & Enter - Business 2 2 0% 5 3 -40%
Break & Enter - Residence 2 0 -100% 3 1 -67%
Break & Enter - Other 1 2 100% 4 3 -25%
Mischief to Property 21 12 -43% 30 15 -50%
Theft - Other 12 3 -75% 17 13 -24%
Shoplifting 0 0 N/C 0 0 N/C
Theft from Vehicle 17 7 -59% 21 15 -29%
Fraud 9 2 -78% 11 9 -18%
Property Crime - Total 78 46 -41% 111 88 -21%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 41
Assist Police/Fire/Ambulance 29
Check Wellbeing 24
Disturbance 19
Suspicious Circumstances 19
Assist General Public 14
Theft 12
MVI 11
Abandoned 911 10
Assist Other Agency 10
Theft of Vehicle 10

Top 10 Calls for Service - Keremeos 
Detachment



 

                                                    
  

OLIVER Q2 2021 STATS 

 

 

 

 
Criminal Code files: 224 (up 6% from 212 in Q2 2020) 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 786 842 7% 1535 1476 -4%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 35 30 -14% 88 49 -44%
Sex Offences 3 4 33% 7 8 14%
Uttering Threats 9 10 11% 15 20 33%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 9 8 -11% 22 12 -45%
Violent Crime - OCC Only 18 19 6% 54 36 -33%
Violent Crime - Total 51 58 14% 124 110 -11%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 12 15 25% 25 21 -16%
Bicycle Theft 0 2 N/C 0 3 N/C
Break & Enter - Business 3 2 -33% 12 8 -33%
Break & Enter - Residence 1 1 0% 7 2 -71%
Break & Enter - Other 7 2 -71% 12 5 -58%
Mischief to Property 45 40 -11% 70 73 4%
Theft - Other 12 22 83% 30 27 -10%
Shoplifting 6 1 -83% 18 4 -78%
Theft from Vehicle 11 15 36% 30 23 -23%
Fraud 14 19 36% 34 38 12%
Property Crime - Total 115 130 13% 258 222 -14%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 89
Alarm 72
Assist Police/Fire/Amublance 64
Theft 42
Check Wellbeing 41
Assault 36
Disturbance 36
Abandoned 911 29
Suspicious Circumstances 25
Unwanted person 24

Top 10 Calls for Service - Oliver 
Detachment



 

                                                    
  

OSOYOOS Q2 2021 STATS  
 

 

 

 

 
Criminal Code files: 157 (down 6% from 167 in Q2 2020) 

 

Calls for Service Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Total Calls for Service 776 683 -12% 1225 1158 -5%

Violent Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Assault (Common & With 
Weapon/Cause Bodily 
Harm) 19 8 -58% 30 21 -30%
Sex Offences 6 4 -33% 7 8 14%
Uttering Threats 10 1 -90% 19 6 -68%
Domestic Violence 
(Violent Crime Only) 8 2 -75% 10 10 0%
Violent Crime - Total 53 30 -43% 82 60 -27%

Property Crime Q2 2020 Q2 2021 
% Change 
2020 to 2021 Q2 YTD 2020 Q2 YTD 2021

% Change YTD 
2020 to 2021

Auto Theft 2 5 150% 8 8 0%
Bicycle Theft 0 3 N/C 0 3 N/C
Break & Enter - Business 3 2 -33% 17 6 -65%
Break & Enter - Residence 9 4 -56% 18 8 -56%
Break & Enter - Other 1 5 400% 6 5 -17%
Mischief to Property 26 14 -46% 40 30 -25%
Theft - Other 11 16 45% 23 25 9%
Shoplifting 7 1 -86% 12 1 -92%
Theft from Vehicle 11 32 191% 20 53 165%
Fraud 9 15 67% 22 31 41%
Property Crime - Total 84 104 24% 172 183 6%

Initial Call Type # of Calls
Traffic Incident 61
Property 54
Theft 42
Alarm 34
Disturbance 33
Check Wellbeing 30
Abandoned 911 29
Assist General Public 29
Assist Police/Fire/Amublance 27
Suspicious Circumstances 27

Top 10 Calls for Service - Osoyoos 
Detachment



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 
11:30 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of August 19, 2021 be adopted. 

 
 

B. CITY OF PENTICTON REVIEW OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD COST ALLOCATION POLICY – 
ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSE  
For Information Only 

 
 
C. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 1 of 14 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE: Administrative Response 

City of Penticton Review of the Administrative Overhead Cost Allocation Policy 
For Information Only 

Executive Summary 

The City of Penticton commissioned an internal study on the RDOS Administrative Overhead Cost 
Allocation Policy applied to the various services. This report addresses the concerns identified in 
the Penticton report.  
 
The report recommends that the RDOS Board develop a general principle for allocating overhead 
costs for service provisions. The Board, at the November 13, 2020 budget workshop adopted an 
overhead allocation method for the 2021 calendar year.  Options were pressented to Board Members 
and the Board voted on which option was to be used. 
 
The report also recommended that the RDOS Board direct RDOS staff to undertake a thorough and 
comprehensive review of the current overhead allocation practices to ensure fairness to all taxpayers 
and rate payers in the Regional District. 
 
This recommendation seems to imply that the overhead allocation has not been reviewed with the 
intent of ensuring that the allocation is fair to all. As stated in this report the administration allocation 
formula has changed over the last three years. These changes were made with the intent of ensuring 
that the allocations were fair.  At the first 2022 Board budget meeting a recommendation will be 
made to have the administration formula reviewed every four years (to coincide with the election). 
 
The 155 services which the RDOS provides have gross operational budgets that range from $720 to 
$7.2 million and may be funded by one jurisdiction or by all of the 16 jurisdictions, including PIB 
with whom we have a taxation agreement.  Each service requires differing levels of support, thus 
comparing the administration charges and trying to ensure that administration charges are 
consistent across all jurisdiction is not practical. 
 
The budget lists the tax allocation to each jurisdiction.  The amounts on the tax requisitions clearly 
show that the larger jurisdictions, both municipal and rural, pay larger amounts based on assessment. 
However, the larger participants have a higher number of residents and these residents, who are also 
RDOS residents, benefit from the various services and should pay their share.  



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 2 of 14 
 

 
 The following table compares the taxation amount and the administration costs charged to each 
jurisdiction on a per capita basis.                      
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Background: 
 

Member 
Municipality/Electoral 

Area/PID

Taxation per 
Capita

 Per Capita 
Administration 

Charge per 
Jurisdiction

Penticton 57.58               15.27                      
Summerland 75.46               12.12                      
Princeton 21.68               5.40                         
Oliver 324.21             22.77                      
Osoyoos 177.61             17.26                      
Keremeos 340.85             37.07                      
PIB 60.91               13.86                      
Electoral Area  A 609.35             129.98                    
Electoral Area  B 420.52             61.67                      
Electoral Area  C 566.64             110.39                    
Electoral Area  D 611.99             167.78                    
Electoral Area  E 984.10             235.39                    
Electoral Area  F 608.59             113.28                    
Electoral Area G 380.66             80.49                      
Electoral Area  H 755.03             178.15                    
Electoral Area  I 607.13             140.34                    

Taxation  and Administration Allocation per Capita



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 3 of 14 
 

Administrative overhead costs refer to all indirect expenses of running an organization.  These 
ongoing expenses support projects and services but are not linked directly to the actual project or 
service.  They support the departments that directly provide service to the customer. 
 
For most local governments, the following departments would be classified as administrative 
overhead: 

• Legislative Services 
• Human Resources 
• Information Technology 
• Financial Services 
• Corporate Facility  

One method of redistributing the overhead costs, which is common for municipalities is by simply 
calculating the total overhead costs divided into the total operational costs and coming up with one 
administration percentage charge. An example would be (using 2021 RDOS numbers): 
Administrative overhead costs = wages $2,766,513 + supplies, contracts and services $1,477,084 = 
$4,243,597. 
 
Gross operational costs for all services before revenue is deducted - per 2021 budget less capital and 
municipal fiscal services total $32,775,237.  
 
Gross Expenditure Budget:  $47,925,596 
Less: 
Capital Expenditures:   $15,150,359 
 
Gross Operating Budget  $32,775,237 
 
Administration percentage before revenue is deducted, if charging a weighted average percentage 
for all services on operational expenses excluding capital ($4,243,597/$32,775,237 = 12.95%). An 
average administration charge for a municipal government would be 18%. 
   
Incorporated municipal governments may have 3 to 4 Funds, such as general government, water, 
sewer,s etc. charging a weighted average administration fee of one percentage will work. However 
for a Regional District such as ours who have 155 services, charging the same percentage is not a fair 
method. 
 
Regional District’s  Current Method: 
 
All supplies, second party contracts and all other non-salary expenses which are directly associated 
with administrative services are calculated. All revenue associated with administrative services are 
deducted from these expenses. A net charge is determined and redistributed back to the 155 services 
on a variable percentage basis, which we call tier-charging. The tiers are based on the amount of 
work required for each service. 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 4 of 14 
 

 
To be fully transparent, at the November 13, 2021 budget meeting, the Board received a report which 
detailed the department code, service description, the tier for each service, and the administration 
dollar amount which will be charged to the various services. The Board also received three 
recommendations on how the administrative overhead should be charged, as follows:  
 

1. No change, charge the administration support expenses back to each service, after calculating 
the net expense which would be used to determine the administration charge. Excluded from 
the charge are, capital, debt servicing, transfer to reserves, and all salaries. 
 

2. Charge the administration support expenses back to each service, however, 20% of the 
determined overhead amount is to be charged to capital using a tiered basis. The remaining 
amount would be charged after calculating the net expense which would determine the 
administration charge. Excluded would be capital, debt servicing, transfer to reserves, and 
salaries. This recommendation was recommended by staff. 
 

3. Charge the administration support expenses back to each service after calculating the net 
expense which would be used to determine the administration charge. Excluded from this 
amount is capital, debt servicing, and transfer to reserves. Unlike option 2 this option excludes 
capital but would include wages.  

 
Comments based on the City of Penticton May 18, 2021 Council Report regarding the City Review of 
RDOS Overhead Cost Allocation. 
 
1a: City Report Page 1 
The executive summary concluded that it was difficult to compare one regional district to another, 
however best practices were identified.  One main best practice identified in the report was that of 
transparency regarding overhead allocation. 
 
1b: Response 
As stated at the first budget committee meeting on November 13th, 2021, all the tiers were identified 
by department and the allocated overhead amounts by department. In addition, how the tiers were 
determined was discussed.  
 
2a: City Report Page 1 Cont. 
The executive summary of the report concludes that the use of the direct time allocation method for 
salaries results in a substantial portion of residual overhead salary cost being allocated based on tax 
assessment. The report recommends that a comprehensive review be taken of the current overhead 
allocation practices but does not make any recommendations. 
In 2008 City representatives, expressed a concern that wages were unfairly allocated to the General 
Government program.  A significant review was undertaken in 2009 that resulted in the Time-Tracker 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 5 of 14 
 

Program, where a set of principles were developed by the Board directing that all staff had to keep 
track of all time spent on each Service and code the expense to that Service, including all exempt 
staff.  This resulted in a significant shift of wage allocation from General Government to Electoral 
Area Administration in 2011 and has been working well since that time.  What could be fairer than 
directly charging wages to the service which benefited from their time?  The City seems to contest 
this principle and seem to suggest that it might be better to arbitrarily charge wages on a percentage 
basis to all services.  While less work, that seems to be a regression as far as accuracy and 
transparency is concerned. 
 
2b: Response 
The prime objective of the Regional District has been and will continue to be to charge overhead, 
salaries and all other expenses as fairly as possible. The report states that a substantial portion of 
residual overhead salary costs are being allocated based on tax assessment. The administration 
charge is not based on tax assessment, it is based on a formula and wages are based on actual 
application, however as stated, once the charge is determined, it becomes part of the operational 
charge and taxed on assessment. 
 
The objective is to determine, as close as possible, the time which should be charged to each service. 
Each year the charge-out hours are fine-tuned to reflect actual. Thus, each service is paying their fair 
share.  For the 2021 budget year the following hours and dollars were charged against the general 
government and electoral area administration services. 
 

The dollars charged to General Government is $723,486 
 
Including non-administrative staff, the FTE is 8.79% with a dollar 
charge of $830,030. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The dollars charged to Electoral Area Administration is 
$1,644,152. 
 
Including non-administrative staff the FTE is 21.923% with a 
dollar charge of $2,098,431. 
 
 
 
 
 

Overhead Administration Charge to
General Government Administration
General Administration 0.490           
Financial Services 1.985           
Human Resources 0.150           
Information Services 0.460           
Legislative Services 4.340           

Total FTEs 7.425           

Overhead Administration Charge to
Electoral Area Administration
General Administration 0.490           
Financial Services 6.748           
Human Resources 2.850           
Information Services 4.195           
Legislative Services 3.580           

Total FTEs 17.863         



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 6 of 14 
 

It is important to note that the objective of using an estimated administration charge using a tiered 
formula method is to allocate the charge as close as possible to the service. At this point tax 
assessment is not taken into account. However, the wages become part of the operating expenses 
and all expenses are charged to the department on a tiered-basis and then taxed to fund the service 
which is based on assessment.  
 
3a: City Report Page 9, 10, and 11 
 
Page 9 of the report states “That over the last 3 years the administration overhead allocation method 
has evolved, which has created significant swings in the amount of administration overhead 
allocation to each service budget”. The Report compares 2019, 2020 and 2021 administration charge 
and highlights the inconsistency in the charges from year to year.  
 
3b: Response 
We agree that the administrative charge has changed over the last 3 years.  The objective of the 
change was to improve the charge-out formula so that it reflects the charges to actual. The changes 
made make it hard to compare the year-to-year difference.  We thought we had it with the adoption 
of the 2020 Policy at Budget Committee, but until we can get a firm direction from the Board, this is 
inconsistency is going to continue. 
 
4a: City Report Page 11 Cont.  
The report states that salaries are combined to include both the allocated time as well as direct 
service specific salaries. It also states that almost half of the budgets did not have any salaries charged 
to its budget, but adds that there could be multiple reasons, such as budgets are too small to require 
salary time or budget was not allocated any salaries.  
 
4b: Response 
In response to the salaries being combined, our salary budgeting software does not have the 
capability to split the two apart. For this report, the split in salaries was done manually and time 
intensive, however it can be calculated manually as was done for this report.  
 
In regards to the services which do not have salaries within the budgets, many of the services we 
provide are strictly contracts. Examples are Cemeteries, Heritage Society, and West Bench Contract 
with City of Penticton. Other services with no salaries charge include debt servicing, certain parks 
and recreation, certain transit contracts or wages such as bylaw which are charged to one service 
and then redistributed to a number of other bylaw related services. 
 
5a: City Report Page 12 
This page states that five service budgets were allocated the highest tier rating, Tier 1 – full utilization, 
for administration overhead allocation. These budgets did not have any salary time allocated to 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 7 of 14 
 

them, which implies that they may not be fully utilizing the administration overhead or it would be 
expected that some salary time would be spent on these budgets.  
 
5b: Response 
The budget has classified nine services which are charged at tier 1, they all include salaries, please 
see the following tier one groupings: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6a: Penticton’s Report Page 13 
The report compares 2020 with 2021 administrative overhead by Municipality and Electoral Area     
 
As stated in the report 

 
6b: Response 
Using the 2021 formula and adding the support staff wages to the administration charge, the 
administration charge is as follows: 
 

2021 2020 Variance
Municipalities 27% 29% -2%
Penticton Indian Band 1% 1% 0%
Electoral Area 72% 70% 2%

100% 100% 0%

Dept Code Service Tier Salary Budget
0100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1 830,030$         
0300 ELECTORAL AREA ADMINISTRATION 1 2,098,431$     
2500 BUILDING INSPECTION 1 809,367$         
3000 REFUSE DISPOSAL- OLIVER 1 144,638$         
3500 REFUSE DISPOSAL - PENTICTON/D3 1 645,577$         
3800 SEWAGE DISPOSAL - OK FALLS 1 324,675$         
3940 WATER SYSTEM - NARAMATA 1 509,607$         
5000 ELECTORAL AREA PLANNING 1 650,833$         
7520 RECREATION COMM - OK FALLS 1 239,868$         

6,253,026$     



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 8 of 14 
 

 
 
The summary for 2021 administration charge including support staff wages.  
Hospital comprises the 1% difference. 
 

  2021 
Municipalities 23.18% 
Penticton Indian Band 0.54% 
Electoral Area 75.21% 

   
  99% 

 
 
 
 

Member Municipality/Electoral Area

Support Staff 
Salaries  
Charged 

Directly on 
Services which 

are Taxed

Administration 
Overhead                     

( Support) on 
Services which 

are Taxed

Support Staff 
Salaries 

Charged on 
Services which 
are User Fee 

Collected

Administration 
on Capital 
Projects

Total 
Administration 
on all Services

Percentage of 
Administration 

By Service 
Area

PENTICTON 313,881$        74,949$                123,220$           62,496$             574,545$        13.54%
SUMMERLAND 103,529          26,952                  -                      112                     130,593          3.08%
PRINCETON 21,890             3,899                    -                      24                       25,813             0.61%
OLIVER 39,474             60,204                  -                      9,597                  109,274          2.58%
OSOYOOS 63,434             24,275                  -                      69                       87,779             2.07%
KEREMEOS 9,162               18,394                  8,180                  19,876               55,612             1.31%

551,369          208,673                131,401             92,174               983,617          23.18%

PENTICTON REGIONAL HOSPITAL 45,327             -                         -                      -                      45,327             1.07%
PENTICTON INDIAN BAND 18,603             4,486                    -                      16                       23,105             0.54%

Recoverable -                   -                         97$                     -                      97$                  0.00%
ELECTORAL AREA A 206,589          50,254                  10,619               2,241                  269,703          6.36%
ELECTORAL AREA B 54,921             24,396                  8,732                  14,873               102,922          2.43%
ELECTORAL AREA C 290,112          100,961                34,375               13,028               438,476          10.33%
ELECTORAL AREA D 396,945          113,578                100,735             93,081               704,339          16.60%
ELECTORAL AREA E 296,980          81,383                  90,587               31,258               500,207          11.79%
ELECTORAL AREA F 178,833          38,788                  33,608               3,530                  254,759          6.00%
ELECTORAL AREA G 109,867          36,977                  26,056               28,096               200,995          4.74%
ELECTORAL AREA H 304,370          70,373                  5,649                  8,153                  388,545          9.16%
ELECTORAL AREA I 238,564          65,495                  18,414               9,013                  331,486          7.81%

2,077,179       582,205                328,872             203,272             3,191,529       75.21%

TOTAL TAX REQUISITION FOR 
ALL BUDGETS 2,647,151$     795,364$              460,273$           295,462$           4,243,577$     100.00%

2021 Administration Charges

REGIONAL DISTRICT OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN
2021 Administration Analysis



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 9 of 14 
 

 

 
  
  

 

 

7a: Penticton’s Report Page 13 
The Penticton report represents (using Penticton’s numbers) the administration of net operating 
budget as shown below. The report states that Penticton, Princeton, Penticton Indian Band, and 
Electoral Areas A, H and I are charged substantially more than the average while Oliver and Keremeos 
ae charged significantly lower than the average relative to their net operating budgets.  

Support Staff Wages $2,766,513
Expenses related to Support Staff $1,477,084
Total $4,243,597

The administration charge including support staff 
wages is distributed as follows:



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 10 of 14 
 

 

 
7b: Response 
The RDOS has 155 services and each service area may require a different level of support. Each of 
the services may have a different taxing authority. Those services that are funded from user fees may 
have a high operational budget but have a low taxing amount because of the user fees. Using an 
average of this type to compare administration by service area is not realistic.   
 
While this report can be reproduced using RDOS numbers, it serves no useful purpose. The following 
graph and spreadsheet represent a useful method for comparison.  
 
The following graph compares the administration percentage charge by service area (blue bar) with 
the expenses the service area benefits (line in orange). The variances range from a high of 3.72% 
(service over administration charge) to a low 4.41% administration over service). 
 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 11 of 14 
 

 
 
 
The following spreadsheet compares the gross operational costs (total costs not taking into account 
funding which reduces the tax requisition) against the administration charged to each area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%
10.00%
12.00%
14.00%
16.00%
18.00%
20.00%

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%

10.00%
12.00%
14.00%
16.00%
18.00%

2021 % Comparison Admin vs Operational Expense by Service 
Area

Percentage of Administration By Service Area Percentage of Expenses by Service Area



 

ht
tp

s:
//

rd
os

.e
sc

rib
em

ee
tin

gs
.c

om
/r

ep
or

ts
/c

ity
 o

f p
en

tic
to

n 
ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

 fi
na

l.d
oc

x 
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

4 
 

 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 13 of 14 
 

 
8a: Penticton’s Report Page 14 
This page provides a summary comparison of four regional districts. It states that there are varying 
methods utilized to allocate administration overhead. The RDCO and RDNO both allocate the 
majority of their administration overhead by the formula method, while the RDEK and RDOS allocate 
the majority by tax assessment.  
 
8b: Response 
Additional reports can be and will be added with the 2022 budget. In regards to the statement that 
we allocate using the tax assessment method, this statement is not entirely correct. The 
administration charge is a consistent formula which is charged to each service based on a tiered basis, 
once the administration is calculated it is collected from taxes which uses assessment as a basis to 
determine how it is distributed.  It ensures that each participant of a service pays the same regardless 
of which jurisdiction in which they reside.  It’s about the service received, not where they live. 
 
9a: Penticton Report Page 15 
This page states that the higher percentage of overhead that is allocated by the tax method charges 
more to municipalities/electoral areas that have high tax assessments and may not match utilization 
of these services. Also stated, is that municipalities may have duplication of the same resources as 
the regional district and do not utilize regional district services to the same higher level that electoral 
areas utilize.   
 
9b: Response 
In British Columbia local governments use property assessment as the basis for calculating the annual 
property tax bill. The Regional District is no different than other local governments and not different 
from the City of Penticton. The majority of our taxes are based on assessment, however we also have 
some services which are taxed as a parcel tax and most of our utilities are strictly user-pay. Allocating 
expenses using assessment is a fair practice. In addition, the bylaws which created the various 
services includes the tax limit which we are allowed to tax which is based on assessment.  
 
In regards to the administration charge, once it is calculated and assigned to each service, it becomes 
part of the operational cost of that service. The net cost (cost less all funding sources) is distributed 
back to the residents of the service area using assessment. Using assessment is the norm in British 
Columbia used by local governments. An example would be comparing a 2,500 square foot house 
that is located on a beachfront in the City of Penticton against that of the 2,500 square foot house 
located in the center of the City. The beach front property does not receive any additional service, 
however they do pay more as the beach front property is assessed higher than the centrally located 
property. 
 
In regards to the comment that municipalities may have duplication of the same resources as the 
regional district and do not utilize regional district services to the same higher level that electoral 



 

https://rdos.escribemeetings.com/reports/city of penticton administration response final.docx  
Page 14 of 14 
 

areas utilize.  The Regional District form of government does not charge a municipality anything.  
Each of our 15 jurisdictions choose whether to participate in a service, or not.  Once joined, the 
regional district each citizen within the service area the same amount. Our staff attribute wages to a 
service to which they dedicate time to.  There are no regional district services that use municipal staff 
and if we do, we pay for it, like fire protection for West Bench.  
 
10a: Penticton Report Page 15 and 16 
This section of the report identifies various best practices to consider. 
 
10b: Response 
Most of the best practices identified in the Penticton Report are already applied. It is always 
beneficial to review best practices and staff will be making recommendations to the Board if the 
Board’s wish is to have additional information added to the yearly budget documents. 
 
11a: Penticton Report Page 16 Cont. 
The conclusion of the report states that there are opportunities to align the costs of services more 
closely to those receiving the services, based on practices in other regional districts. The  RDOS Board 
should request the RDOS staff perform a thorough and comprehensive review of their current 
overhead allocation, review the best practices identified in this report, determine which are not being 
done, and where feasible, implement the best practices. 
 
11b: Response 
There are 27 regional districts in British Columbia, with each one developing what best meets their 
requirement to allocate administrative overhead. The Penticton Report itself, in its executive 
summary recognizes that there are a multitude of methods to allocate overhead administration. 
Staff’s response is that the overhead is administrated fairly, but should be reviewed continually to 
ensure the distribution continues to be fair, and we commit to doing that. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
Jim Zaffino, Finance Manager 
___________________________ 
J. Zaffino,  Finance Manager 

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 
12:15 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of August 19, 2021 be 
adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATION – MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
Erik Lachmuth, District Manager, Transportation, Okanagan Shuswap District 

 
 

C. SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND – TERMS OF REFERENCE UPDATE 
1. Terms of Reference with edits, August 2021 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2  
THAT the Board of Directors approve the proposed updates and adjustments to the Terms of 
Reference for the South Okanagan Conservation Fund as reviewed at the August 19, 2021 
Environment and Infrastructure meeting. 

 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   South Okanagan Conservation Fund – Terms of Reference Update 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 

THAT the Board of Directors approve the proposed updates and adjustments to the Terms 
of Reference for the South Okanagan Conservation Fund as reviewed at the August 19, 
2021 Environment and Infrastructure meeting. 

 
Purpose: 
To update the Board on adjustments to the South Okanagan Conservation Fund Terms of Reference 
and obtain approval for the next scheduled Fund intake/call for proposals (scheduled for late 
August).  
 
Reference: 
South Okanagan Conservation Fund (SOCF) Terms of Reference – (May 2017). See attached with 
amendments in track changes. 
 
Background: 
On December 15th 2016, the RDOS Board adopted Bylaw No. 2690 to establish an Environmental 
Conservation Service.  The bylaw establishes an Environmental Conservation Service for the 
Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”,  “E”, “F” and “I” and the City of Penticton, District of Summerland, and 
Town of Oliver (the participating areas). The annual maximum amount that may be requisitioned 
for the cost of the service will not exceed the greater of $450,000 (or $0.0292 per thousand dollars 
of net taxable value of land and improvements in the RDOS).   
 
These requisitioned funds are in support of undertaking and administering activities, projects, and 
works that will include, but is not limited to, water, environment, wildlife, land and habitat 
conservation efforts to protect natural areas within the participating areas of the Regional District 
of Okanagan-Similkameen.    
 
The Fund is guided by a Terms of Reference (TOR) that addresses all aspects of fund detail including 
the purpose, administration, themes/goals, guiding principles, timelines, governance, fund design, 
and supporting appendices relating to criteria for ineligible activities, terms for a Technical Advisory 
Committee and conflict of interest guidelines.  
 

https://soconservationfund.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/Conservation-Fund-ToR-FINAL-Approved-June-1_2017-a.pdf
https://soconservationfund.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/Conservation-Fund-ToR-FINAL-Approved-June-1_2017.pdf


 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Analysis: 
The following is a summary of proposed adjustments to the Terms of Reference as a planned 
update following four funding cycles of the South Okanagan Conservation Fund. The TOR update 
reflects needed improvements, and is in preparation for the next annual call for proposals intake 
scheduled for late August 2021.    
 
 Inclusion of a new definitions section to clarify aspects of the TOR that were previously 

ambiguous.  
 Minor amendments to provide clarification, additional background or updated information.  
 Updated Fund themes based on most recent RDOS citizen survey results.  
 Inclusion of background related to the Regional Growth Strategy and Biodiversity Conservation 

Strategy.  
 Introduction of in-camera process for application review with the final decision being made 

public as a rise and report. To reduce public discussion of ranking projects may bring to light 
information which could be perceived as negative about an applicant or project, and which 
could reasonably be expected to harm the reputation, and/or competitive position of the third 
party (for example if they are applying for other funding or partnerships).  

 Adjustment of timelines for increased program effectiveness.  
 Confirmation of the creation of the funding “reserve”.  
 Increased clarity regarding 3-year project funding maximum, and guidelines for return 

applications with respect to SOCF funding projects, not  programs.  
 Clarification of disbursals for land securement projects.  
 Workplan and budget change approvals.  
 Inclusion of fund recognition requirements from the Contribution Agreements.  
 Minor updates and clarifications to Appendices 1, 2, and 3.  

• Appendix 1 - Ineligible Project Activities. Clarification related to RDOS responsibility and the 
Personal Information Protection Act. 

• Appendix 2  - Technical Advisory Committee (composition, technical guidelines and criteria). 
• Appendix 3 -  Conflict of Interest Guidelines (Confidential Information).  

 
Alternatives: 
 THAT the adjustments be approved. 
 THAT the adjustments be deferred for further information from administration.  
 THAT the adjustments not be approved. 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden”  
 

C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  
 

 
 
 
 

https://www.rdos.bc.ca/assets/bylaws/planning/AreaX/2770.pdf
https://soscp.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/KNOIF-2013-web-1.pdf
https://soscp.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/KNOIF-2013-web-1.pdf


 
 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN SIMILKAMEEN  
 
 
 
 

       SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND 
 
 

Leaving a natural legacy for future generations… 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 

Date  
 

Approved on June 1, 2017  Commented [BW1]: Updated version for approval August 
2021  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 2 of 16 

SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND 
 

DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
1. Background ................................................................................................ 3 
 
2. Fund Purpose ............................................................................................. 3 
 
3. Fund Administration .................................................................................... 3 
 3.1 RDOS Responsibility ........................................................................ 3 
 3.2 Consultant Responsibility .................................................................. 3 
 3.3 Technical Advisory Committee …………………………………………. 3 
 
4. Conservation Themes and Goals ................................................................ 4 
 4.1 Themes ............................................................................................ 4 
 4.2 Targets ............................................................................................. 4 
 4.3 Classification Scheme ...................................................................... 4 
 
5. Guiding Principles ....................................................................................... 6 
 
6. Time Lines .................................................................................................. 6 
 6.1 General Projects ............................................................................... 6 
 6.2 Land Securement Projects ................................................................ 6 
 
7. Governance ................................................................................................ 7 
 
8. Fund Design ............................................................................................... 8 
 
9. References ................................................................................................. 8 
 
Appendix 1 – Ineligible Activities.......................................................................... 9 
 
Appendix 2 – Technical Advisory Committee ..................................................... 10 
 
Appendix 3 – Technical Advisory Committee 
      Conflict of Interest Guidelines ..................................................... 14 
 
Appendix 4 – Definitions……………………………………………………………….16 
 

  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 3 of 16 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

 In December 2016, the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen (“RDOS”), with public 
assent, adopted Bylaw #2690 to establish an Environmental Conservation Service for the 
Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, and “I”, the City of Penticton, District of Summerland, 
and the Town of Oliver (collectively referred to as “the participating areas”).  Under this 
Bylaw, the annual maximum amount to be requisitioned for the cost of the service was not 
to exceed the greater of $450,000 or $0.0292 per thousand dollars of net taxable value of 
land and improvements in the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen. These funds 
are in support of undertaking and administering activities, projects, and works that include, 
but are not limited to, water, environment, wildlife, land and habitat conservation efforts to 
protect natural areas within the participating areas of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen.  

 
For the purposes of this Terms of Reference, the Environmental Conservation Service is 
also known as the “South Okanagan Conservation Fund” or “the Fund”.  
 
 

 
2. FUND PURPOSE 

 
 The South Okanagan Similkameen is biologically, a unique area of Canada. The RDOS 

has the second highest number of species at risk of any other Regional District in BC as 
well as the highest proportion of sensitive ecosystems. 

 
 Natural lands in both rural and urban areas filter our water, supply open spaces for wildlife 

and people, and provide quality of life to communities.  Unfortunately, these systems are 
under stress. The current generation must take action now to ensure a healthy physical 
environment for future generations. 

 
 The purpose of the Fund is to provide local financial support for projects that will contribute 

to the conservation of our valuable natural areas; one step towards restoring and preserv-
ing a healthy environment. The intent is to provide funding for conservation projects that 
are not the existing responsibility of the federal, provincial or local governments. 

 
3. FUND ADMINISTRATION 

 
 3.1 RDOS Responsibility 
 
  The RDOS is responsible for maintaining the integrity of the Fund and retains the 

responsibility for approval of all matters related thereto, including projects, pay-
ments, and financial audits of the Fund.  

 
 3.2 Consultant Responsibility 
 
  The RDOS may enter into agreement with a third party to be responsible for aspects 

of administrative management of the Fund for a fee for service.  
 

3.3 Technical Advisory Committee 
 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 4 of 16 

The RDOS may also appoint a Technical Advisory Committee to provide expertise 
in the review and selection of projects or recipients of funds, as outlined in Appendix 
2. 

 
4. CONSERVATION THEMES AND GOALS 

 
 4.1 Themes 
 
  The themes for the Fund shall address top public environmental issues including: 

conservation of water quality and quantity stewardship, (aquatic ecosystems, sur-
face and groundwater), protection, enhancement and restoration of sensitive ter-
restrial and aquatic ecosystems, wildlife species (including those at risk), and hab-
itat for native fish and wildlife.  

 
  These themes are based on market research done in RDOS community surveys 

between (2010, 2012, 2014, a and 20200, ) and regional conservation program 
opinion polling and focus group research in (2004, 2008, and 2016) to identify what 
residents value in the RDOS region. Themes are also consistent with the Biodiver-
sity Conservation Strategy Keeping Nature in Our Future.  

 
 

 
 
 4.2 Targets 
 
  Projects that can demonstrate a reduction of a known threat to a biodiversity target 

will be given priority (see Appendix 1 for a list of ineligible projects).  Projects on all 
land tenure types will be considered. The biodiversity targets are: 

 
• Sensitive Ecosystems as defined by Provincial SEI classifications and predom-

inantly occurring in the valley bottom <1200m in elevation*. 
o Riparian, foreshore and water bodies including gullies, creeks, rivers, 

ponds, lakes, marshes and swamps; 
o Wetlands both permanent and ephemeral including wet meadows, 

marshes, swamps and shallow open water areas including ponds 

Some of the top-mentioned public environmental concerns from RDOS 
citizen and public opinion surveys include; water quality and quantity, 
air quality, wildfires, preserving lands and parks, the loss of natural ar-
eas due to land conversion and development, population growth and 
development, sprawl, and the loss or extinction of wildlife. 
 

A directive of the South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy, the Bio-
diversity Conservation Strategy Keeping Nature in Our Future was de-
veloped in collaboration between the RDOS and the South Okanagan 
Similkameen Conservation Program (SOSCP) partners. Accepted by 
the RDOS Board in 2013, it provides science-based information and 
strategies to protect important local biodiversity, including the establish-
ment of a local conservation fund.  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 5 of 16 

o Grasslands and shrub-steppe  
o Sparsely Vegetated rock outcrops, talus, cliffs and slopes; 
o Broadleaf & coniferous woodlands and old forests; 
o Other important ecosystems such as mature forest and Season-

ally Flooded Fields; and,  
o *Exception is high elevation alpine areas. These are to be in-

cluded.  
• Watersheds at important source water protection areas. 
• Connectivity for natural areas and wildlife corridors. 
• Native fish and wildlife habitat including for species at risk. 
• Urban and rural wild-land interface areas.   

 
 4.3 Classification Scheme 
 
  The aim is to “think globally; act locally.”  The framework for Technical Review (see 

Appendix 2) will be based on the International Union for the Conservation of Nature 
(IUCN) classification of direct threats.  The value of this classification scheme is to 
provide nomenclature for practitioners world-wide to describe the common prob-
lems they are facing and solutions they are using in a mutually intelligible way. The 
issues outlined below are those that currently have the highest relevance to the 
area around RDOS. This is only a partial list and other IUCN threats will be consid-
ered in evaluating proposals: 

 
  (a) Residential and Commercial Development 
   Development activity continues to lead to conversion and fragmentation of 

important habitats and greater demands on water. 
 
  (b) Climate Change 
   Climate change will have a dramatic influence on Okanagan ecosystems over 

the next 20 years.  Higher summer and winter temperatures, declining moun-
tain snowpack, reduced snowfall, long dry summers, and sudden heavy rains 
are just some of the changes. These changes will have a dramatic impact on 
fire regimes, geo-hazards and flooding, river flow, water availability, plant dis-
tribution, and wildlife populations.  

 
  (c) Terrestrial and Aquatic Invasive Species 
   When natural areas are disturbed there is often an opportunity for invasive 

species to flourish.  Invasive species, both terrestrial and aquatic, can disrupt 
natural ecological processes as there are often no natural agents present to 
keep these species in check. Invasive species can affect fish and wildlife hab-
itat, range values, food security, and timberland.   

 
  (d) Natural System Modifications (Fire maintained ecosystems, Dams and 

Water Management and Use) 
   When natural systems are modified such as through fire suppression, or non-

ecological fireproofing or hydrological flow regimes altered, the ecological 
degradation and loss of biological diversity can we widespread.  

 
  (e) Transportation and Service Corridors 
   Wildlife mortality and habitat fragmentation are direct consequences of road 

corridors.  These corridors are concentrated in valley bottoms and traffic vol-
umes are increasing over time thereby increasing the risk.  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 6 of 16 

 
  (f) Human Intrusions and Disturbance (Recreational Activity) 
   Recreational activity, particularly increasing off-road activity, can lead to a 

range of impacts including soil compaction, erosion, spread of invasive plants, 
and disturbance to wildlife.  

 
  (g)  Agriculture and Aquaculture  

Threats from farming and ranching as a result of agricultural expansion and 
intensification, can lead to loss of important ecosystem and wildlife habitat, 
soil compaction, spread of invasive plants, human health issues with surface 
and groundwater.  

 
  (h)    Biological Resource Use  

Harvesting trees and other woody vegetation for timber, fibre, or fuel can have 
an impact on ecosystems, wildlife habitat, surface and groundwater, including 
soil compaction, erosion, spread of invasive plants and disturbance to wildlife.  
 

  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 7 of 16 

5. GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 
 To best support the most effective projects, the guiding principles of the Conservation 

Framework for British Columbia will be followed: 
 

• Acting sooner – before species and ecosystems are at risk. 
• Acting smarter – priority setting is science-based; the results move us from reactive 

conservation to prevention using appropriate management actions. 
• Acting together – coordinated and inclusive action. 
• Investing more wisely – align conservation investments, priorities, and actions 

among conservation partners and stakeholders. 
 

 The following guiding principles will also be used with respect to the Fund: 
 

• Projects that fall into the existing responsibilities of federal, provincial or local 
governments will not be eligible for funding. 

• The review process will be as simple as possible, particularly for cost effective admin-
istration.  

• Projects will be ranked on technical soundness, technical effectiveness, and value 
for money. Project evaluation ranking and recommendations will be considered in-
camera and reported publicly after Board decision.   

• Projects will initially be ranked based on technical merit, regardless of where they oc-
cur within the participating area. Subsequently, regional equity may be considered in 
decision-making. 

• Only highly ranked projects will be funded.  If there are not enough high-quality pro-
jects in any given year, funds will be carried forward to future years. 

• Changes to program design will be considered as more is learned about the needs 
of the areas, provided always that the goals of the Fund are still met. 

 
6. TIMELINES 
 
 6.1 General Projects 

• Call for proposals – August -September 
• RDOS administrative review– October 
• Technical review – October - November 

Guiding Principles of the Biodiversity Conservation Strategy- Keeping Nature 
in Our Future  

 
• Protect core habitat areas. 
• Connect habitat areas. 
• Protect a matrix of lands outside core areas and corridors.  
• Maintain diversity of ecosystems, species and genetics.  
• Think regionally and share responsibility.   
• Practice the precautionary principle.  
 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 8 of 16 

• RDOS final approval –December 
• Successful applicants advised and informed – January 
• Contribution Agreements between the RDOS and applicants are finalized –  

February – March   
• Interim Report Due – September  
• Final Report Due – February  

 
 6.2 Land Securement Projects 
  Land acquisition or covenant proposals may be submitted at any time during the 

year provided there is sufficient time for the Technical Advisory Committee and 
RDOS to review the proposals.  All securement proposals will be treated as confi-
dential unless other specific arrangements have been approved by all parties. 

 
7. GOVERNANCE 

 
 The governance model is based on three guiding principles: 
   
 1. This is a tax-based fund; therefore, in the decision-making process, taxpayers will be 

represented through their elected officials. 
 2. The Fund was created to provide a conservation service. Technical merit is of utmost 

importance to determine which projects are supported. 
 3. It is important to maintain a simple, cost effective decision-making structure. 
 
 The governance model may be modified as necessary to accommodate the goals of the 

Fund. A two-tiered process may be employed, with a Technical Advisory Committee (see 
Appendix 2) making recommendations to the RDOS. 

 
 The RDOS may appoint a Technical Advisory Committee based on nominations or appli-

cations received in response to an open call to fill a vacancy. Five to seven committee 
members may be selected with a maximum term of three years. Some members may be 
asked to serve for only one- or two-year terms to ensure membership continuity in each 
year. The RDOS will base any appointment of members to a Technical Advisory Commit-
tee on qualification criteria found in Appendix 2. The Technical Advisory Committee shall 
follow the Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Guidelines defined in the Local Gov-
ernment Act.  
 

8. FUND DESIGN 
 

 (1) A call for project proposals will be issued annually (August - September). 
 (2) Funds will be dispersed based on responses to calls for proposals. Any funds not 

dispersed shall be carried forward, through an established reserve to the next fiscal 
year or until the Board authorizes the expenditure for a land securement application, 
which may occur any time throughout the year.   

 (3) Projects are eligible to be delivered on any land tenure but must be in the Fund 
participating areas. 

 (4) Multi-year projects are acceptable to a maximum of three years. Multi-year projects 
will require annual funding approval and will be subject to oversight by the Technical 
Advisory Committee to ensure they are on track.  

(5)  This fund is intended to support projects, not programs. Proponents that have com-
pleted the final year of a multi – year project and submit a new application, that 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 9 of 16 

application will be evaluated and considered against additional criteria to determine 
eligibility at the discretion of the RDOS. This may may include, but not be limited to: 

 
a. The new application meets the definition of a project, not a program (see defini-

tions).  
 

b.  The new application is substantively different from previous multi-year project 
(s). 

 
c. Whether the application seeks to generate broad organizational or technical ben-

efits to the proponent, or includes elements of on-going operational work. 
 

d.  The history of previous funding provided to the organization, project delivery 
performance and standing, proposed conservation delivery theme and/or geo-
graphic service area.  

 
 (5) Projects must address IUCN threats to biodiversity targets and fall into at least one 

theme area (see Section 4). 
 (6) Proponents must be an incorporated non-profit society in good standing or a Qual-

ified Donee as defined by Canada Revenue Agency, or must partner with an organ-
ization that has registered society status. 

 (7) Project evaluation by the Technical Advisory Committee includes consideration of 
conservation value for money. 

 (8) Proposals should reflect continuity with the Biodiversity Conservation Strategy 
Keeping Nature in Our Future. 

 (9) If invited, proponents must be prepared to make a 10-minute presentation to the 
Technical Advisory Committee or the RDOS on the outcomes of their projects on 
an annual basis, in addition to submitting written interim and final reports.  

 (10) Project proponents will receive 70% of the grant upon signing a contribution agree-
ment and 30% upon completion of the approved final report.  Land securement 
proponents will receive 100% of the grant upon signing a contribution agreement. 

 (11) All significant changes to a workplan and more than 10% reallocation of budget 
must be approved by the RDOS, upon recommendation from the Technical Advi-
sory Committee. Minor workplan adjustments, and changes under 10% may be ap-
proved administratively.  

 (12) Fund recognition. Proponents are required to acknowledge in all communications 
products including publications, public information releases, advertising, promo-
tional announcements, activities, speeches, lectures, interviews, ceremonies and 
website materials related to the project, including on permanent signage. The 
RDOS and SOCF logos must appear on all communications and promotional ma-
terials.  

 
 



RDOS CONSERVATION FUND 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

APPENDIX 1 
INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 

 
The following types of projects will not be considered for funding: 
 

(a) Existing federal, provincial or local government responsibilities; 

(b) Capacity building or operating only expenses for organizations; 

(c) Projects with recreational benefits only; 

(d) Community infrastructure services; 

(e) Lobbying or advocacy initiatives; 

(f) Wildlife feeding programs; 

(g) Non-applied research (research not related to a conservation action goal); 

(h) Training costs for contractors; 

(i) Enforcement activities; 

(j) Fish rearing, farming, stocking or hatchery projects; 

(k) *Rehabilitation, captive breeding or control of wildlife species; 

(l) *Mapping only projects; 

(m) *Inventory only projects; 

(n) *Planning only projects; 

(o) *Education only projects;  

(p)(o) Fishing and hunting tour or curriculum guides; 

(q)(p) Information projects on regulations or stocking; 

(r) Conferences; 

(s)(q) Production or sponsorship of commercial programs; 

(t) *Interpretive services; 

(u)(r) *Creation or management of electronic databases, websites or file systems. 

 
*These activities will be considered if they are part of an eligible project that will lead to ‘on-the-
ground’ implementation or if they provide knowledge which is vital to achieving the overall objec-
tives of the Fund. 
 
*RDOS and member municipalities will not release personal information or contravene the Per-
sonal Information Protection Act. Proponents are encouraged to access the BC Assessment and 
Land Title and Survey Authority system for ownership information and any costs associated 
should be built into the project budget.  
 
 
  

Commented [CM2]: I have had someone ask if this is inter-
pretive with respect to language or more to do with explanatory 
signage. Should we elaborate? 

Commented [BW3]: I think we can remove conferences 
and interpretive services – its confusing and has been a non-is-
sue.  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 11 of 16 

SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
 The purpose of the Technical Advisory Committee (“the Committee”) is to ensure that: 
 
 (a) All proposals to the Fund receive a sound technical review based on a fair assessment 

of merit and project effectiveness; 
 (b) There is a high level of accountability in the review process; and 
 (c) Recommended lists of technically appropriate proposals are provided to the RDOS. 
 
2. COMPOSITION 
 
 The Committee will be comprised of five to seven members with relevant education and 

expertise in each theme area of hydrology, ecology, conservation biology, ecosystems (sen-
sitive terrestrial and aquatic ecosystems, management, enhancement and restoration), res-
toration and enhancement of habitat, fish and wildlife conservation including species at risk. 
To ensure consistency and continuity, some members may be asked to serve on the Com-
mittee in consecutive years.  Quorum for the Technical Advisory Committee shall be 3.  

 
3. PROPOSAL RANKING GUIDELINES 
 

(a) Each proposal will be independently reviewed by each Committee member and be 
rated on what is submitted by the proponent. 

(b) The Committee will only review proposals on their technical merit, feasibility and effec-
tiveness. 

(c) Experts in fields related to the activities within proposals may be consulted as neces-
sary. 

(d) Each proposal will be discussed collectively and Committee members will have an op-
portunity to change their scores based on input from other members. 

(e) Scores from each Committee member will be used to determine the final evaluation 
score for the proposal. The proposals will be ranked from highest to lowest score. 

(f) New funding proposals will be rated on whether they meet the Fund criteria and if the 
project should be considered for funding. For continuing projects, ratings will be based 
on whether the project should be continued and whether it continues to meet the crite-
ria. 

(g) The Committee chair will sign the ranked list, and the Committee’s comments will then 
be forwarded to the RDOS in a summary report. 

(h) The consultant retained by the RDOS to oversee the administrative management will 
participate in the technical review process but will not rank proposals or influence the 
TAC; will provide additional file information as requested by the Committee members 
before and at review meetings; and will be available to answer questions from the 
RDOS on behalf of the Committee. 

 
4. TECHNICAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 
  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 12 of 16 

 4.1 New Projects 
 
  (a) Feasibility (i.e., is the project doable – Yes or No) 
 

 Is the overall proposal well written? 
 Are the objectives clearly defined? 
 Are the techniques and methods proposed the most appropriate ones to 

address the threat? 
 Does the proponent clearly understand the challenges they may face in 

completing the project? 
 Has the proponent demonstrated that the project will be able to overcome 

these challenges? 
 Are the proposed timelines reasonable? 
 Do the proponents have the capacity to deliver the project? 
 If applicable, are plans in place to get required permits or authorizations? 
 Have any possible negative implications or effects on other targets been 

identified and minimized? 
 
   Based on the answers to the above questions, rank the feasibility of the project 

from 0-10 with 10 being the highest ranking. 
 
  (b) Cost Effectiveness (Yes or No) 
 

 Is there value for the funding being requested? 
 Are the benefits as described in the proposal in line with the cost of the 

project? 
 Are the project budget and in-kind rates realistic? 

 
   Based on the answers to the above questions, rank the cost effectiveness of 

the project from 0-5 with 5 being the highest ranking. 
 

(c) Outside Participation / Cost Sharing (Yes or No) 
 

 Do the proposed activities involve other agencies and organizations? 
 Does the project leverage funds from other sources? 

 
   Based on the answers to the above questions, rank the leverage potential of 

the project from 0-5 with 5 being the highest ranking. 
 

(d) Project Effectiveness (i.e., is the project worth doing?) 
 

 Is there a clearly demonstrated ability for the results of this project to reduce 
an identified threat (IUCN) to a biodiversity target? 

 Is the project outside of the realm of regular government responsibilities? 
 Is the project rationale science-based and do the results move us from re-

active conservation to prevention using appropriate management actions? 
 Does the project build on conservation measures from relevant strategies 

including Keeping Nature in our Future? 
 Does the project align conservation investments, priorities, and actions 

among conservation partners and stakeholders? 
 Is there an evaluation of project benefit or other measurables or indicators 

identified in the proposal? 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 13 of 16 

 Is there a clearly described extension component of the project (e.g., com-
municating results to the community, resource managers, workshops, re-
ports, presentations, etc.)? 

 
   Based on the answers to the above questions, rank the effectiveness of the 

project from 0-20 with 20 being the highest ranking. 
 

(e) Other Comments 
 

 Are there any other technical concerns? 
 Are there any technical conditions to funding? 
 Are there any other general comments from reviewers? 

 
 
 4.2 Multi-Year, Continuing Projects 
 
  Each Committee member answers Yes or No to the following criteria and on whether 

the project should continue to be funded.  Continuing projects have undergone an 
extensive review to receive original approval; therefore, no evaluation score is 
needed.  

 
   
 
  (a) Progress to Date 
 

 Has there been satisfactory progress to date in terms of the project’s 
scheduled activities? 

 Does the proposal build on past accomplishments? 
 If difficulties arose in the previous or current year, will they affect proposal 

activities? 
 Should the proposal be modified to address any problems arising from the 

previous year? 
 Are any budget changes justified? 

 
  (b) Overall Evaluation 
 

 Should the project continue to be funded? 
 Are there any conditions to continued funding? 
 Does the scope still continue to meet the criteria? 

 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 14 of 16 

SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST GUIDELINES 

 
 
1. GENERAL GUIDELINES 
 

(a) Technical Advisory Committee (“Committee”) members will act at all times with honesty 
and in good faith, for the public interest. 

(b) The conduct and language of Committee members will be free from any discrimination 
or harassment prohibited by the Human Rights Code of Canada. 

(c) The conduct of Committee members will reflect social standards of courtesy, respect, 
and dignity. 

 
 
2. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 

(a) Committee members will not reveal or divulge confidential information (defined as that 
which cannot be obtained from other sources) received in the course of Committee 
duties. 

(b) Confidential information must not be used for any purposes outside that of undertaking 
the work of the Committee. 

(b)(c) Committee members shall refrain from discussing a proposal with anyone, includ-
ing the proponent. Committee members and proponents must direct questions, con-
cerns, clarifications to the Fund Administrator.  

 
 
3. DUTY TO INFORM 
 

(a) Committee members will disclose any perceived or real conflict of interest which may 
have a negative or harmful effect on their ability to perform the duties required of the 
appointment or the reputation of the Committee.  The member will advise all other 
members and staff, in writing (email accepted), well in advance of the Committee meet-
ing: (a) that there is a potential conflict; (b) the nature and scope of the conflict; and (c) 
the specific project to which the conflict may apply. 

(b) Upon disclosure of any conflict, the Committee member shall leave the meeting during 
the discussion of such proposals. 

 
4. STATEMENT OF INTENT 
 

(a) Participation in Committee work should not result in any personal or private financial or 
other substantive gain.  

(b) Members of the Committee will avoid any conflict of interest that may impair or impugn 
the independence, integrity or impartiality of the RDOS. 

(c) There shall be no apprehension of bias based on what a reasonably knowledgeable 
and informed observer might perceive of the actions of the Committee or the actions of 
an individual member of the Committee. 



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 15 of 16 

 
 
 
5. PRACTICAL CONSIDERATION IN DETERMINING CONFLICT 
 

(a) Activities undertaken as a citizen must be kept separate and distinct from any respon-
sibilities held as a member of the Committee. 

(b) Activities undertaken as a Committee member must be kept separate and distinct from 
other activities as a citizen. 

(c) Other memberships, directorships, voluntary or paid positions, or affiliations remain dis-
tinct from work undertaken in the course of Committee work. 

(d) Committee members will not assist anyone in their dealings with the Committee if this 
may result in advantageous treatment or the perception of advantageous treatment by 
a reasonably knowledgeable and informed observer. 

(e) Actions taken in the course of Committee duties can neither cause nor suggest to a 
reasonably knowledgeable and informed observer that members’ ability to exercise 
those duties has or could be affected by private gain or interest. 

(f) All personal financial interests, assets, and holdings must be kept distinct from and 
independent of any decision, information or other matter that may be heard by or acted 
upon by the Committee. 

(g) Personal employment shall not be dependent on any decision, information or other 
matter that may be heard by or acted upon by the Committee. If such a situation arises, 
Committee members must disclose to the Committee any involvement in a proposal or 
issue before the proposal or issue is discussed by the Committee. Members will leave 
the meeting during discussion of the project. 

 
 

 
DECLARATION 
 
I hereby acknowledge that I have read and considered the conflict of interest guidelines for Tech-
nical Advisory Committee members of the South Okanagan Conservation Fund and agree to 
conduct myself in accordance with these guidelines. 
 
Name of Committee Member (print) _______________________________ 
 
Signature of Committee Member _______________________________ 
 
Date Signed _______________________________ 
 
 
  



 
RDOS South Okanagan Conservation Fund 
Terms of Reference  Page 16 of 16 

SOUTH OKANAGAN CONSERVATION FUND 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

APPENDIX 4 
 

DEFINITIONS  
 

1. Fund Administrator means RDOS manager, employee or contracted administrator acting 
on behalf of the RDOS.  
 

2. Project means a singular, focused endeavour to deliver a tangible output with a defined 
time frame and budget. The components are specific and exact, and the scope and goals 
are well-defined. Projects are normally focused on achieving tangible outcomes and re-
sults.  
 

3. Program means coordinated management of two or more projects which are managed 
and delivered as a single package. Different projects complement each other to assist the 
program in achieving its overall objectives; the benefits provided by a program depend on 
the collective benefits of its projects.  Programs often take a longer time to complete than 
a project and are generally focused on generating broad organizational or technical ben-
efits and may include elements of on-going operational work.  
 

4. Qualified Donee is determined by the Canada Revenue Agency and means organizations 
that are registered and can issue official donation receipts for gifts they receive from indi-
viduals and corporations under the Income Tax Act. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Thursday, August 19, 2021 

1:45 p.m. 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
THAT the Agenda for the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting of August 
19, 2021 be adopted. 

 

B. MINUTES  
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
THAT the July 22, 2021 Minutes of the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board 
meeting be adopted. 

 

C. 101-437 MARTIN STREET DESIGNATION  
a. Letter 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority)   
THAT the Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District request Interior Health to pursue the 
designation of “health facility” for the Penticton Urgent and Primary Care Centre for the purposes of 
the Hospital District Act. and,  

THAT the Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District approve funding of $1.0M and capital 
bylaw approvals subject to the Penticton Urgent and Primary Care Centre qualifying as a designated 
facility pursuant to the Hospital District Act. 

 

B. ADJOURNMENT 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board (OSRHD) 
of Directors held at 2:45 p.m. on Thursday, July 22, 2021, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, British Columbia. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Vice Chair S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 

 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director J. D’Andrea, Alt. Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director. J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting of July 22, 
2021 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. MINUTES  
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the May 20, 2021 Minutes of the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting 
be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

C. INTERIOR HEALTH UPDATE  
 

 
  

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 



OSRHD Board Meeting 2 July 22, 2021 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn.  - CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:52 p.m. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
J. Sentes 
OSRHD Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 

Https://Rdos.Escribemeetings.Com/Reports/101-437 Martin Street Designation.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital Board 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   101-437 Martin Street Designation 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District request Interior Health to pursue the 
designation of “health facility” for the Penticton Urgent and Primary Care Centre for the purposes 
of the Hospital District Act. and, 
 
THAT the Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District approve funding of $1.0M and capital 
bylaw approvals subject to the Penticton Urgent and Primary Care Centre qualifying as a 
designated facility pursuant to the Hospital District Act. 
 
Purpose: 

To clarify wording for the Ministry of Health for the designation of the Urgent & Primary Care 
Centre at 101-437 Martin Street. 
 
Reference: 
• OSRHD resolution from 6 May 2021 
• IHA comment on our letter of 11 May requesting designation 
 
Background: 

At their meeting of 6 May 2021, the OSRHD Board of Directors adopted the following resolution: 
 
"THAT should #101 - 437 Martin Street be designated a hospital, that the request for $1,000,000 to 
assist with the funding of an Urgent & Primary Care Centre be approved, with funding to come 
from the Hospital Reserve." 
 
This wording was not acceptable the the Ministry of Health and they have proposed an amendment 
to the resolution. 
 

 



I 0 N

11 May 2021

Sylvia Weir
Chief Financial Officer
Interior Health Authority
505 Doyle Ave
Kelowna, BC
V1YOC5

Dear Ms. Weir:

RE: Designation Under Section 49 of the Hospital District Act

The Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District (OSRHD) Board of Directors has
received a request from the Interior Health Authority (IHA) to fund 40% of a project that is
constructed and operating in Penticton, but is not yet a designated facility under the Schedule
(as amended from time to time) to the Hospital District Act.

At their meeting of 6 May 2021, the OSRHD Board of Directors adopted the following resolution:

"THAT should #101 - 437 Martin Street be designated a hospital, that the request for $1,000,000 to
assist with the funding of an Urgent & Primary Care Centre be approved, with funding to come
from the Hospital Reserve."

The Hospital District Act, Section 20 (1) only allows hospital districts to fund hospitals and
hospital facilities, as defined in Part 1 - Definitions. Under Section 49 of the Hospital District
Act, the Minister may designate an institution or facility in the health field as a health facility for
the purposes of the Act.

The Penticton Urgent Primary Care Centre is not yet designated, but we would suggest that it
be submitted to the Minister for consideration.

The following information pertains to the facility and project for which funding has been
approved, subject to the designation being obtained:

Penticton Urgent Primary Ca^re Centre:

Address

Legal Description

Function

100-437 Martin Street, Penticton BC V2A 5L1

Lot 1 Plan KAP49078 District Lot 4 Land District 7 Land District 54 &
OF DL 202, PID: 018-109-152

A community based non-emergent care centre for all people living in
the South Okanagan Similkameen area, which will allow patients to
access urgent care while not having to visit acute care facility
emergency departments. Longitudinal primary care services will also
be provided at this facility to support the underserved population
living in the region. The designation applies to the entire facility.

101 MARTIN ST, PENTICTON, BC V2A 5J9 TEL: 250.492.0237 FAX: 250.492.0063 TOLL FREE: 877.61 0.3737 EMAIL: info@rdos.bc.ca

goud
Highlight

goud
Sticky Note
Within Section 49 of the Hospital District Act, the designation type is for a "Health Facility" and not a "Hospital".  The MoH needs to see the wording changed to "Health Facility" to be in alignment with the act.



I 0 N I T A

So, the request for OSRHD to contribute 40% of the project was approved; but is conditional on
the facility being designated as a "hospital" under the Hospital Act by the Minister. Only this will
trigger our ability to contribute funds in compliance with the Hospital District Act.

Sincerely,

Bill Newell
CAO

c. Judy Sentes, Chair, Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District
Sue McKortoff, Vice-Chair, Okanagan Similkameen Regional Hospital District
Dan Goughnour, IHA Corporate Director, Business Operations - South
Carl Meadows, IHA Executive Director, Clinical Operations Acute

101 MARTIN ST, PENTICTON, BC V2A 5J9 TEL: 250.492.0237 FAX: 250.492.0063 TOLL FREE: 877.61 0.3737 EMAIL; info@rdos.bc.ca

goud
Highlight

goud
Sticky Note
The MoH flagged concern on the wording used to express how funding is subject to designation.  It feels like a chicken and the egg scenario to me.  The Board can approve funding, but it can't be released until the designation is approved, so it might as well be subject to designation.The MoH made reference to wording used by CORHD in their recent request to designate the West Kelowna UPCC.  They were comfortable with it.  I'll paste the wording into the email this document is attached to.



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of August 19, 2021 be adopted. 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

a. Electoral Area “A” Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – July 12, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the July 12, 2021 Electoral Area “A” Advisory Planning Commission be 
received. 
 

b. Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – July 12, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the July 12, 2021 Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission be 
received. 
 

c. Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – July 26, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the July 26, 2021 Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission be 
received. 
 

d. Electoral Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – April 20, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the April 20, 2021 Electoral Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission be 
received. 
 

e. Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes – July 20, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the July 20, 2021 Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission be received. 

 
f. Corporate Services Committee – July 22, 2021 

THAT the minutes of the July 22, 2021 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

g. Corporate Services Committee – August 5, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the August 5, 2021 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

h. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – August 5, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the August 5, 2021 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

i. Protective Services Committee – August 5, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the August 5, 2021 Protective Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

j. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – August 5, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the August 5, 2021 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 2 August 19, 2021 
 

 
k. Electoral Area “D” Service and Boundary Configuration Committee Minutes – July 14, 2021 

THAT the minutes of the July 14, 2021 Electoral Area “D” Service and Boundary Configuration 
Committee be received. 
 

l. Electoral Area “G” Official Community Plan Citizen’s Advisory Committee Appointments 
THAT Cindy Regier and Roger Mayer be appointed to the Electoral Area “G” Official Community 
Plan (OCP) Project Citizen’s Advisory Committee. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. 
 

 
2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  

a. Development Variance Permit Application – 4575 Mill Road, Electoral Area “E” 
i. Permit 
THAT Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP to subdivide 4575 Mill Road, Naramata 
into two lots be approved. 
 

b. Development Variance Permit Application – 425 Matheson Road, Electoral Area “D” 
i. Permit 
THAT Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030-DVP to allow for the construction of a 
garage at 425 Matheson Road in Electoral Area “D” be approved. 
 

c. Temporary Use Permit Application – 130 Hallis Road, Electoral Area “A” 
i. Permit 

ii. Representations 
THAT Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP to renew an existing TUP for an “outdoor 
commercial event venue” in Electoral Area “A” be approved. 

 
d. Development Variance Permit Application – 135 Towers Road, Eastgate, Electoral Area “H” 

i. Permit 
THAT Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP to allow for the development of a new 
dwelling unit at 135 Towers Road, Eastgate, be approved. 

 
e. Temporary Use Permit Application – 3180 Bartlett Road, Electoral Area “E” 

i. Permit 
ii. Representations 
THAT Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP to allow for a vacation rental at 3180 Bartlett 
Road in Electoral Area “E”, be approved. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. City of Penticton Referral – Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment – 955 Timmins Street 

 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District has no objection to the proposed 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment involving part of the property at 955 Timmins Street 
to “Urban Residential”. 



RDOS Board Meeting 3 August 19, 2021 
 

 
 
 

2. City of Penticton Referral – Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment – 877 Westminster 
Avenue West 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District has no objection to the Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment involving the property at 877 Westminster Avenue 
West to “Urban Residential”. 
 
 

3. Letter of Concurrence (Telus) – Smethurst Road/Cottonwood Lane, Electoral Area “E” 
a. Representations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Regional District send a “Letter of Concurrence” to Innovation, Science, and Economic 
Development Canada for proposed telecommunication tower BCB576 to be located near 
Smethurst Road & Cottonwood Lane; with two conditions: 

1. That the tower not be lighted except for safety lights; and, 
2. That the tower receive an exterior coating to blend into the surrounding natural setting 

 
 

4. Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Subdivision) – 8310 2nd Avenue, Electoral Area “A” 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the application to the Agricultural Land Commission to permit a 2-lot subdivision on a parcel 
located at 8310 2nd Avenue in Electoral Area “A” (Lot 640, Plan KAP1950, District Lot 2450S, 
SDYD, Except Plan B3527 3705 5125 B7120, Manufactured Home Reg.# 34560) not be 
“authorized” to proceed. 
 
 

5. Development Variance Permit Application – 1135 Jonathan Drive, Electoral Area F 
a. Permit 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP, being an application to construct an over 
height garage in the front parcel line setback at 1135 Jonathan Drive in West Bench, be denied. 
 
 

6. Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 On-site Sewage Disposal 
System Requirements 
a. Bylaw No. 2000.13 
b. Bylaw No. 927 (to be repealed) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 
2000.13, 2021, being an amendment to revise onsite sewage disposal system requirements, be 
read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 4 August 19, 2021 
 

 
 

7. Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 Documentation 
requirements for confirming a water service 
a. Bylaw No. 2000.14 
 
RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021, being an amendment of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw to clarify 
the requirements for confirming a source of water has been provided for new parcels, be read a 
first, second and third time and be adopted. 
 
 

8. Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 for Documentation 
requirements for confirming a sewage disposal system 
a. Bylaw No. 2000.15 
 
RECOMMENDATION 11 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021, being a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
to amend the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw to clarify the requirements for confirming a connection 
to sewage disposal for new parcels, be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 

 
 
C. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

 
1. 2021 Schedule of Special Meetings 

 
RECOMMENDATION 12 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Fall Schedule of Special Meetings be approved as presented.  

· Thursday November 4, 2021 – Legislative Workshop / Inaugural Meeting (full day)  
· Friday November 12, 2021 –Budget Committee Meeting #1 (full day)  
· Friday November 19, 2021 –Budget Committee Meeting #2 (full day)  
· Wednesday November 24, 2021 – Strategic Planning (evening only) with Gordon McIntosh  
· Thursday November 25, 2021 – Strategic Planning (full day) with Gordon McIntosh. 

 
 

D. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 

 
 

2. Declaration of State of Local Emergency Approvals - to be provided at meeting 
 
 

E. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 5 August 19, 2021 
 

 
2. Board Representation 

a. Developing Sustainable Rural Practice Communities - McKortoff 
b. Municipal Finance Authority – Kozakevich (Chair), Coyne (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
c. Municipal Insurance Association – Kozakevich (Chair), Coyne (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
d. Okanagan Basin Water Board - McKortoff, Holmes, Knodel, Pendergraft (Alternate to McKortoff), 

Obirek (Alternate to Holmes), Monteith (Alternate to Knodel) 
e. Okanagan Film Commission – Gettens, Obirek (Alternate) 
f. Okanagan Regional Library – Monteith, Obirek (Alternate) 
g. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board – Bush, Kozakevich (Alternate) 
h. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association – Knodel, Kozakevich (Alternate) 
i. Starling Control – Bush, Knodel (Alternate) 
j. Fire Chief Liaison Committee – Pendergraft, Knodel, Monteith, Obirek, Roberts 
k. Intergovernmental Indigenous Joint Council – Kozakevich, Coyne, Roberts 
 
 

3. Directors Motions 
a. Director’s Motion – Director Gettens 

THAT the Director’s Motion “THAT Administration present to the Board for discussion the 
findings from the exit interviews of recently departed staff before the 2022 budget discussions 
begin” be referred to Administration for analysis of the feasibility, legislative compliance and 
budget impacts. 
 
 

b. Director’s Motion – Director Obirek 
THAT the Director’s Motion “THAT there be a moratorium on cannabis retail applications in 
Electoral Area “D” pending the review and potential amendment coming from that review” be 
referred to Administration for analysis of the feasibility, legislative compliance and budget 
impacts. 

 
 

4. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
F. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Minutes 

Electoral Area "A" Advisory Planning Commission 

Meeting Monday July 12, 2021 

Present: 

Members: Peter Beckett (chair), Manfred Freese, Grant Montgomery, Dwayne Svendsen, 
Jim Thornton, Director Mark Pendergraft, Bill Plaskett (recording secretary) 

Staff: Chris Garrish, Fiona Titley 

Delegate: Applicant, Rob Burk 

1. Meeting called to Order at 7:00 PM 

2. Moved & seconded that the minutes of the last meeting be adopted — carried 

3. Moved & seconded that the agenda be adopted — carried 

4. Introduction of the application to renew an existing temporary use permit for an 
"outdoor commercial event venue". 

5. Chris Garrish gave an overview of the TUP. 

6. There was discussion of the issue of fire protection in the area and on this site as 
well 

7. It was moved & seconded that the APC recommend to the RDOS Board of Directors 
that the proposed temporary use permit be approved. The vote was unanimous in 
favour. 

8. Meeting was adjourned at 7:09 PM 



9. After the meeting was adjourned, there was discussion among the APC about ending 
meetings by WEBEX. 

Recording secretary; Bill Plaskett 



Present:  

Members:    Don Mancell (as Chair), Heather Fleck, Dianna Smith,   
   Maureen Redman, Debbie Selwood, Adrienne Fedrigo 

Absent:   Richard Roskell (Chair, Electoral Area ‘E’ APC) 

Staff:    Fiona Titley (RDOS Planner I)    

Guests:   Karla Kozakevich (RDOS Area ‘E’ Director),                             

Recording Secretary:  Heather Lemieux 

Delegates:   Colin Martin, Rosemary Renstad left meeting at 7:24 p.m. 

Minutes 
Electoral Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning 
Commission 
Meeting of Monday, July 12, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

RDOS WebEx, Naramata, BC 

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

The meeting was called to order at 7:07 p.m. Quorum Present.

1.1 MOTION 

That the Agenda for the Electoral Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission 
(APC) meeting of July 12, 2021 be adopted as presented.                                                                                       

 CARRIED

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded That the Minutes of the June 14, 2021, Electoral 
Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting be adopted as 
presented.  

CARRIED

Minutes of the Electoral Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of July 12, 2021 
   Page  of 3 1



3. DELEGATIONS 

3.1 Currie & Schaefer – Temporary Use Permit Application – E2021.018-TUP 

3.2  Hohmann – Temporary Use Permit Aplication – E2021.011-TUP 

4. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

4.1 Temporary Use Permit – E2021.018-TUP 
Admistrative Report Submitted by Fiona Titley, Planner I 

MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded in favour of Option 1. THAT the APC 
recommends to the RDOS Board of Directors that the proposed temporary 
use be approved. 5 in Favour; 1 Against. 

CARRIED 

4.2 Temporary Use Permit – E2021.011-TUP 
Administrative Report submitted by Fiona Titley, Planner I 

MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded in favour of Option 1. THAT the APC 
recommends to the RDOS Board of Directors that the proposed temporary 
use be approved. 5 in Favour; 1 Against. 

CARRIED 

5. OTHER

5.1 General Discussion Item 
Vacation Rental Temporary Use Permits (TUPs) 

One APC member raised concerns about the number of vacation rentals 
contributing to housing issues in the community for young families.  

Discussed the Official Community Plan (OCP), zoning, the difference 
between incorporated and unincorporated communities, housing 
affordability, property values, and the complaint process. This topic was 
discussed at length.

6. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the meeting be adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 

CARRIED

Minutes of the Electoral Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of July 12, 2021 
   Page  of 3 2



       

Don Mancell, as Chair of the Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission    

       

Advisory Planning Commission Recording Secretary / minute taker

Next Meeting — August 9, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.  

                         Location TBD

Minutes of the Electoral Area ‘E’ Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of July 12, 2021 
   Page  of 3 3



Present:  

Members:    Brad Hills (Chair, Electoral Area “F” APC), Rick Hatch,   
   Margaret Holm, Gerry Lalonde 

Absent:   Galina Pentecost, Don Barron, Richard Johnson,              
    Mike Stokker 

Staff:    Fiona Titley (RDOS Planner I), Nikita Kheterpal (RDOS   
    Planner I)    

Guests:   Riley Gettens, Director, Electoral Area “F”                            

Recording Secretary:  Heather Lemieux, via transcription  

Delegates:   Wojciech Artymowicz 

Minutes 
Electoral Area “F" Advisory Planning 
Commission 
Meeting of Monday, July 26, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

RDOS WebEx, Penticton, BC 

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

The meeting was called to order at 7:04 p.m. Quorum Present.

1.1 MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded That the Agenda for the Electoral Area “F” 
Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting of July 26, 2021 be adopted as 
presented.                                                                                      

 CARRIED

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded That the Minutes of the March 22, 2021 
Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting be adopted 
as presented.  

CARRIED

Minutes of the Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of July 26, 2021 
   Page  of 2 1



       

Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission Chair   

       

Advisory Planning Commission Recording Secretary / minute taker

3. DELEGATIONS 

3.1 Artymowicz, Urszula & Wojciech – Development Variance Permit – 
F2021-026-DVP 

4. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

4.1 Development Variance Permit Application - F2021-026-DVP Administrative 
Report submitted by Fiona Titley, Planner I 

MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded in favour of Option 1. THAT the APC 
recommends to the RDOS Board of Directors that the proposed temporary 
use be approved. 3 in Favour; 1 Against; 1 Against via proxy. 

CARRIED 

5. OTHER

None

6. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the meeting be adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

CARRIED

Next Meeting — August 23, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.  

                         Location TBD

Minutes of the Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of July 26, 2021 
   Page  of 2 2



Minutes of the Electoral Area ‘H’ Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of April 20 2021 
 Page 1 of 2 

Minutes 
Electoral Area ‘H’ Advisory Planning Commission 

Meeting of April 20, 2021 
7:00 p.m.  

Location: https://rdos.webex.com / 1-833-311-4101 
(Meeting Number : 146 651 9274/ Password: RD@S) 

Present: 

Director: Bob Coyne 

Members:  Ole Juul (Chair) Rob Miller (Vice-Chair) 

Gail Smart Lynn Smyth 

Marg Reichert Tom Rushworth (Recording Secretary) 

Absent: 

Staff:  JoAnn Peachey, Planner I 

Recording Secretary:  Tom Rushworth  

Delegates:  Michael & Veanna Faye – (Not 

Present) 
1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:15 p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MOTION

It was Moved and Seconded that the Agenda be adopted.

CARRIED 

2. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

MOTION

It was Moved and Seconded by the APC that the Minutes of February 16, 2021 be deferred. 

CARRIED 

https://rdos.webex.com/


Minutes of the Electoral Area ‘H’ Advisory Planning Commission Meeting of April 20 2021 
 Page 2 of 2 

3. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

3.1 Development Application – H2021.010-DVP 

Delegate Michael & Veanna Faye - not present. 

Discussion. 

MOTION 
It was Moved and Seconded that the APC recommends to the RDOS Board that the subject 
Development Application be denied. 

CARRIED 

4. REFERRALS

4.1 

5. AMENDMENT BYLAWS

5.1 

6. OTHER

7. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION

It was Moved and Seconded that the meeting be adjourned at 7:21 p.m. pm.

CARRIED 

Advisory Planning Commission Chair  

Advisory Planning Commission Recording Secretary / minute taker 



Minutes of the Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting of July 20, 2021 
   Page 1  

 

 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

KALEDEN PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES 

JULY 20, 2021 

Meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

Via Webex 

 

 

 

Present:  Ms. S. Monteith, Director, Electoral Area “I”  

Members: Dave Gill (Chair), Jaynie Malloy, Rick Johnson, Marie-Eve Lamarche, 
Margaret O’Brien 

Absent:  Debbie Shillito (Vice Chair), Randy Cranston 

 
Staff:   N/A 

 
Recording Secretary: Margaret O’Brien  

 

Delegates / Guests: Peter Arbic 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 The meeting was called to order at 6:31 p.m. 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 RECOMMENDATION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the Agenda of July 20, 2021 be adopted with additions. 

CARRIED 

2. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

2.1 RECOMMENDATION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the Minutes for Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission 
Meeting of June 15, 2021 be approved with amendments discussed. 

CARRIED 

  

 

 



Minutes of the Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting of July 20, 2021 
   Page 2  

 

3. CORRESPONDENCE/DELEGATIONS 

3.1 

 

 

  

  

 

Community member Peter Arbic attended to request Commission address multi-use safety concerns, 
primarily boat moorings, at Public Access Points on Alder Ave.   

RECOMMENDATION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the Kal-Rec Commission allows Mr. Arbic to bring his concerns to 
the floor. 

                                                                                                                                                                  CARRIED 

As staff were unable to attend the meeting due to the ongoing wildfire emergency, the Commission 
would like to request RDOS staff look into the following queries and report back to the Commission 
at a later date: 

1) What is the definition of a Public Access area; i.e. what is it supposed to be used for/look like, etc.   

2) As this area is a mixed recreational use/multi-water sports use area;  i.e. kite surfers, 
paddleboards, kayaks, out-riggers, swimmers, boat moorings, are there any options, guidelines, 
rules/regulations that ensure everyone has safe, unobstructed access to the lake. 

3) Enquire why boats with engines are still allowed to be moored between Pioneer Park and the 
Hotel/1912/Riparian Public Access area along Ponderosa & Alder, if they are in the Kaleden Irrigation 
District “red zone”. 

4) What have other jurisdictions in the Regional District done with regards to boat moorings along 
their shores, in/close to their Public Access areas? Have they come up with any possible solutions 
that we may be able to utilize? 

 

4. RDOS STAFF REPORTS 

4.1      None 

5. COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS 

5.1 None 

6. RDOS DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

6.1 None  

7. BUSINESS ARISING 

7.1 

 

 

None 

                                                                                                                            



Minutes of the Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting of July 20, 2021 
   Page 3  

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 RECOMMENDATION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the meeting be adjourned at 7:18 pm. 

CARRIED 

 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  August 17, 2021 

 

      _____________ 

Chair, Kaleden Parks and Recreation Commission     

 

       

Recording Secretary 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, July 22, 2021 
9:01 a.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C”  
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  

 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director J. D’Andrea, Alt. Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of July 22, 2021 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
B. Social Media Workshop 

1. Jan Enns Presentation 
The Committee was led through a discussion of the benefits, pitfalls and best practices of use of social 
media platforms for local government officials. 

 
 
C. Procedure Bylaw Amendment 

1. Bylaw No. 2789.01 
 

RECOMMENDATION 2  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2789.01, being a bylaw to amend the Board Procedure Bylaw, be read a first, second 
and third time and be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
  



Corporate Services Committee 2 July 22, 2021 
 
 
D. Board Remuneration Bylaw Amendment 

1. Bylaw No. 2903, 2020 
2. Bylaw No. 2903.01, 2021 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2903.01, 2021, being a bylaw to amend the Board Remuneration, Expense and Benefits 
Bylaw to facilitate electronic attendance at the same rate as in-person attendance, be read a first, 
second and third time and be adopted. - CARRIED 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT a review of the Board Remuneration, Expenses and Benefits Bylaw be initiated in 2021. - CARRIED  
 
Opposed: Directors Monteith, Holmes, Watt, Robinson, Vassilaki, Bush 

 
 

E. Q2 Activity Report 
The Committee was advised of the activities of the second quarter of 2021 and the planned activities for 
the third quarter. 

 
 
F. Q2 Variance Report  

The Committee reviewed the financial position of the organization as at June 30, 2021. 
 
 
G. Q2 Corporate Business Plan Report  

The Committee reviewed the Corporate Business Plan. 
 

 
H. 2021 Risk Management Plan  

1. Risk Management Registry 
The Committee was presented the 2021 Enterprise Risk Register.  Mitigation plans will be developed for 
all high and moderate risks and then re-rated to determine if the risk level has changed. 

 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn. - CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:52 a.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, August 5, 2021 
9:02 a.m.  

 
MINUTES 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C”  
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 

 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton 
Director S. Philpott-Adhikary, Alt. Village of Keremeos 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos  

STAFF PRESENT: 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
D. Francisco, Manager of Information Services 

 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of August 5, 2021 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. CivicReady and Transition to Voyent Alert – For Information Only 
1. CivicReady Groups and Posts 
2. CivicReady Communications Plan 
The Committee was advised that the current mass notification system used by the RDOS is no longer 
able to support its Canadian clients.  With the existing contract set to expire November 2021, the RDOS 
is seeking to establish services through a Canadian-based mass notification system company. 

 
 

C. Information Systems Security Assessment – For Information Only 
1. Security Assessment Overview 
The Committee was provided a summary of the 2020 cyber attack. 

 
 

  



Corporate Services Committee 2 August 5, 2021 
 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn. - CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:51 a.m. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 
 
 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, August 5, 2021 
10:40 a.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Vice Chair G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton  
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 

 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director K. Robinson,  City of Penticton  
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton 
Director S. Philpott-Adhikary, Alt. Village of Keremeos 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos  

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of August 5, 2021 be 
adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. PROPOSED ENERGY PROGRAM – For Information Only 
a. Jeremy Dresner - Senior Energy Specialist 

Mr. Dresner provided an overview of the Climate Action projects currently being undertaken by the 
Regional District. 

 
 

C. ADJOURNMENT 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn. - CARRIED 

The meeting adjourned at 11:10 a.m. 

APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
R. Gettens 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Protective Services Committee 

Thursday, August 5, 2021 
9:52 a.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Vice Chair S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 

 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton 
Director S. Philpott-Adhikary, Alt. Village of Keremeos 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Protective Services Meeting of August 5, 2021 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTRE REPORT – For Information Only 
The Committee was provided an update on the work of the Emergency Operation Centre in support of 
the wildfires within the Regional District. 

 
 

C. ADJOURNMENT 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn. - CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:40 a.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
T. Roberts 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board of 
Directors held at 11:15 a.m. on Thursday, August 5, 2021 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, British 
Columbia. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland  
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 

 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
Director C. Watt, City of Penticton  
Director S. Philpott-Adhikary, Alt. Village of Keremeos 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of August 5, 2021 be adopted as amended by: 

• Adding Item E.1. Declaration of State of Local Emergency Approval; and, 
• Moving Item A.1.f. Corporate Services Committee Meeting Minutes from the Consent Agenda to 

Item D.4.  
CARRIED 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Electoral Area “A”, Advisory Planning Commission Appointment 

THAT the Board of Directors appoint Roy Bainbridge as a member of the Electoral Area “A” 
Advisory Planning Commission until October 31, 2022.  
 

b. Electoral Area “G” Official Community Plan Citizen’s Advisory Committee Resignations 
THAT a letter be forwarded to Duncan Baynes and Andrew English, thanking them for their 
contribution to the Electoral Area “G” Official Community Plan (OCP) Project Citizen’s Advisory 
Committee. 
 

c. Naramata Parks and Recreation Commission – June 28, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the June 28, 2021 Naramata Parks and Recreation Commission be received.  
 

d. Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission – July 8, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the July 8, 2021 Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission be 
received.  
 



RDOS Board Meeting 2 August 5, 2021 
 

e. Community Services Committee – July 22, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Community Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

f. Corporate Services Committee – July 22, 2021 
(This item was removed from the Consent Agenda; please refer to Item D.4). 
 

g. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – July 22, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

h. Planning and Development Committee – July 22, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 2931 Noise Regulation and Prohibition Bylaw be referred to the Electoral Area 
Advisory Planning Commissions (APC).  
 
THAT Draft Section 9.0 - Sign Regulations be referred to the Electoral Area Advisory Planning 
Commissions (APC).  
 
THAT the resolution passed by the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) at the 
13 April, 2021 meeting requesting a review of zoning regulations governing cannabis retail uses 
be referred to the 2022 Business Plan process for discussion.  
 
THAT the recommendation from the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) at 
its April 13, 2021 meeting requesting a review of zoning regulations governing vacation rental 
uses be respectfully denied. 
 

i. Protective Services Committee – July 22, 2021 
THAT the Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Protective Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

j. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – July 22, 2021 
THAT the minutes of the July 22, 2021 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Park Land Dedication Proposal – Electoral Area “D” 

 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner or agent was present to address the Board and the 
property owner did so.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the request to waive the Parkland Dedication requirement related to the subdivision of part of 
the parcel at 850 Railway Lane in Okanagan Falls legally described as Lots 1 & 2, Plan KAS2687, 
District Lot 2883S, SDYD, be denied. - CARRIED 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 3 August 5, 2021 
 

 
2. Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch Referral – Electoral Area “D” 

Cannabis Retail Store  
a. Public Hearing Report – June 22, 2021 
b. Responses Received  
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the public hearing report be received. - CARRIED 
 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner or agent was present to address the Board and the 
applicant did so. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District object to the application from ERBN Green Cannabis Company Inc. for a 
proposed non-medical retail cannabis location at 936-946 Main Street, Okanagan Falls. - DEFEATED 
Opposed: Directors B. Coyne, Watt, Sentes, Gettens, Holmes, Robinson, Pendergraft, Knodel, 
McKortoff, S. Coyne, Johansen, Kozakevich, Philpott-Adhikary 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District, in accordance with Section 33(1) of the Cannabis Control and Licencing 
Act, support an application from ERBN Green Cannabis Company Inc. for a proposed non-medical 
retail cannabis location at 936-946 Main Street, Okanagan Falls (Lot 15, Block 17, Plan KAP4, District 
Lot 374, SDYD) licence with operating hours from 9:00 am to 11:00 pm seven days a week; 
 
AND THAT the following comments be provided to the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch: 

a) the subject property is located in the Okanagan Falls Town Centre Transition (C4) Zone and 
the use is permitted in this zone; 
b) no significant negative impact on the community is anticipated if this application is approved; 
c) the Regional District provided the following opportunities for residents to submit their views, 

in writing, on this Cannabis Retail Store licence application: 
i) publication in the Penticton Western News on March 31, 2021 and April 7, 2021; 
ii) publication in Castanet.net from March 30, 2021 to April 14, 2021; 
iii) posting on the Regional District’s web site from March 26, 2021 and social media 
accounts on April 22, 2021; 
iv) mailed notification to owners and tenants within 100 metres of the subject parcel on 
March 26, 2021; 
v) placement of a notification sign on the subject property from March 15, 2021, until 
the Board considered the application on May 6, 2021; 
vi) consideration by the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) at its 
meeting of April 13, 2021; and 
vii) an electronic public hearing held on June 22, 2021. 

d) The views of residents were considered by the RDOS Board at its meetings of May 6, 2021 
and August 5, 2021. 

CARRIED 
Opposed: Directors Trainer, Bush, Obirek, Monteith, Vassilaki, Roberts 
 
 

 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 4 August 5, 2021 
 

3. Manufactured Home Park (MHP) Redevelopment Policy Review; and Update of Hillside/Steep 
Slope Development Permit Area Policy Review 
a. Manufactured Home Park (MHP) Redevelopment Policy 
b. Update of Hillside/Steep Slope Development Permit Area Policy 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Policy No. P6930-00.01, being the “Manufactured Home Park Redevelopment Policy”, be 
rescinded; and, 
 
THAT the “Hillside / Steep Slope Development Permit Area Policy” be rescinded. 
CARRIED 

 
 
C. COMMUNITY SERVICES  

 
1. Bylaw No. 2941, 2021 – Area “D” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure Bylaw 

a. Bylaw No. 2941 
 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Reserve Expenditure Bylaw No. 2941, 2021, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of 
$156,000 from the Electoral Area “D” Community Works Reserve to fund the replacement of the 
Tennis/Pickle Ball Court in Okanagan Falls ($52,000), and complete work at Garnet Family Park 
($104,000) be read a first, second, and third time and be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
D. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

 
1. Bylaw No. 2789.01 Board Procedure Amendment Bylaw 

a. Bylaw No. 2789.01 
 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2789.01, being a bylaw to amend the Board Procedure Bylaw, be read a first, 
second and third time and be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
2. Oliver and District Arena  

a. Bylaw No. 2942 
b. Bylaw No. 2844 
c. Oliver Arena Society Resolution 
d. Elector Response Form 
e. Notice of Alternate Approval Process 
 

RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2942, Oliver and District Arena Conversion and Service Establishment Bylaw, be read 
a first, second and third time. - CARRIED 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 5 August 5, 2021 
 

3. Town of Oliver Boundary Adjustment  
a. Letter from Town of Oliver Boundary Adjustment to include 6450 Spartan Street 

 
RECOMMENDATION 11 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors not object to the proposed boundary adjustment proposal from the 
Town of Oliver, which would see the inclusion of 6450 Spartan Street into the Town of Oliver 
boundary and removed from Electoral Area “C”. - CARRIED 

 
 
4. Items Removed from Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

a. Corporate Services Committee – July 22, 2021 
The Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Corporate Services Committee meeting will be corrected and 
returned to the next Board meeting. 

 
 

E. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Declaration of State of Local Emergency Approval 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “D” that expired August 1 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 8; and, 
THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “D” set to expire August 8th be 
extended for a further seven days to August 15; and, 
THAT all declarations be submitted to the Minister of State for Emergency Preparedness for 
approval. 

THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “H” that expired July 28 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 3; and, 
THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “H” that expired August 3 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 10; and, 
THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “H” that expired August 10 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 17; and, 
THAT all declarations be submitted to the Minister of State for Emergency Preparedness for 
approval. 

THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “A” that expired August 3 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 10; and, 
THAT the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency for Electoral Area “A” that expired August 10 be 
extended for a further seven days to August 17; and, 
THAT all declarations be submitted to the Minister of State for Emergency Preparedness for 
approval. 
CARRIED 

 
 

2. Verbal Update 
 
 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 6 August 5, 2021 
 

 
2. Directors Motions 

a. Directors Motion to Establish Budget Parameters 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Finance present RDOS budgets to Directors for all services with a -2, 0, 2 and 3 
percent increase at the budget committee meetings annually and that Finance present 
RDOS budget in a live format to allow Directors to visually see impact to each electoral 
area and member municipality during decision making during all budget discussions. 
DEFEATED 
Opposed: Directors Gettens, Roberts, B. Coyne, Bush, Trainer, Holmes, Pendergraft, Robinson, 
Sentes, Johansen, Kozakevich, S. Coyne, Watt 
 
 

b. Notice of Motion – Director Gettens 
THAT Administration present to the Board for discussion the findings from the exit interviews of 
recently departed staff before the 2022 budget discussions begin. 
 
 

c. Notice of Motion – Director Obirek 
THAT there be a moratorium on cannabis retail applications in Electoral Area “D” pending the 
review and potential amendment coming from that review. 

 
 

3. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
G. ADJOURNMENT 

 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the meeting adjourn. - CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:57 p.m. 

 
 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

Electoral Area “D” Service and Boundary  
Configuration Committee 

 
MINUTES 

Wednesday, July 14, 2021 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Bob Daly  
David Forst 
Eleanor Walker  
Kurt Hiebert  
Kay Medland  

Kerrie McLean 
Matt Taylor 
Myleen Mallach 
Phyllis Radchenko  
Vi Creasey  

 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
J. Zaffino, Manager of Finance C. Ozaraci, Administrative Assistant
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

The Meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm. 
 

 
B. HOUSEKEEPING 

Reminder that the meeting is being recorded and ensure to mute except when speaking. 
 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The Agenda was approved. CARRIED 
 

 
D. RECEIPT OF THE JUNE 29, 2021 MEETING MINUTES 
 

The minutes were received. CARRIED 
 

 
E. CLOSED SESSION 

 
In accordance with Section 90(1)(j) of the Community Charter, the Committee close the meeting to the 
public on the basis of information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a 
document would be prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act;.  
THE MEETING WENT INTO CLOSED SESSION AT 6:09 PM 
THE MEETING RETURNED TO REGULAR SESSION AT 6:11 PM 
 

https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96165_00
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96165_00


Area D Committee Meeting 2 July 14, 2021 
 

 

 
F. BUDGET  

Jim Zaffino updated the committee with respect to the budget. 
 

 
G. AREA D COMMITTEE LOGO/BRANDING 

The committee selected the logo that contains the word Study in it.  
 

 
H. NEXT MEETING  

The next meeting will be held July 28, 2021 at 6:00 pm  
 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 6:30 pm 
 

 



 

 
Area G Citizen’s Advisory Committee Appointments 

Page 1 of 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Electoral Area “G” Official Community Plan Citizen’s Advisory Committee Appointments 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Cindy Regier and Roger Mayer be appointed to the Electoral Area “G” Official Community 
Plan (OCP) Project Citizen’s Advisory Committee. 

 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this report is to appoint two members to serve on the Electoral Area “G” OCP Project 
Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  The Citizen’s Advisory Committee has played a key role in the 
development process for the first OCP for Electoral Area “G” by collaborating with and providing local 
insight to the OCP project team.   
 
Background: 
The Electoral Area “G” OCP Project Citizen’s Advisory Committee consisted of a total of 12 members.  
On May 17, 2021 and June 11, 2021, the Regional District was notified by two members of their 
resignation from the Committee. 

 
Analysis:  
The proposed appointments will replace the vacated positions and provide representation for Hedley 
area and rural Keremeos.  
Given the above, Administration recommends appointment of the two noted Electoral Area “G” 
residents to serve on the Citizen’s Committee for the Electoral Area “G” OCP Project. 
 
Alternative: 

1. THAT the Board of Directors not appoint Cindy Regier and Roger Mayer to the Electoral Area “G” 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Project Citizen’s Advisory Committee. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed by: 

 
______________________ _______________________  
Nikita Kheterpal, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.028-DVP 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Development Variance Permit Application — Electoral Area “E” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP to subdivide 4575 Mill Road, Naramata into 
two lots be approved. 

 
Folio: E-02285.000 

Legal: Lot 25, Plan KAP3889, District Lot 211, SDYD, Except Plan 14494 

OCP:  Low Density Residential (LR) Zone: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 

Variance Request: to waive the requirement for the installation of a street light in front of the parcel.  
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a variance to the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Subdivision 
Servicing Bylaw requirement that applies to the subject property in order to undertake a two-lot 
subdivision. 

Specifically, it is being proposed to waive the requirement for the installation of a street light in front 
of the parcel when creating a new parcel less than 0.25 ha in area. 

In support of this request, the applicant has stated that “a street light is inappropriate for a country 
location, and which will seriously affect the enjoyment + clarity of the night sky. It would also affect 
the neighbour on the upside of the road.. the next closest street light is 640 metres away.  RDOS 
Operations agree that having a single street light that distance from the rest of the network does not 
make practical sense.”  
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 4,141 m2 in area and is situated on the west side of Mill Road 
and abuts the shoreline of Okanagan Lake to its west.  The property is currently developed to a single 
detached dwelling, a garage and a shed.  

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by similar residential parcels developed to 
contain single detached dwellings. 
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on July 22, 1947, while available Regional District records indicate 



  
 

                                                         File No: E2021.028-DVP 
Page 2 of 4 

that building permits for a carport (1979) and for the demolition of a cabin (2018) have previously 
been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR), and is the subject of a Watercourse 
Development Permit (WDP) Area designation. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One (RS1) which permits single detached dwellings and requires a minimum parcel size 
of 1,010 m2, subject to servicing requirements. 

Under Schedule “B” (Levels of Works and Services) of the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing 
Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, subdivision applications proposing the creation of new low density residential 
parcels less than 0.25 ha in area are required to provide street lighting in accordance with Schedule 
“A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Starndard Drawings) of the bylaw. 

On February 10, 2021, the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) referred a proposed 
two lot subdivision of the subject property to the Regional District for comment.  As this application is 
seeking to create parcels 0.136 ha and 0.153 ha in area, the Regional District advised, on March 11, 
2021, that the provision of street lighting would be required. 
 
Public Process:  
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted, in accordance with Section 2.10 of Schedule ‘4’ of the 
Regional District’s Development Procedures Bylaw No. 2500, 2011, until 4:30 p.m. on August 12, 
2021.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
The establishment of standards and design criteria in a subdivision servicing bylaw is seen to be 
important when the Regional District is the operator of the infrastructure and is responsible for future 
maintenance and operation.  Moreover, street lighting standards are also generally used to ensure an 
adequate standard of lighting is achieved on roadways and pathways by establishing minimum 
illumination standards and pole locations. 

Subdivision is a poor predictor of street lighting priorities within an Electoral Area street lighting 
service area.  Street lighting in rural areas is generally focused on priority features such as hazardous 
intersections, schools, parks, transit stops or cluster mailbox locations.  As highlighted by the current 
variance request, the subdivision of land does not always occur in such locations and, when assessing 
infrastructure needs for development, it is important to take the surrounding context into account.   

In this instance, the subject property is located in a remote area in Naramata and is a considerable 
distance away from any other streetlight (i.e. 600+ metres away from the next nearest light) and a 
street light at this location would be uncharacteristic of the area. 

Moreover, while street lighting can often enhance streetscape by illuminating blind corners at 
intersections or providing pedestrian safety, these types of services are not characteristic of rural 
areas and would not be considered a necessary requirement in order to allow for development.  
There are other ways that pedestrian and vehicle traffic can be notified of the turn in the road such as 
signage or bollards. 



  
 

                                                         File No: E2021.028-DVP 
Page 3 of 4 

Conversely, it is reocgnised that the subject property is situated within the Naramata Street Lighting 
Service Area, that the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw is clear in its requirement that new parcels less than 
0.25 ha in area provide appropriate street lighting and that this subject property is located at 
prominent curve in the Mill Road road alignment that may benefit from the installation of a steet 
light. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. That the Board deny Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP. 

2. That the Board defer consideration of the application and it be referred to the Electoral Area “E” 
Advisory Planning Commission.  

 
 
Respectfully submitted  Endorsed by:  
 
________________ ________________  
Nikita Kheterpal, Planner I  C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Aerial Photo (2017) 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.028-DVP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Aerial Photo (2017) 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 

Subject 
Parcel 



Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP 
Page 1 of 3 

Development  
Variance Permit 

 

 
FILE NO.: E2021.028-DVP 

  
 
 
 

     
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit that 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, the 
drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’ and 
applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described below, and any and 
all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Lot 25, Plan KAP3889, District Lot 211, SDYD, Except Plan 
14494 

Civic Address: 4575 Mill Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 001-974-297               Folio: E-02285.000 
  

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following 
variances to the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 
2000, 2002: 

a) Schedule “B” of the bylaw is varied by waiving the requirement for the installation of a 
street light in front of the parcel when creating a new parcel less than 0.25 ha in area. 

 



Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

7. Not Applicable 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable 

 
EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the terms of 
the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any construction with 
respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after the date it was issued, 
the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new development 
permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Development Variance Permit No. E2021.028-DVP 
Page 3 of 3 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  E2021.028-DVP 
Schedule ‘A’ 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NN

NARAMATA 

Subject 
Parcel 

OKANAGAN 
LAKE 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

                                                         File No: D2021.030-DVP 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Development Variance Permit Application – Electoral Area “D” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030-DVP to allow for the construction of a garage at 
425 Matheson Road in Electoral Area D be approved. 

 

Folio: D-06756.001 

Civic:  425 Matheson Road  Legal: Plan KAS268, District Lot 2710, SDYD 

OCP: Resource Area (RA) Zone: Resource Area (RA) 

Variance  Request: to reduce the minimum front strata lot line setback from 4.5 metres to 0.0 metres.  
 

Proposed Development: 
To vary the front lot line setback from 4.5 metres to 0.0 metres in order to undertake the construction 
of an accessory structure (garage) on the inside lot of a bare land strata. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 2090 m2 in area and is situated to the northeast of Matheson 
Road. The property currently holds a single detached dwelling and an accessory structure (art studio 
and electrical main room). 

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by similar bare land strata lots and crown 
land (Resource Area). 
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on May 29, 1979, while available Regional District records indicate 
that a building permit for a single family dwelling (2008) was previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2603, 2013, the subject 
property is currently designated Resource Area (RA), and is zoned Resource Area (RA) under the 
Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2455, 2008.  The RA Zone permits accessory buildings and 
structures, subject to Section 7.21 of the bylaw which establishes setbacks for strata subdivisions.   

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 
 
 
 



  
 

                                                         File No: D2021.030-DVP 
Page 2 of 3 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Aerial Photo 

Public Process:  
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted, in accordance with Section 2.10 of Schedule ‘4’ of the 
Regional District’s Development Procedures Bylaw No. 2500, 2011, until 4:30 p.m. on August 12, 
2021.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
The subject property is located within a bare land strata with no lots adjacent to it.  The closest 
neighbouring lot is approximately 65 metres to the southeast.  The lot does not abut a highway and is 
accessed by a  service road. 

The Zoning Bylaw’s use of setback regulations is generally to provide physical separation between 
neighbouring properties in order to protect privacy and prevent the appearance of overcrowding.  
When a parcel is also adjacent a roadway, setbacks are further employed to maintain adequate 
sightlines for vehicle traffic movements. 

Minimum setbacks from parcel lines are used to maintain a minimum space between houses in a 
residential neighbourhood to allow access to sunlight, to provide separation for fire safety or to 
mitigate nuisances (like noise) that might come from an adjacent building. 

In front setback areas, this can include impeding the sightlines of vehicles or creating blind corners at 
intersections that put pedestrians at risk or degrading the streetscape or impeding surveillance (i.e. 
crime prevention) by walling off a property and creating a “fortress” appearance. 

In this instance, it is noted that there are no concerns of overshadowing and loss of privacy to 
neighbouring lots.   

The requested variance is not expected to negatively impact neighbouring landowners or the 
travelling public. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. That the Board deny Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030-DVP. 

2. That the Board defer consideration of the application and it be referred to the Electoral Area “D” 
Advisory Planning Commission. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed by:   
 
______________ ________________  
Nikita Kheterpal, Planner I  C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



 

                                                         File No: D2021.030-DVP 
Page 3 of 3 

Attachment No. 1 – Aerial Photo 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

Strata lot subject to 
the applicaton 



Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030-DVP 
  Page 1 of 6 

Development  
Variance Permit 

 

 
FILE NO.: D2021.030-DVP 

 
     

 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit that 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, the 
drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’, 
and ‘D’, and applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described below, 
and any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Plan KAS268, District Lot 2710, SDYD  

Civic Address: 425 Matheson Road 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 002-530-775               Folio: D-06756.001 
  

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following variances 
to the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2455, 2008, in the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen: 

a) the minimum front strata lot line setback for a building located within a bare land strata 
subdivision, as prescribed in Section 7.21.3, is varied:  

i) from:  4.5 metres 

to:  0.0 metres to the outermost projection as shown on Schedule ‘B’. 

 



Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030-DVP 
  Page 2 of 6 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

7. Not Applicable 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable 

 
EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the terms of 
the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any construction with 
respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after the date it was issued, 
the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new development 
permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030–DVP 
  Page 3 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2021.030-DVP 
Schedule ‘A’ 

  

 
 

NN

OKANAGAN FALLS Subject 
Parcel 

SKAHA LAKE 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030–DVP 
  Page 4 of 6 

0.0 metres 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2021.030-DVP 
Schedule ‘B’ 

  

   

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030–DVP 
  Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2021.030-DVP 
Schedule ‘C’ 

  

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. D2021.030–DVP 
  Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit File No. D2021.030-DVP 
Schedule ‘D’ 

 

 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

                                                         File No: A2021.016-ZONE 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “A” 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP to renew an existing TUP for an “outdoor 
commercial event venue at 130 Hallis Road in Area “A” be approved. 
  

Folio: A-06748.375 

Civic:  130 Hallis Road Legal: Lot 4, Plan KAP38225, Sublot 2, District Lot 2709, SDYD  

OCP: Large Holdings (LH) Zone: Large Holdings One (LH1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking approval for the renewal of a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. A2018.135-
TUP, which authorizes the operation of an “Outdoor Commercial Event Venue” on the subject 
property. 

The applicant is proposing to continue the use of outdoor space with tents and gazebo, all located 
outside, that can be rented to hold an event of up to 100 people.  The applicant states that music will 
be turned down by 11 pm (NOTE: there is no noise bylaw in Electoral Area “A”).   

The applicant has stated that as the owner and host he will be present at all weddings to insure no 
problems occur and noise levels are adhered to.  
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 5.28 ha in area and is situated on the west side of Hallis Road, 
just east of highway 3, approximately 2.7 km east of the Town of Osoyoos. It is understood that the 
parcel is comprised of a single family dwelling, accessory structure, gazebo and pool on the eastern 
edge of the property, with the rest of parcel being comprised of vacant land.  .  

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similar sized large rural 
properties.   
 
Background:  
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on June 18, 1987, while available Regional District records indicate 
that building permits for a single family Dwelling (2007), an accessory building (2007), a pool (2009) 
and a gazebo (2009) have previously been issued for this property.  



  

                                                         File No: A2021.016-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2905,2021, the subject 
property is currently designated Large Holdings (LH), and is the subject of Watercourse Development 
Permit (WDP) and Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area designations. 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008, the property is currently zoned Large 
Holdings One (LH1) which does not permit the operation of a commercial events venue.   

Section 22.3.4 of Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw establishes the following criteria in evaluating a 
Temporary Use Permit application: 

· The use must be clearly temporary or seasonal in nature; 

· Compatibility of the proposal with adjacent uses; 

· Impact of the proposed uses on the natural environment, including groundwater, wildlife, and all 
environmentally sensitive areas; 

· Intensity of the proposed use; 

· Opportunity to conduct the proposed use on land elsewhere in the community; and  

· The remedial measures to be carried out to mitigate any damage to the natural environment as 
result of the temporary use. 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 
 
Public Process: 
On August 15, 2021, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended by 
no members of the public (as well as the property owner and Area Director). 

At its meeting of August 12, 2021, the Electoral Area “A” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the RDOS Board that the subject development application be approved. 
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
being accepted up until one (1) week prior to the Board’s regular meeting at which the application is 
to be considered.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
There have been no recorded complaints received in relation to the operation of the outdoor 
commercial events venue use since issuance of the TUP and the applicant has indicated that there 
have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2018 and the ownership remains 
unchanged.  

The 2018 permit was to be for a period of 3 years in order to determine the viability of the use, 
however COVID has greatly impacted that, and as a result the applicant is seeking a renewal. 

· The proposed use is seasonal in nature and will be only operating from May 1st to October 31st.  

· In terms of compatibility, there aren’t any other commercial facilities in the area; however, the 
nearby properties are all fairly large (4 ha +) and the subject property is located near Highway 
3.  Compatibility may be considered more an element of managing noise and off street parking, 
which can be done through a Temporary Use Permit.    



  

                                                         File No: A2021.016-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

Attachments:   
No. 1 – Agency Referral List 
No. 2 – Site Photo  
 (Google Street View – 2018) 

· Parking spaces have been calculated to be adequate for the 20 spaces required for the maximum 
number of 100 people.  The applicant has shown the areas where parking will be located on the 
property.   

· Impact on natural environment – no permanent structures are being proposed, the use is limited 
to areas already developed and outside of the ESDP area.  As the subject property is not within a 
community sanitary service area, the on-site sewage disposal will need to be dealt with through 
the use of portable toilet facilities, except for one required universally accessible washroom that 
will be located within the single detached dwelling.  In accordance with the Building Code, the 
number of water closets required depends on the number of people attending an event and will 
be outlined in the Permit.    

· In terms of buildings and structures, the proposed use will not be intensifying through new 
development; however, the intensity of use relates to the number of events and numbers of 
people arriving for each event.  The applicant states that on average, an event would be for 50 – 
80 people, and that they are proposing only one event a week as a maximum.   

· The proposed use is unique within the immediate neighbourhood, although there are numerous 
venues in and around Osoyoos to host an outdoor event. 

· As the site where the proposed use is to take place is currently already developed there would 
not be any additional damage to the natural environment.  Fire risk is a potential concern, and 
the applicant has submitted a Fire Management Plan outlining the equipment available on site 
and methods of preventing and extinguishing any fires.   

Temporary Use Permits may be renewed once only for a period not exceeding 3 years. Accordingly, 
the applicant is encouraged to seek a rezoning in the next 3 years, before the renewed permit expires 
if they wish to continue operating the outdoor commercial events venue beyond the terms of the 
temporary use permit. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP for 
the following reasons: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:  

_____________________ _________________  
Fiona Titley, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  

   



  

                                                         File No: A2021.016-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List  

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. A2020.016-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) þ Fortis 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o City of Penticton 

o Ministry of Agriculture o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Energy, Mines & Petroleum 
Resources 

o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Environment  & Climate 
Change Strategy 

o Town of Princeton 

o Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (Archaeology Branch) 

o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Jobs, Trade & Technology o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o BC Parks o Upper Similkameen Indian Band (USIB) 

o School District  #53 (Areas A, B, C, D & G) o Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) 

o School District  #58 (Area H) o Environment Canada 

o School District  #67 (Areas D, E, F, I) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o Central Okanagan Regional District o Canadian Wildlife Services 

o Kootenay Boundary Regional District o OK Falls Irrigation District 

o Thompson Nicola Regional District o Kaleden Irrigation District 

o Fraser Valley Regional District o  Irrigation District / improvement Districts 
/ etc. 

þ Anarchist Mountain Fire Department   

 

 
 

  
 

 



 

File No: A2021.016-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Street View - 2018)  
 

 

Subject 
Property 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
  Page 1 of 6 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: A2021.016-TUP 
 
  
 

 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’, and ‘B’ and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 4, Plan KAP38225, Sublot 2, District Lot 2709, SDYD 

Civic Address: 130 Hallis Road, Osoyoos 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 007-733-461  Folio: A-06748.375 
 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 22.0 of the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2905, 2021, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for an “Outdoor Commercial 
Event Venue” which is defined as meaning “ a use providing assembly of persons during 
the term of a defined event or activity, including but limited to a party, wedding, or 
corporate retreat, where an exchange of money or other consideration for the use of the 
property for the said event”. 

 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
  Page 2 of 6 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The ‘outdoor commercial event’ use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) the use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

b) The use must meet the following requirements:  

i) No further permanent buildings shall be constructed, and the use is limited to 
the outside land area on the subject property;  

ii) Noise will be diminished by 11:00 p.m.; 

iii) The number of events throughout the season shall be limited to an average of 
one per week;  

iv) One universally accessible washroom will be available at all events; 

c) the maximum number of people that may be present at a special event is 100. 

d) All parking must be accommodated within the subject property, in accordance with 
Schedule ‘B’; 

e) An universally accessible washroom will be avaible at all events, plus the number of 
washrooms for events shall be as follows:  

Number of People Minimum number of water closets 

1-25 2 

26-50 3 

51-75 5 

76-100 6 

f) Activities will follow the Fire Management Plan, attached as Schedule ‘C’;  

g) Camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 
 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 
 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall expire on August 19, 2024. 

 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
  Page 3 of 6 

 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
Page 4 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2021.016-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

 
  

NN

OSOYOOS 
LAKE 

OSOYOOS 

Subject 
Property 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2021.016-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

OUTDOOR 
VENUE AREA 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2021.016-TUP 
Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2021.016-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ – Fire Management Plan  
Prepared by Ron Burk (retired Fire Chief), dated September 26, 2018 

 
Fire plan for The Look Out 
 
The manager/ owner is Robert Burk  250-485-7082  
• This is an out door venue. 
• The property is fire smart designed, with rock around the entire perimeter, stucco siding, and 

concrete roof to prevent ground fire spread. 
• The entire event area is concrete and paving stone. 
• Occupant load 100 guests. 
• Anarchist Mountain Volunteer Fire Dept protected Owner is a retired Fire Chief with 1041 NFPA fire 

instructor level 1 and 2, and has 29 years fire fighting experience . 
 
Venue fire fighting equipment 
• 1 1/2” forestry hose connected to electric pump with 25000 gal water supply at the rear of house 

100’ of garden hose on the left  side of the house near the BBQ , Pizza Oven, and Grill. 
• 50’ of garden hose on the right side of house beside the smoking area. 
• 100’ garden hose at the front of house. 
• 4 gallons of Barricade  fire fighting foam with nozzle to connect to garden hose. 
• Several ABC dry chemical fire extinguishers located in the house, shop, and gazebo.  
• The house has smoke detectors as per BC building code. 

 
Emergency Procedures In case of fire 
• leave area immediately. 
• sound the alarm , instruct staff to escort guests to safety. 
• dial 911 to notify Anarchist Mountain Fire Dept -ensure all quests are out of danger. 
• if fire is controllable, attack with fire fighting equipment until Fire Dept arrives. 
• do not allow guests to put themselves in a dangerous situation. 

 
Related duties and hazards 
• Do not permit combustible material to accumulate in quantities or locations that would constitute a 

fire hazard. 
• Keep driveway clear to allow fire dept access -Maintain the fire protection equipment in good 

operating condition at all times. 
• If medical emergency occurs, call 911 to notify B.C. ambulance and Fire Dept. 
• Inform guests smoking  is only allowed in smoking area , on the side of house.(which is concrete 

paving stone) Absolutely no smoking in other areas. 
• No fire works permitted . 

 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: TUP No. A2021.016-TUP. (Robert Burk)

-—Original Message—-

From: Arlyn GREIG Sent: August 1, 2021 2:12 PM
To: Info E-Box <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Re: TUP No. A2021.016-TUP. (Robert Burk)

Dear Sir or Madam:

I would advise that several events I have attended at #130 Hallis Road have not caused a disturbance. Mr. and Mrs.

Burk are very respectful of their neighbours rightof peaceful enjoyment of their property. Music is lowered at a

reasonable time. No disturbances have been brought to my attention by other neighbours, and I have not been privy to

any.

I believe each function that is brought to our location and is of financial assistance to hotels, restaurants, fuel stations,

grocery stores and the wine industry spin off businesses in Town.

I appreciate each and every attempt to bring visitors to our Town, and would support this permit being issued.

Arlyn Greig
Osoyoos, BC



Lauri Feindell

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Categories:

Fiona Titley
July 7, 2021 8:44 AM
Lauri Feindell
FW: Project No: A2021.016-TUP

filing to edms

Here is one for the Burk file -130 Hallis Road (A2021.016-TUP)

Fiona

From: Colin McCubbir

Sent: Friday, July 2, 2021 1:13 PM
To: Fiona Titley <ftitley@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Project No: A2021.016-TUP

Hi Fiona,

My wife Frankie Rees, and I are the (only) adjacent next door neighbours to Robert and Kimberiy Burk's

property in Hallis Rd, Osoyoos. I understand that they have applied for renewal of existing permit for outdoor

commercial events venue use at their property. Ref: A2021.016-TUP

We have no objection to this, they have been good neighbours in discussing past events beforehand with us,

and I have no reason to suspect that we will not be able to resolve any problems that might arise during the

currently proposed extended permit's time.

BTW I read the draft permit and noticed a repeating typo that needs amending in several places, 'guest' is spelt
'quest' throughout.

Thank you,

Colin McCubbin

Frankie McCubbin

Osoyoos

Cc; Robert Burk.



Lauri Feindell

From: Alice Newton < '' - " -~~

Sent: July 13, 2021 2:52 PM
To: Planning

Subject: RDOS Meeting Number 146 548 7470

Re: Web-based Public Information Meeting - Temporary Use Permit

(Outdoor Commercial Events Venue use) 130 Hallis (Lot 4, Plan KAP38225, District
Lot 2709, SDYD

Attention: Regional District Staff

To Whom it may concern:

We will be unfortunately be unable to participate in the web-based public information meeting on July 15, and

accordingly wish our written representation to be considered.

We are owners of Lot 3, Plan KAS1872, District Lot 2709, SDYD identied as your folio number 714
006748.451. Our civic address is 1270 Highway 3, Osoyoos, BC VOH 1V6.

We have been neigbours of the applicants for many years, and have found them to be reliable, community-
minded individuals. Mr. Burk held the position of Fire Chief for the Anarchist Mountain Fire Department for

several years, and provided outstanding service to our mountain community.

The applicants have gone to considerable effort to maintain a safe home environment in keeping with

endeavours such as the Fire Smart Program. We have never known a time when their property has not been

meticulously and responsibly maintained.

We wish to lend our full support to the application for this outdoor commercial events venue use application.

Sincerely,

John Newton and Alice Newton

ps: kindly acknowledge receipt of this message. Many thanks.



RESPONSE SUMMARY

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT NO. A2021.016-TUP

D Approval Recommended for Reasons D Interests Unaffected

Outlined Below

[3 Approval Recommended Subject to D Approval Not Recommended

Conditions Below Due to Reasons Outlined Below

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comment on this application. It is our
understanding that the application is to renew a temporary use permit for continued
operation of an outdoor commercial events venue on the subject property. From an
Environmental Health Protection perspective, Interior Health is supportive subject to
the applicant completing the following conditions:

* Submits a Sewerage Filing Application for the waste water system servicing the
additional flows generated by the event. If a Holding Tank is proposed, an application
for a Holding Tank Permit must be submitted in accordance with the BC Sewerage
System Regulation.
For more information please visit:
https://www.interiorhealth.caA'ourEnvironment/HBE/Pages/Onsite-Sewerage-Systems.aspx

* Obtains an Operating Permit for the site water system. Bottled water is not an option
for facilities servicing the public.
For more information please visit:
https://www.interiorhealth.ca/YourEnvironment/DrinkingWater/Pages/Permits.aspx.

* Provides information on accommodation and washroom facilities for guests.
* Provides a plan for noise control to prevent noise complaints from neighbours.
* Provides details on amenities relating to temporary catering food storage
i.e. refrigeration, dry food storage.

If you have any questions pertaining to the above, please contact Cynthia Watson at
Cynthia.Watson@interiorhealth.ca

Signature: _/ L-^<g^e»ea<»^ _ Signed By: Tanya Osborne

Agency: Interior Health _ Title: Community Health Facilitator

Date: July 8, 2021

TUP Referral - A2021.016-TUP Page 2 of 2



Lauri FeindeII

From: Moraes, Ryan <Ryan.Moraes@fortisbc.com>

Sent: June 15, 2021 8:00 AM
To: Planning

Subject: RE: TUP Referral (Project No. A2021.016-TUP)

Hello,

We have no concerns with this TUP.

Regards,

Ryan Moraes, P.L.Eng, AScT | Planning & Design Technologist | FortisBC
1975 Springfield Rd | Kelowna, BC V1Y 7V7
8250-490-2621 1-, 778-214-0509 I &van.moraes(p)fortisbc.com

From: Referrals <Referrals@)fortisbc.com>

Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 11:04 AM

To: Moraes, Ryan <Ryan.Moraes@fortisbc.com>

Subject: TUP Referral (Project No. A2021.016-TUP)

Property Referral: 2021-1071

Hi Ryan,

Please review the attached / below and provide your comments directly to planninci@rclos.bc.ca by July 11,2021.

If FortisBC Energy Inc. is affected, please copy referrals@fortisbc.com in on your response so that we may update our

records.

Thank you,

Mai Farmer

Property Services Assistant

Property Services
Phone604-576-7010 x57010

FORTISBC-

From: Fiona Titley <ftitlev(a)rdos.bc.ca>

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 5:48 PM
To: Referrals <Referrals@fortisbc.com>; 'HBE(a)interiorhealth.ca' <HBE@interiorhealth.ca>; AMFD Firechief

<firechief@>amfd.org>

Subject: [External Email] -TUP Referral (Project No. A2021.016-TUP)



 

                                                         File No: H2021.003-DVP 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Development Variance Permit Application — Electoral Area “H” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP to allow for the development of a 
new dwelling unit at 135 Towers Road, Eastgate be approved. 

 

Legal: Lot 7, Plan KAP12149, District Lot 902, YDYD 

Folio:  H-00804.000  Zone: Small Holdings Four (SH4) 

Variance Request: to reduce the minimum front parcel line setback from 7.5 metres to 6.0 metres.    
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a variance to the front parcel line setback that applies to the subject 
property in order to undertake the construction of a new dwelling unit.  

Specifically, it is being proposed to reduce the front parcel line setback for a single detached dwelling 
(Cabin) from 7.5 metres to 6.0 metres. 

In support of this request, the applicant has stated that “the proposed setback of 6.0 M was dictated 
by the Watercourse Permit criteria. The originally proposed Cabin design/layout was 
modified/reduced to meet the 30 M rear setback from the river. Even with the reduction in square 
feet of the cabin, the area left to position the cabin was drastically reduced and barely left enough 
room for the septic system in the front yard.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 1,499 m2 in area and is situated on the east side of Towers 
Road and to the west of the Similkameen River. The property is currently vacant  

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by similar residential development to the 
west and the Similkaeen River to the east.  
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on March 21, 1962, while available Regional District records 
indicate that a building permit for the demolition of a cabin (2020) was previously issued.  

Under the Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2790, 2018, the subject 
property is currently designated Small Holdings (SH), and is the subject of a Watercourse 
Development Permit (WDP) Area designation. A Watercourse Development Permit was approved on 
June 14, 2021. 



  
 

                                                         File No: H2021.003-DVP 
Page 2 of 3 

Under the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008, the property is currently zoned Small 
Holdings Four (SH4) which lists single family dwelling as a permitted principal use.  

Under Section 8.0 (Floodplain Regulations) of the Zoning Bylaw, the subject property is within the 
floodplain associated with Similkameen River and the proposed cabin must ccomply with floodplain 
elevation regulations for habitable spaces. 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 
 
Public Process:  
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
being accepted up until one (1) week prior to the Board’s regular meeting at which the application is 
to be considered.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 

Minimum setbacks from parcel lines are used to maintain a minimum space between houses in a 
residential neighbourhood to allow access to sunlight, to provide separation for fire safety or to 
mitigate nuisances (like noise) that might come from an adjacent building. 

The variance is intended to increase the buildable area outside of the Streamside Protection and 
Enhancement Area (SPEA) associated with the Similkameen River by reducing the front parcel line. 

A Qualified Enviornmental Professional (QEP) has submitted a report identifying the SPEA that results 
in a very limited building envelope when parcel line setbacks and separation distance from the septic 
system is considered.  

Further, the OCP speaks to encouraging DVP applications to relax parcel lines setbacks in order to 
“reduce impacts and preserve the SPEA.”  A reduction to the rear yard setback would allow for a 
greater buildable area outside of the protection area. 

The reduction of the rear yard setback allows for a building area that is primarly outside of the SPEA 
and is considered the best alternative to other building locations that would require further 
encroachment into the SPEA. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. That the Board deny Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP. 

2. That the Board defer consideration of the application and it be referred to the Electoral Area “H” 
Advisory Planning Commission. 

 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by:   
 
______________ ________________  
Fiona Titley, Planner I  C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Photo 



  
 

                                                         File No: H2021.003-DVP 
Page 4 of 3 

Attachment No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Photo 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP 
Page 1 of 6 

Development  
Variance Permit 

 

 
FILE NO.: H2021.003-DVP 

 
 
 
 

    

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit that 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, the 
drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’, 
and ‘D’, and applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described below, 
and any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Lot 7, Plan 12149, District Lot 902, YDYD  

Civic Address: 135 Towers Road, East Gate 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 009-461-523               Folio: H-00804.000 
  

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following variances 
to the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012, in the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen: 

a) the minimum front parcel line setback for a single detached dwelling in the Small 
Holdings Four (SH4) Zone, as prescribed in Section 11.8.5(a)(i), is varied:  

i) from:  7.5 metres 

to:  6.0 metres to the outermost projection as shown on Schedule ‘B’. 



Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP 
Page 2 of 6 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

7. Not Applicable 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable 

 
EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the terms of 
the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any construction with 
respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after the date it was issued, 
the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new development 
permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003-DVP 
Page 3 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  H2021.003-DVP 
Schedule ‘A’ 

 

 

NN

EASTGATE 

Subject 
Parcel 

E.C. MANNING 
PROVINCIAL PARK 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003–DVP 
 Page 4 of 6 

0.2 metres 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                                                                                                                                       File No.  H2021.003-DVP 
Schedule ‘B’ 

 

6.0 metres 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003–DVP 
 Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variace Permit File No. H2021.003-DVP 
Schedule ‘C’ 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. H2021.003–DVP 
 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variace Permit File No. H2021.003-DVP 
Schedule ‘D’ 

 

  

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

 

                                                         File No: E2021.018-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “E” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP to allow for a vacation rental at 3180 Bartlett 
Road in Electoral Area “E”, be approved. 

 

Folio: E-02200.011 

Civic:  3180 Bartlett Road Legal: Lot 2, Plan KAP47279, District Lot, SDYD  

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zone: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking to authorize the operation of a short-term vacation rental use of single 
detached at 3180 Bartlett Road for one “full” season term to expire on December 31, 2022, through 
the issuance of a Temporary Use Permit (TUP). The dwelling is comprised of five (5) bedrooms with a 
maximum occupancy of ten (10) people, with accommodation for five (5) parking stalls.  

The applicant intends to spend more time, and eventually retire in the Naramata area as they 
transition from their working careers over the next 5-7 years and have invested significantly in this 
property.  They commit to maintain its’ beauty, tranquility and value by ensuring that all guests are 
responsible people who will treat both the property and the neighboring community and public 
recreation spaces with respect and consideration.  They will use the property themselves for vacation, 
and then rent to friends and family first, but occasionally to private renters who maintain good 
references.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 1,054 m2 in area and is situated on the east side of Bartlett 
Road.  It is understood that the parcel is comprised of a single detached dwelling and an accessory 
structure (swimming pool). 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similar sized Small Holdings 
(SH) and Low density Residential (LR) parcels surrounding the north, south and west of the property, 
and larger agricultural parcels to the east. 

 

 
 



  

File No: E2021.018-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office on June 2, 1992. Available Regional District records indicate that a building 
permit for swimming pool (2015) has previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR), which supports the residential use of 
properties. 

The OCP Bylaw does, however, contain an objective of allowing on-going short-term vacation rental 
uses on properties designated Residential through the issuance of Temporary Use Permits.  

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One (RS1) which, permits single detached dwellings as a principal use, with limited 
occupation for commercial uses in the form of “home occupations” and “bed and breakfast 
operations” as permitted secondary uses.   

A Health and Safety Inspection was completed on June 4, 2021 and the Building Inspector identified 
no deficiencies.   

A letter prepared by a Registered On-Site Wastewater Practitioner (ROWP) has been provided stating 
that “The inspection report shows the system is functioning normally. The system was built for extra 
capacity beyond the current 5 bedroom designation specifications. There is little chance of 
overloading the system and creating a health hazard based on occupancy referenced in the owner's 
declaration” which stated a 10 person limit. 

The property has a geotechnical hazard rating of “limited or no hazard of slumps and slides. No 
development problems anticipated” and has been classified as “Residential” (Class 01) by BC 
Assessment. 
 
Public Process: 
On July 13, 2021, an electronic Public Information Meeting (PIM) was attended by zero members of 
the public (as well as the applicant and the area director) . 

At its meeting of July 12, 2021, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
recommended to the RDOS Board that the subject development application be approved. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
being accepted up until one (1) week prior to the Board’s regular meeting at which the application is 
to be considered.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
The Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw includes supportive policy for vacation rental uses in residential 
areas and outlines a number of criteria against which the board will consider such a use. 

In response to the criteria contained in Section 22.0 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP bylaw, the 
proposed use is seasonal in nature (May-October) and is not intensive in scale.  The impact on the 
natural environment and neighbouring uses is minimized by being contained within an existing 
building and parking area on the parcel. 



  

File No: E2021.018-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

The applicant has submitted a site plan which shows provision of adequate parking on-site. In 
addition the ROWP letter stated that the on site septic system is capable of accommodating a ten 
person vacation rental use. 

Further, a health and safety inspection was completed and did not identify any deficiencies.   

The Regional District’s “Vacation Rental Temporary Use Permit Policy”, and supportive OCP policies 
allows for a new vacation rental use to operate for one “season” in order to determine if such a use is 
inappropriate, incompatible or unviable at a particular location and, if so, to allow for the permit to 
lapse or not be renewed within a relatively short period. 

For the reasons listed above, approval of the temporary use permit may be permitted under the 
following conditions: 

• Period of use (May-October); 

• Posting of information within vacation rental; 

• Maximum number of bedrooms (5); 

• Maximum occupancy (10); 

• Minimum number of on-site parking stalls (5); 

• Prohibition of camping or use of RVs or accessory buildings for vacation rental occupancy; 

• Providing TUP and contact information to neighbours;  

• Vacation rental operator and guests adhere to provincial health order during the Provincial State 
of Emergency for COVID-19. 

 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP for 
the following reasons: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

_____________________ _________________  
Fiona Titley, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Agency Referral List   

 No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Photo   



  

File No: E2021.018-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 
 
Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a , regarding Amendment 
Bylaw No. E2021.018-TUP: 
 
 

 Agricultural Land Commission (ALC)  Fortis 

 Interior Health Authority (IHA)  City of Penticton 

 Ministry of Agriculture  District of Summerland 

 Ministry of Energy, Mines & Petroleum 
Resources 

 Town of Oliver 

 Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing  Town of Osoyoos 

 Ministry of Environment  & Climate 
Change Strategy 

 Town of Princeton 

 Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (Archaeology Branch) 

 Village of Keremeos 

 Ministry of Jobs, Trade & Technology  Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

 Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

 Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

 Integrated Land Management Bureau  Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

 BC Parks  Upper Similkameen Indian Band (USIB) 

 School District  #53 (Areas A, B, C, D & G)  Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) 

 School District  #58 (Area H)  Environment Canada 

 School District  #67 (Areas D, E, F, I)  Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

 Central Okanagan Regional District  Canadian Wildlife Services 

 Kootenay Boundary Regional District  OK Falls Irrigation District 

 Thompson Nicola Regional District  Kaleden Irrigation District 

 Fraser Valley Regional District   Irrigation District / improvement Districts 
/ etc. 

 Naramata Fire Department   

   
 
   



 

File No: E2021.018-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Photo (May 2021) 

 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2019.009-TUP 
  Page 1 of 8 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: E2021.018-TUP 
 

 
  
 

  
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’ , ‘C’ , ‘D’ , and ‘E’ and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 2, Plan KAP47279, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address: 3180 Bartlett Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 017-796-318  Folio: E-0220.011 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 22.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for “vacation rental” use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the temporary accommodation of paying guests for a period of less than one month.   

 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
  Page 2 of 8 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
five (5); 

d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not 
exceed ten (10); 

e) a minimum of five (5) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests; 

f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use 
Permit shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of 
the land and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

h) Vacation rental operations must follow Ministry of Health’s COVID-19 Guidance for 
the Hotel Sector during the Provincial State of Emergency, including environmental 
cleaning, staff health and communication, and any subsequent provincial health 
orders for hotel operators. 

i) Information shall be posted within the dwelling unit during the Provincial State of 
Emergency for Covid-19 following provincial recommended communication, signage 
and posters for the Hotel Sector on the following topics:  

i) Symptoms of COVID-19 

ii) B.C’s COVID 19 Self-Assessment Tool 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
  Page 3 of 8 

iii) Handwashing 

iv) Respiratory/cough etiquette 

v) Self-isolation and self-monitoring 

j) A sign must be posted on the front entrance telling staff not to enter the premises if 
they are feeling ill. 

k) All guests must follow Provincial guidelines during the Provincial State of Emergency for 
COVID-19, including avoiding non-essential travel as a measure to protect vulnerable 
people in communities from COVID-19. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 
 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall expire on December 31, 2022. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
 Page 4 of 8 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2021.018-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 
 

NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 

OKANAGAN 
LAKE 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
 Page 5 of 8 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
                                                                                                                      
Temporary Use Permit              File No.  E2021.018-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 

                                                               
 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
 Page 6 of 8 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
                                                                                                                      
Temporary Use Permit              File No.  E2021.018-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ 
 

                                                               ENTRY LEVEL FLOOR PLAN 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
 Page 7 of 8 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
                                                                                                                      
Temporary Use Permit              File No.  E2021.018-TUP 

Schedule ‘D’ 
 

 
MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2021.018-TUP 
 Page 8 of 8 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
                                                                                                                      
Temporary Use Permit              File No.  E2021.018-TUP 

Schedule ‘E’ 
 

 

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


Lauri Feindell

From: Moraes, Ryan <Ryan.Moraes@fortisbc.com>

Sent: June 15, 2021 9:04 AM
To: Planning

Subject: RE: TUP Referral (Project No. E2021.018-TUP)

Hello,

Fortis has no concerns with this TUP.

Regards,

Ryan Moraes, P.L.Eng, AScT | Planning & Design Technologist | FortisBC

1975 Springfield Rd | Kelowna, BC V1Y 7V7
a250-490-2621 7 778-214-0509 | E3rvan.moraes@fortisbc.com

From: Referrals <Referrals@fortisbc.com>

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:38 PM

To: Moraes, Ryan <Ryan.Moraes@fortisbc.com>

Subject: TUP Referral (Project No. E2021.018-TUP)

Property Referral: 2021-1080

Hi Ryan,

Please review the attached / below and provide your comments directly to planninci@rdos.bc. co by July 15, 2021.

If FortisBC Energy Inc. is affected, please copy referrals(5)fortisbc.com in on your response so that we may update our

records.

Thank you,

Mai Farmer

Property Services Assistant

Property Services
Phone604-576-7010 x57010

FORTISBC

From: Fiona Titley <ftitley(a>rdos.bc.ca>

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 9:25 AM

To: Referrals < Referrals @fortisbccom>; 'HBE@interiorhealth.ca' <HBE@interiorhealth.ca>; STN161FC

<stnl61fc@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: [External Email] -TUP Referral (Project No. E2021.018-TUP)

^



RESPONSE SUMMARY

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT NO. E2021.018-TUP

Approval Recommended for Reasons

Outlined Below

D Approval Recommended Subject to

Conditions Below

Signature:

Agency:
Naramata Fire Department

Date: June 14, 2021

5 Interests Unaffected

D Approval Not Recommended Due

to Reasons Outlined Below

Signed By: Dennis Smith

Title: Fire Chief

Bylaw Referral - E2021.018-TUP Page 2 of 2



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: 3180 Bartlett Road, Naramata

-Original Message—-

From: Kate Baker

Sent: July 6, 2021 4:23 PM
To: Planning <planning@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Re: 3180 Bartlett Road, Naramata

We reside at 3150 Bartlett Road & do have concerns regarding this application. Our main concern is the number of

guests who will be able to rent out this property. We have heard 12 then 10 in saying that this will not be a single family
but family groupings or worse still groups of young adults wanting a fun getaway amongst the wineries. Noise does

carry in our area & noise will be the main cause of concern with this property especially as there won't be a host on site.

Music playing & pool noise are our issues at this time along with the number of guests.

Thank you,

Kate & Grahame Baker

Sent from my iPad



 

  
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   City of Penticton Referral – Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District has no objection to the proposed 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment involving part of the property at 955 Timmins Street 
to “Urban Residential”. 

 

Purpose:  
The City of Penticton has referred an application for an amendment to their Official Community Plan 
from “Industrial” to “Urban Residential’ in order, to allow for the development of “two, 5-storey 
apartment buildings and 81 townhouse units that would be constructed over two phases.”at 955 
Timmins Street. 

The City has further advised that “the plans submitted are conceptual at this time and may be subject 
to change throughout the development approvals process.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is situated within the City of Penticton.  
 
Background: 
Under the South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) Bylaw No. 2770, 2017, the City of 
Penticton has been designated as a Primary Growth Area. 

A stated goal of the RGS is to “focus development to serviced areas in designated Primary Growth 
Areas and Rural Growth Areas.”   

In support of this goal, a stated objective of the RGS is to “collaborate and coordinate among regional 
partners to direct most new development to Primary Growth Areas.”  This is further supported by a 
number of policies, including: 

• Encourage appropriately located accessible commercial, institutional, light and heavy industrial 
development in Primary Growth Areas. 

• Promote compact development in both Primary Growth Areas and Rural Growth Areas. 

• Give priority to infill development in both Primary Growth Areas and Rural Growth Areas.  

At its meeting of May 23, 2019, the Regional District Board reviewed the City’s (then) draft OCP Bylaw 
No. 2019-08 and resolved to provide comments commending those parts of the bylaw comprising 
“goals and policies for sustainable long-term growth that are in alignment with the RDOS Regional 
Growth Strategy and reflect best planning practices.” 
 



 

  
Page 2 of 4 

Analysis: 
The proposed redevelopment of the property at 955 Timmins Street is consistent with many of the 
goals of the RGS Bylaw.  Specifically: 

• the encouragement of higher density residential developments within designated Primary Growth 
Areas; 

• the encouragement of infill development; and 

• the re-development of a site that is close to amenities (community centre) and services (retail in 
the downtown core area).  

 
Alternatives: 

1. THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District Board supports the proposed 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment involving part of the property at 955 Timmins 
Street to “Urban Residential”, subject to the following: 

i) TBD 

2. THAT the Board of Directors resolves to not provide referral comments to the City Penticton 
regarding the proposed amendment to their OCP Bylaw involving the property at 955 Timmins 
Street. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted:   
 
_____________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Maps 

  No. 2 – Concept Plans 

 

 

 
  



 

  
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 

Subject 
Property 

PENTICTON 



 

  
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Concept Plans 
 
 

 
 

 



 

  
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   City of Penticton Referral – Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District has no objection to the 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment involving the property at 877 
Westminster Avenue West to “Urban Residential”. 

 
 
Purpose:  
The Regional District has received a referral from the City of Penticton regarding a proposed 
amendment to their Official Community Plan the property at 877 Westminster Avenue West 
from“Tourist Commercial” to “Urban Residential’ to allow for a mixed-use development concept for 
304 residential units with opportunities for short-term vacation rentals; and commercial units along the 
Westminster Aveneue West frontage. 

This application is only for an amendment to the OCP and, if supported, more detailed plans would be 
provided. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is situated within the City of Penticton.  
 
Background: 
Under the South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) Bylaw No. 2770, 2017, the City of 
Penticton has been designated as a Primary Growth Area. 

A stated goal of the RGS is to “focus development to serviced areas in designated Primary Growth 
Areas and Rural Growth Areas.”   

In support of this goal, a stated objective of the RGS is to “collaborate and coordinate among regional 
partners to direct most new development to Primary Growth Areas.”  This is further supported by a 
number of policies, including: 

• Encourage appropriately located accessible commercial, institutional, light and heavy industrial 
development in Primary Growth Areas. 

• Promote compact development in both Primary Growth Areas and Rural Growth Areas. 

• Give priority to infill development in both Primary Growth Areas and Rural Growth Areas.  

At its meeting of May 23, 2019, the Regional District Board reviewed the City’s (then) draft OCP Bylaw 
No. 2019-08 and resolved to provide comments commending those parts of the bylaw comprising 



 

  
Page 2 of 4 

“goals and policies for sustainable long-term growth that are in alignment with the RDOS Regional 
Growth Strategy and reflect best planning practices.” 
 
Analysis: 
The proposed redevelopment of the property at 877 Westminster Avenue West is consistent with 
many of the goals of the RGS Bylaw.  Specifically: 

• the encouragement of higher density residential developments within designated Primary Growth 
Areas; 

• the introduction of a mixed-use, infill development; and 

• the re-development of a site that is on a major transportation corridor within the City and close to 
amenities (Okanaga Lake, community centre) and services (retail in the downtown core area).  

 
Alternatives: 

1. THAT the City of Penticton be advised that the Regional District Board supports the proposed 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendment involving the property at 877 Westminster 
Avenue West to “Urban Residential”, subject to the following: 

i) TBD 

2. THAT the Board of Directors resolves to not provide referral comments to the City Penticton 
regarding the proposed amendment to their OCP Bylaw involving the property at 877 
Westminster Avenue West. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted:   
 
_____________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Maps 

  No. 2 – Concept Plan 

 

 

 
  



 

  
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 

Subject 
Properties 

PENTICTON 



 

  
Page 1 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Concept Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 1 of 9 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Letters of Concurrence (Telus) – Electoral Area “E” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Regional District send a “Letter of Concurrence” to Innovation, Science, and 
Economic Development Canada for proposed telecommunication tower BCB576 to be 
located near Smethurst Road & Cottonwood Lane; with two conditions: 

1. That the tower not be lighted except for safety lights; and, 
2. That the tower receive an exterior coating to blend into the surrounding natural 

setting. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the placement of a 50.0 metre monopole / Wireless Communication facility. 

Owners:  1100125 Alberta Inc.  Agent: Tawny Verigin (Cypress Land Services for Telus) 

Legal:  Block A, Plan KAP3943B, Sublot 3, District Lot 2711, SDYD, Portion PL 1190, Except Plan KAP44464 

Location:  Pole No. BCB576 is near Smethurst Road and Cottonwood Lane Zoning: Resource Area (RA) 
 (Coordinates: N 49.597564°, W 119.564226°)   
 

Proposed Development: 
Telus is requesting the concurrence of the Regional District for the proposed placement of a 50.0 
metre self-support tower and ancillary equipment compound to provide cellular service to Naramata 
and the surrounding area.  Pole BCB576 is located east of the BC Hydro transmission right of way off 
Naramata Creek Forest Service Road (See Attachment No.1).  

Telus has undertaken a public consultation process following the RDOS Board Policy for 
Communication Towers / Antenna Systems Approval Process and, in support of the concurrence 
request, has stated that: 

TELUS is aware of unreliable wireless service in the Naramata area and regularly receives complaints 
from community members related to service levels. During the pandemic, more and more community 
members rely on wireless services to meet their business, professional and personal needs from their 
homes. For the past eight (8) years TELUS has being working with the community to improve services 
and place new infrastructure. The proposed structure has been received positively from throughout 
the most recent public consultation and will improve services for all wireless users in the area. 

The current proposal aims to address many of the concerns that were heard during the public 
consultation process for their previous application by recommending a new location and design. 
 
Statutory Requirements:  



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 2 of 9 

Under Section 4.2 of Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada (ISED) Antenna Tower 
Siting Policy, “proponents must follow Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation process where 
the local land use authority does not have an established and documented public consultation 
process applicable to antenna siting.”  

The Regional District Board’s Communication Towers / Antenna Systems Approval Process Policy 
outlines items required for the public consultation process and design details expected by the RDOS.  

Site Context: 
The tower will be located on private property legally described as Block A, Plan KAP3943B, Sublot 3, 
District Lot 2711, SDYD, Portion PL 1190, Except Plan KAP44464.  The proposed location of Pole No. 
BCB576 is approximately 130 metres northeast of the intersection of Smethurst Road and 
Cottonwood Lane off of Naramata Creek Forest Service Road. The tower will be located to the east of 
the BC Hydro Right of Way. 

The tower is mostly surrounded by resource are on all sides with large holdings property to the west. 
There are no residences located within 350 metres of the tower.  
 
Background:  
Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the proposed 
location is designated Resource Area (RA) and is the subject of an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) Area designation. 

A Natural Features Assessment report was completed on July 5, 2021 by Libor Michalak, R.P. Bio. Of 
Keystone Environmental Ltd. which states that “It is anticipated that the project poses a low risk of 
significant residual environmental effects with the assumption that applicable Best Management 
Practices (BMP)… are implemented.” 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459 2008, the locations is zoned Resource Area (RA), 
and defines ‘utility uses’ as meaning “facilities for broadcast transmission and the distribution and 
collection of electrical, telephone, T.V., cable, natural gas, sewer, water and transportation services 
servicing the general public”.  Section 7.3 (Uses Permitted in Every Zone) of the bylaw permits ‘utility 
uses’ in every zone. 

Board Consideration: 

At its meeting of July 5, 2018, the Board considered a request from Telus for a Letter of Concurrence 
in relation to a proposed new tower and communications facility and subsequently resolved to “defer 
providing a letter of non-concurrence in order to allow Telus to seek an alternative location or 
design”. 

At its meeting of February 7, 2019, the Board was advised by Telus that there were no other suitable 
sites available and that it was again seeking a Letter of Concurrence for the same site.  The Board 
subsequently resolved that “Letters of Non-Concurrence” be provided to Industry Canada in relation 
to: 

· the proposed telecommunication tower facility BCB576 located near Naramata Road and 
Arawana Road, Naramata; and  

· the proposed telecommunication tower facility BCB577 located near North Naramata Road and 
Smethurst Road, Naramata”. 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 3 of 9 

 

Public Consultation:  
On June 1, 2020, Telus began the public consultation process with property owners and the RDOS. On 
July 19, 2021 Telus submitted a package that included a summary of the project and evidence of the 
public consultation engagement process, and was found in compliance with the Board’s Policy for 
Communication Towers/ Antenna Systems Approvals:  

· public notification to be sent to all properties within a 1000 m radius of the proposed facility; 
· the holding of a public meeting and inclusion of the public meeting details in the written notice to 

properties; 
· newspaper advertisements placed in separate editions;  
· the proponent to keep RDOS informed of significant public concerns; 
· notice of development sign posted at the location of the proposed tower 

In addition to the comments received by TELUS, the RDOS received 13 emails, 11 of which were also 
included in the Telus submission.  The comments received by the RDOS were a combination of 
support for the proposed Pole No.BCB576, questions about painting and lighting to camouflage the 
tower and concerns related to the general health and safety of communication electromagnetic 
radiation.  

Any additional public comments received by the RDOS and not contained in the Telus submission 
have been included as a separate item on the agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In general, the proposed facilities are seen to meet the Board’s policy guidelines. 

The RDOS Policy also contains guidelines for the design and style of a proposed antenna system (i.e. 
negative visual impacts should be mitigated through use of appropriate landscaping, screening, 
stealth design techniques and similar approaches such as non-reflective surfaces and colours).   

In terms of visibility, the applicant has relocated Pole BCB576 since their previous application based 
on community feedback.  The current proposed location is further up the hillside away from homes, 
above the Kettle Valley Railway and will be shared with other providers (Roger and Freedom Mobile) 
so as to avoid the need for multiple towers. 

The applicant has indicated that the height of the tower is 50 metres to accommodate having multiple 
providers on one tower.  Administration notes that the height is also driven by the terrain, to avoid 
having services adjusted by undulations in the land 

In terms of the public comments regarding health and safety, the applicant states that the proposed 
installation will need to meet Health Canada’s Safety Code 6 (Radiofrequency Exposure) Guidelines.   
It is the responsibility of the federal government to ensure that standards are established to ensure 
public safety.  

Telus is looking for the best option for the community and placement of any new facilities; however, if 
the Board were to issue a letter of non-concurrence, Telus has an option to apply for an ‘Impasse’ and 
the file will be reviewed and the decision could be overturned by Innovation, Science and Economic 
Development Canada.  
 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 4 of 9 

 
Alternatives:  
.1 THAT the Board of Directors provide a “Letter of Non-Concurrence” to Industry Canada in relation 

to proposed telecommunication tower facility BCB576 located near Smethurst Road and 
Cottonwood Lane, Naramata.  

.2 THAT the Board of Directors provide a “Letter of Non-Concurrence” to Industry Canada in relation 
to proposed telecommunication tower facility BCB577 located near Smethurst Road and 
Cottonwood Lane, Naramata.  

.3 THAT the Board of Directors defer providing a letter of non-concurrence in order to allow Telus to 
seek an alternative location or design. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:  

_____________________ _______________________ 
Fiona Titley, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Map   

 No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

 No. 3 – Compound Layout 

 No. 4 – Elevation Plans 

 No. 5 – Photo Simulations 

   



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 5 of 9 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps (Pole No. BCB576) 
 

 

Subject 
Area 

NARAMATA 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 6 of 9 

Attachment No. 2 - Applicant’s Site Plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 7 of 9 

Attachment No. 3 – Compound Layout 

     

  



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 8 of 9 

Attachment No. 4 – Elevation Plans 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                         File No: E2021.001-CL 
Page 9 of 9 

  Attachment No. 5 – Photo Simulations 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BCBS76 

fbmt of Ruld,nl [mill, lettu, Commtnl5hn1 or 011, 
VolctMunp 

CommenlorQuulion Support/ non• lluponn lo Commtnl or Quullon 
IUpport/ 
n,ut,-11 

011eRuponn5tnt 

Joan Morrison comment sheel 12-Jul l. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you uthfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Greg and Joanne comment sheel 
Chairot 

12-Jul 1. Do you feel this Is an appropriate location for lhe proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. A1e you satisfied with the appeuance / design of the proposed facility? If not, what changH would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Stephanie Beiuette comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you salisfie-d with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Lorene Brandys comment sheel 12-Jul l. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you salisfied with !he appearance/ design of the proposed f.Jcility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Scott Desilets comment sheet 12-Jul l. Do you feel this Is an apprcpnate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

comment sheet 12-Jut 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONO 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

George Bawden comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you fee11his is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would ycu suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 



Uaml' ol Rnld,nt Emili. ltttu, Commtnl Sht,t 01 Date 
Voltl'Mnu,, 

8CBS76 
Comml'nl Of Q1111lion Support/ non- Rt1ponu to Comment Of Quutlon 

support/ 
n1ut11I 

Dalt Rt1ponH Stnt 

Adam Dubroy comment sheet 08-Ju! 1. Do you Ieer this is an appropriatl!! location for the proposed facility? 
XYi!!S 
ONo 
Cemrnents: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance / di!!.S ign of the propo~d facility? If not, what changes would you sugg l!!st? 

XYl!!s 
ONo 
Comments: 

suppo1t 

ValetieDubrO'( comment sheet 08-Jul l, Do you feel this is an appropriate localion for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfil!!d wilh the appearance / di!!sign of tbe prcpcsed facility? U not, what changes wculd you sugg l!!st? 

XYi!!s 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

SteveCreamen comment sheet 08-Jul l. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the prepesed facility? If not, whal cNngo?s would you suggest? 
x res 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Tammy Clark comment sheet 08-Jul l. Do you reet lhls is an approprialo? location for tho? prepesed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, whal changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

supporl 

Brian Rodger comment sheet 09-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facili ty? 
x res 
ONO 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied wilh the appurance / design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Tina Baird email 09-Jul To whom ii may concern: 

I live and run a busino?ss in Naramata and have the following comments on the Telus proposed cell tower near Smethurst Road and Cottonwood Lane in 
Naram.ata: 

U3agree that the proposed location is an appropri11e location for the proposed facility and tower. 

2.D'I relation to the appearance/ design of the proposed facility I have the following requests In order lo mfnimite the proposed towers negative visual 
impact for residents and tourists lo the area: 
a.lD,at the proposed tower be painted to mlnimlte light reflection and enable it to visually blend with the surround ing environment. 
b.(Ihat no lighting be installed on the tower. 

3.f!have no additional comments. 

My name is: Tina Baird 
My em.ail address - Tina Baird 

support Tina - thanks for taking the time to comment. We will be painting the tower .and there will be no lighting on it. 

Regards, 
Chad 
60:1 ·910-7310 

19-Jul 



8(8576 
/hmtolR11ldtnl (m1ll,hlhr,Comm1nl.s.hulo1 D111 

Valnr,1r,11,, 
Comm1nlorQur1llon Surpor1 / non, Jlupor.u toC.Ommtnl or Qvrilion 

u1ppo,t/ 
n1ul11l 

Hugh McClelland email 31-MayHello, 

Would you please conf1rm tbe slitt and end time for rhe June 23 onlin~ pubh: meelm11 for the J:IO?Oad llaramau cell IO<Hr l:i:alion? 
1n the MWi it S!)1 S:>0- £·0J ~";'t .:-.d :l,3:t seemr a ·,•e-rr !t.:irt t!-r,j:I of tirm, ~= ·,·;cn::'erin[ ;~ 1'1!! it l Wr.:>' 

Hugh McCielland 
riaramata Bench \','inerie1Asso:inion 

SU?p:l:I 

Ihe meelhi is s:hed~11':d from 5:30··€:0)pm, a1 adrl':1tised, and a! pH tbe J:D05 lfp'cal pubhc informatio:"lmeetir,i; s:hedukd of hllf an hOJI. rhe 
meetinf car r u-; !c.-ii ;• lh~r~ i; hf~· 1tte::. ::!an:t/in!t-•e!'. 

TawnyVerigin 
l,'imager or Gcvemment Affairs 
Agent to THUS ccmrnun'cartcas Inc 

CypreulandServi:eslnc. 
Suile 1051 -409 Granville Slfeet, Vancouver, BC V6C 1T2 
Cell:601 .657.8307 I Office:~.620.0377 I Fax:601 .620.0376 
E: tawny@cypreulandservices.com I W: wvm .cypreuland1ervices.com 

22•Jun 

Hugh McClell1nd 

Denp e:outon 

To Whom It M1yConcern: 

On behalf of the Wine,y bu1ineues opera ling in lhe Naramala area whom are members of the Nar amata Dench Wineries A1sociation (N8WA), lhe 
N8\'/A has the following comments on the Telus prc,~01ed cell toue, nea, Smelhursl Road ar.d ccncnwccd lane in t:a,amata: 

1.'U1e NBWA agrees thn the p10;3osed location is an apprcpnate location rc1 the p1opo!ed Jacilil'I and lower. 

2.lh ,elaUon lo the appeuance / desi&n ol lhe proposed lacihty lhe !lBWA males rhe fo!1o,.,.ing requests in order to nnn'mire the propoted to.~·er s 
negali;e ~·isualimpact for Winetj' cuslomea, lo:.11ists to the area, and local ru'dents: 
ailhal the proposed lO\';er be painted to minimire light reflecUon and en1b'e it to visually blend nith the iUl/ounding environment. 
b.:Jhal no lighting be lnslalled on the lower. 

3.l!he fl8WA has no addiUonal commenls. 

The NBV/A m.tiling address is 

The NBWA represenls Wine1iu localed between Vancouver Avenue in Penticton and flaramata Village. 

Additional contact infornulion below. 

My wife and I own !he properly lmmediatdy noflhwesl to lhe propo1ed to.-;er location. We a,e at 

Would you be able to send me more information aboul the proposed tower? l v,ould particulally appreciate seeing a drawing showing a verliul ,·iew of 
the tower. Wilh a 50 meter heiiht, we II likely see a good pa,1 ofil f,om our place, bul we have no objections lo lhat. 

Thank you for you, allenlion, 

Denys aoulon 

Hugh- lhanl:s for your comments and laklng !he lime lo auend the open house. As discussed, we will be proposing to pain! the tower and there will 
be no lighting. 

l!Hul 

support Denys -A!tached a,e lhe plans with the lower profile. I renll wal\..ina up lhe hi!l lhat the ec llydto lransminion tower is on between you and the 
lower iile (tee aerial below) and hH•ina a good look to see what your houie 1n:y see. I thinl )'Ou mily see th,:, top of the to,·;er but r,o: much 1:lse. 
n s a liil difficult to ccnfilm exacllr what ~·ou d see fi\·en !he topogtaphy there. lei me ).now if rou ha,·e other comments or que1tions afte1 seeing 
thed1awings. 

Chad 
60-1-9)0-7310 

Sent from Mail for Windo·,ys 10 

31-tt.ay 

Dhke and Rita 
Terrill 

email 02-Jun As a long time fla,amata resident I slrong:y suppo11 the addition of a Telus lower in this localion, We ha,·e horrible cell service in this community. 
Sincerely 

Blake and Rita Teuiff 

suppotl Good day Blake and Rila Ter,iff, 

Thank you fot providing us your comments of support regarding the proposed TElUS wi,eleu communications facility at Smelhurst Rd & 
Cottonwood Ln, Naramata, BC. 

We appreciate your feedbaclt ;md will share you, comments with ROOS for consideration. Should you have additional comments, please respond 
within the nex.t 21 days. 

Sincet<'IV, 

Tawny Verigin 
Manager of Government Aff,liu 

22-fun 



BC.8576 

rum, ol Rtsldtnl (m111I, hthr,Commtnt Shttt 01 D1lt 
VolctMtntft 

Commtnl 01 QuuHcm Support/ non• Rt1ponn lo Commtnt 01 Qut1tlon 
IUpport/ 
lltUllll\ 

D1ttRt1poMtStnl 

Marc Marc email 02-Jun Tawny Marlatt, 
With regards to the property (the land desc,ibed as PIO: 011•781·190) in which you are trying to erect a soft high tower in orde, to emit microwave 
radiation in proximity lo Naramata. 

1) What is the ma:llimum amount/ level of mic,owave radiation which could be produced by all wirelus servke p1oviden combi~d who could uti!iu~ 
that tower? 

2) Is that "crewn land~ or is it owned privately? 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ltOQsJMu4tg 

non-support HJ Marc, 

Thanks for your email. 

I will let Tawny from Cypreu land se.vrces field your queslion about mic,owave ,adiation, as she will be more familiar with the Health and Safety 
regulations under Health Canada s Safety Code. 

As for the parcel of land, this is privately owned, not crown land. 

Regards, 

JoAnn Peachey• Planner I 
Regional District of Okanagan-Simifkameen 

JoAnne - thanks tor re1pondlng. 

Marc -we have requested a SC6 limits of exposure calculatron be completed. This will take a bit of time as we have to get technical Info from the 
othu companies. That said, I can fully assure you that it will be well beloN allowable Health cenace requirements - in the magnitude of lhousands 
of tfmes below. 

02-Jun 

MarcMarc 08-Jun With regards to that TELUS plan for a 'rnctu-vse cell tower in Naramata; the attached document is a C;anadian report by Or. MAGDA IIAVAS, B.Sc., 
Ph.D., Professor Emeril• • warning about SG roll-out in municipalities and adverse consequences to hvmens, flora and fauna• 
https://magdahavas.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/Havas-SG-heallh-humans-and•biota•April-15-2020.pdf 

https://www.niehs.nih.gov/news/news1oom/1eluses/2018/november1/index.cfm 

High Exposure to Radio Frequency Radiation Associated With cancer in Mille Rau - National Toxlco!ogy Program releases final repcns on rat and mouse 
studies of radio frequency radiation like that used in 2G and 3G cell phone technologies• National tnuuotes of Health 
The National Toxicology Program (NTPJ concluded there is clear evidence that male rats exposed to high levels of radio f1equency radiatioo (RFRJ Ii.le 
that used in 2G and 3G cell phones developl!d cancerous heart tumors, according to final reports released today. 
www.niehs.nlh.gov 
Health Canada somehow omitted this 25-million•dollar study which indicates lhe dangers of radiofrequency radiation when HC claimed the following on 
HC's website with rl!!gards to their "code 6 • ; 
https-J/www.canada.u/en/heallh-canada/services/he.1lth-risks•safety/radia1!on/evl!ryday-things-,mit-radiation/cell-phones-towers.htmllla3 
"Based on the available scientific evidence, there are no health risks from exposure lo the low levels of radiofrequency EMF which pecple are e,;posed 
to r,om cell phones, cell phone towers, antennas and SG devices: ?I 

Marc- the land is privately owned and terms and conditions are confidential. Typically rent is about lk per month and this is a typical site. The SC6 
calculation confirming compliance with health and safety requirements should be a completed soon as well. 

Chad 

lS-lun 

MarcM;uc 16-Jun Thank-you for your reply. 
1) We fl!Ceived ii figure of$50,CXXJ up fronl (refused) to erect one across the lake on private land. Is this sum also typical or is that lk monthly rental 
typically an additional payment 1 
2) We are looking forwards to viewing those Code 6 calculations once they are completed and seriously will you (or anyonl! else) be wilting to have one 

lnstalll!d of that same magnitude under the head of your bed 24/7, since Health Canada will have somehow determined that this Is safe to do? 

Marc-I am not sure who would have offered that but that is not what the rates are. As far as proximity of homes to cell sites, the majority of 
Canada's population live within 400-SOOm of a cell site. I personally live closer to a cell sue (a few sites). 

Regards, 
Chad 

Marc - I am fot!owlng up regarding the Safely Code 6 calculation (or radio frequency ou1pul) for the proposl!d tower. TELUS has finalised the 
calculation based on the equipm,nt requirements or all companies (Freedom, Rogers and TELUS) and the maximum output of the tower to the 
nearest home in the ar ea is .89Y. of the allowable limits permitted In Health Canada s Safety Code 6 or less than 1% of the allowable limit. 

Regards, 
Chad 



B (D 516 

th m t o f R u ld c n t £m 1 il , t e ue r , C o m m m t Shu I 0 1 O t lt 

Y o l:r t.1 u 11 t • 

C om m rn to ,Q uu l io n Su p ;> O ft/ n on • ll t 1p on 1t l0 C om m rn to 1Q u r1l io n 

1u pp o rt/ 

ntu trz l 

0 1 tr R o p o n u s ~ n l 

c o m m e n t s h e e t 

Chris erann 

O~·Jul 1. no vou feel thts i; an i!;>;>~c:riate tcceucn for lht p·o;,osed fa::ililr7 
>:Yes 
01:: 

suppon 

12•Ju! J. 0:- roe Ieel 11":is is u, 2ppr:ipri!:'! locH;t-.'I for lh!! p:opoie-d fadfitr' 

XYEc! 
0:10 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the ap,'e-arance / de1Jsn of the proposed facilily1 If not, what changes v,ould j-cu su4ges.t? 
XYes 
o ne 
cemmems: 

f------+---------+------------,-+-c--c-cC""C"-,--------,--,--,---,-,----,----,-------·-------------------+------+--------------------------- --------------------· -- 
Chris a'enn cor.-.r.t!nt !h!e-1 12-Jul 1. Do vcv f:~: th'i is 2n !pprcrr;<:!! loc!tr_-;, fc1 the propos~:I f?cil'ty? 

XYH 
o rrc 
con·rr.enB; 

2. Ar! y1.•u s ausfle d with tl,e cpp!,uan~e / de1:g,, cf me p1C1pcse-d faciliW7 II no:, wl1at chu13n wolll:f \'CU 1u_;;g!st? 

x res 
a r:o 
Comments: 

Fnncois sacve comment sheet 1Nul 1. Do you fee-I this is an appropriate lccation for the prcpcsed facility? 
· XYes 

01:0 
cemmenu: 

2. f,re ycu ~atisfi~d \0iilh lt-.e cppcu.ao1ct-/ de!ign ol :he pro;:o-Hd facait\·? 11 ncl, whH chu,g!!t wcctd veu su::;i;C!l? 
XYc1 
o r:o 
C:,niments: Tho! lo,·;~, p?rt or U,e tcr;ch i1 in di1e r,~ed or ade-qLiU:? c,:,, ·.·er.!&e 

support 

ccmmenl ~heel 12-Jul t. Do ro!J reel this is an .app:orriHe lot,Hic,n ro, the p:opo!ed facilit\·1 
x,·es 
ONo 
Comments: Uccltenl compromise to cuuent won'I nted!!d ser,ice without implcling re-s ide nu prop!rties 

2. A1e you salisfied with the appearcnce / design of the proposed facility? If not, what chanies would you suggest? 
XYes 
O1:o 
Comments: 

E\·elyn Dumaine• comment sheet 
Mauhall 

12-Jul 1. Do you fee-I this is an appropriate location for the propo1ed faci1itr? 
XYu 
01:0 
Comrnents: 

2. Are- \'O t.1 salisfied with the appea,ancl!: / design ol th!? proposed facility? If nol, what changes would you suggest? 

XYu 
01:0 
Comments: 

support 

Ed Bingley commcnl sheet 12•Jul l. Do \'ou feel this is an appropriate location for lhe- propose-d facility? 
XYes 

Comments: 

2, Are you salislied with the zppeannce / design of the proposed facilit\·1 If not, what d1ansn would you sug!:!Sl7 
x,·es 

Otfo 
Comments: 

suppOII 



!li m t n l R t 1 ld tn t [m 1 \I , lr ll tr , Cc: m m tn l Sh t cl e r 0 1 lt 

V o ln M n n , r 

B CB S7 6 

Co m m tn l 0 1 Q uu l io n Su p p o rt / no n • R t spo ni t to Com m tn l 0 1 Q u t 1 l io n 

su pp o rt / 

ntutral 

O.atrRt1po111tStnl 

23•lun 1) h that c,11 lower i! precvrscr or in p1'pualion to the 1011 o:.tl of Sg in Na,am!ta ? 

Thaol-rou for vcur 1eant ,r,p'r but )·o:.i di:i not )'El anmer Iha! sirnple ouevttcn a)I ed of ,o:i; 

2) W1, ·,~:i 1c· u,10;1~ <,·n) ro-uet.t re t-.e.:n.._;, ceace ~·.-t,d: em:1i th'!: n.a-imu-n o:i\~Jt ce-n •u~:: 1,1 :1'.:: ~ ::o:n 6 1•,:1cl e.: .:r.::'!: 1- ! r.uo v' 1:iJ· 
hed '1t./7 until ,ou, parnnE? 

Wt DO 1::::H cement to lhll meo-rne de redreuen lrE:spnsing into our bo:i1es. imc ou· bcmet or 0:110 o:.r, pri,it£ ~1crHt\·. 

Doing so is a violation of ou, human rit:h\s, \·1h::h ,·o:.s appear to b'!! tryinil to l&nou:, pow!:!:)· until charged an:l found gu·!1,· of that relon'i? 
http s · // e htrus t o: r/ eht- ta Les- h'1iloric• !e ga l-ection-e ga inst- l he· rec- r e;;a rding · cell· phone ·r adia lio:i/ 

HIT Tai.es l!istoric Legal Ac lion Against the FCC Regarding Cell Phone Radiation - Environmental lleal!h Trml 
The En•·ironmMtal lleallh Tlusl and a coalition of other commentatou have fi!ed a court appeal challenging the FCC s order terminating its evalualion 
of the adequacy of FCC RF radiation limits. Despite reams of scientific evidence showing serious biological effects at levels far below the o,isting FCC RF 
limits and evidence gi,·en by numerous individuals injured( ... ) 
ehtrust.o,g 
TELUS c/o Cyp1tn Lmd Services Inc. i1i inviling the public to an Online Public Meeting 
[\•enl: Nolice of Proposed lElUS Telecommunications Facilily &. Online Public Mee ling 
Date and time: Wednesday, June 23, 2021, S:30- 6:ro pm PST 
Join ~-1eelin1: hllps:/ftelus.webe.( com 
Meeting::: 14S 7170518 
Mee ling Fasw.-ord: 8C6576 

Souy re, not ,·i1luJII'{ attendini thi1i \·irlual' meeti:ig 1egardin5 that props~d cell to,•,e, )'eslerda·{. An utull meeting cr..t<!cors (Manitou f>a,;.?I ,·1ilh 6· 
fool dist,rncing would ha\·e teen com!derabli· mot.! app1opfi3te. lmtcad, we shall hueb1· present the fol'owing concerns to )'Ou ,h·ei\· 'l'n\' cf;·,h'ch 
should be add,eued indi-.·iduanv before \fying to proceed wilh thal cell tower in the Naramata area; 

Plus, our major concerns regarding Code 6 are that lhe Ministers responte, and lleallh Can!da: 
l.l'ileglect lo protect Canadians by: 

t/,uc - I pr,viousl)' ind:cated lhat I do lh·t do!e to a couple of c,11 sites as d:.i most Can2di11m. lhis tower will have Sg but operating o.i lhe ume 
flequencies as 3 and '1g networh. Should \'Ou ha-.·e rurther cor.:erns to health and safety and the 1,pecifics of lluhh C2nad? s iequiremenls its li•,ly 
beH \c; conlact them di1e,1ly a1 th~y ue the h:,1:fo, of thnl! r1:[u1!tio.i 

23-Jun 

MarcMuc '18•Jun 1) Whal is \'Our purpose or duly u a 'public consultant' or 11re you not acting at all as an actual public consultznt but rather onlv as Cypress'and1,ervices 
employee 7 As ,·ou 11ppear to bellying lo ignore all of the informal ion proYided to you as a result of this 'public consultation' p,ocess. 

This public consullation indicates 1hat we do nol consent· along with many Canadians who are being uninformed t/or gi.,.en no reasonable cho;ce to 
li-.•eclose to'cellsites'. against lheirwilt. 

2) llow man, people (not p::rlitici.ws) ho,11 the popu!alion of 1:ar•mala who are not affiliated to that indus1,y viftu~llf altend~d the recent pub!:c 
consultation rneeling on W,dnesdiy, June 23, 2021, S:!0- 6 C•J pm PST 7 

3) Compa,i:d to hou many people flom Uaramala cllended 1h31 p:e\·ious {pre-co•,idl actual {non•\'i1tual) public ,nee tings le.l!arll[n& 1imifor p1opouls 
from the same {Telus, cypreu/standirdlandetc.) in which lhose propouh •,•;ere all strucl do....-n 7 
hllps://www.mynaramata.com/cgi-bin/show_artictes.cgi?ID=7Sl7&TOPIC=O 

Telus Tower Et·esore 
In respon1,e to !he Telus tower loplc, many of us are more impacted with the proposed localion for the pole at No1th flaramala Rd. and Sme1hur1il than 
others located in the ,·illage. Those near the Arawan,1 Rd. (more ... ) 
www.mynararnala.c<1m 

4) Where can those results of that most recent June '13, 2021 "virtual public consultaUon' be viewed? 

SJ It is not clear why you',e slating that you and now most C2nadiam li-.·e 'near' c,11 sile1i. Are you lrying to encourage our acceplance of such violations 
becau1e it's now a more common occu,rence? 

6) Pleail! answer lhe most lmportanl queslion with a simple YES 01 NO; 

Will you (or anyone ehe) consent lo ha\'ing a device which emits lhe rn.J~imum output permitted by IIC's CODE 6 installed under the head of }·our bed 
24/7 unlil your passing 7 

1) What is your pu1pose or duly as a 'public consu!lanl' or are you not actin1 at all as an actual public consultant but ralher only as 
Cypresslandse,.,.ices emp!O}"ee 7 As you appear to be trying to ignore all of the inlorrnalion p,o.,.lded to you as a result of this 'public consultation' 
process. I am lhe appticanl acting on behalf of TELUS. Part of lhe ROOS prcceu requires conducting and compleli115 a pub:iccomu1tation fo,t the 
proposed communications tower. We a,e not "Ignoring- anything. Any co1rcspondencc between us will be pHsed along to the ROOS in 
consideration of our application. 

lhis publ;c coMu:tation indicates thal we do nol con1ienl • a'.cng with man{ Car.ad:rns wl,o arc bl!ing uninlorir,ed &/or giren 1:0 1Nsonat!l cho!ce 
lo li-.·e close to 'cell 1,iles'. ago?inst their will. Yes we have ,·ou as r,ol supp~rli\·e of th!? proj.?ct. 

2) How rnany p1:op!e (not politicians) from the population or llaramata 1·,ho are net <>tr.Hated to that indust1y \i1lu311;· .11tended the recenl public 
consultation meeting on Wednesd.?y, June 23, W21, S:m- 6:rop:n PST 7 There weie ab:wt 3- '1 fol\s .illend 1hemeetint. 

3} Compaied to how many peo;>le ffom 1:aramal,1 an ended lhH pre·,iou1i (p,e·co,id) actual (non,.,.irtu.21) public ,r,eetings rega1ding similar 
p1opi;ual1 flom the same (TELUS, cypress/standardlandf:tc.J in which 1ho1e proposals were all struck down? 
htlps·/Amw.myna1amala.com/cgi•bin/show_a,1icles.cgi?I0=75J7&TOPIC:=O 

Telus Tower [}·tsore 
In iesponse to the Telus tower topic, many of u1i are more imputed ,·1ith the proposed location for lhe pole al r:onh Naramata Rd. and Smelhurst 
than olheu located In lhe village. Those near lhe Arawana Rd. (more .) 
wwa.mynaramala.com 

'1) Where can those iesu!t1i ol th al mo1t recenl June 23, 2021 'virtual puhlic conrnltation' be \'iewed? They will be 1iupplied to ROOS stafl and made 
pub!ic at an upcoming ROOS Board meeting. 

S) Ith not clear why you'1t slating thal you and now mos I Canadians live 'near' cell sites. Are \'OU lr;ing to encouuge our acceptance of such 
vlo!alions because il'1i now a more common occu,rence 71 am unclear whal '\•iolalions~ you are rdeuing lo? The site is full·, comp!iant wilh SC6 as 
per earlier emails. 

L __L __,__ _._7;_) 1_','h_;_Y_"'_°"_ld_<_h,_1 :...•'...;••-•-"-•-••_w_"_"_"_'...;'•:...•_,._,._,il_l •.:.•'-'-"-' •_n_J_&_•.:.•_••_h·_,o_,,_.,_•_<h_er_<h_•_n ...;Sg;_l ,_ __ __,J 6) Please amwei the most impoflant question with a simple HS or NO; 

'18•Jun 



BCB576 

Uam1 of Ruld1nl (mall, lttltr, Comm1nl Shut 01 Dali 
VoluM11nc1 

Comm1nl or Qu110on Support/ non- Ruporut to Commtnl or Quntlon 
1uppo,t/ 
n1ulnol 

Dal1RuponHS1nl 

MarcMarc em1iil 28-Jun If recent events have shown us anything, it is that our htalth is whal mailers most, prolection of lhe young, lhe old and the vulnerable and lhe 
marginalized are high in our minds as we procen the effects of Covid-19 on every aspect of our uves and environment. It Is dear that later responses to 
early warnings of potential harm are costly. 
We need the Internet. We rely on ou, paid public servants as go·,ernmenl to ensure our safety. To date, Health Canada and ether Ministries bave ltt 
us down. \'le ask that they be held accountable for their lack of diligence, inaccurate and absent sharing of informalion specifically related to the effect 
of long term exposure to radio-frequency radiation (RF), and in addition to thfs matter, WI!: consider thal idtnlifying who is for and against is based on 
wholly insufficient and wot fully inaccurate and misleading information, that this lack of informed consent infringes on lheir human rights. The 
telecommunications Industry is rushing to dep!oy SG across Canada, with no prior health and environmental fmpact assessment, without fully 
understanding the economic consequences, and wilhout informed consent.• Full SG roll-out will require the installation of hundreds of thousands I of 
new antennas throughout the country on cell towers, hydro poles, lamp posts, buildings and other structures, o~en within a few metres of where we 
live and work.• Canadians are largely unaware of the rr1\:s of chronic exposure to radio•rtequency (RF) radiation emrned by ceu tower antennas, small 
cell antennas, cellphones, cordltss phcnes, and Wi-Fi and Bluetooth devices such as tablets, laptops, baby monitors, v,ireless printers/keyboards/mice, 
gaming consoles, virtual reality hudsets, wearables, "smart" appliances, and utility meters.• RF radialfon Is sclentifically demonstrated to cause or 
contribute to numerous health effects, Including cancers, sperm damage, reproductive harms, learning and memory deficits, and necrc-cegenereuve. 
cellular and genetic damage.• We urge you to "look before we leap,"_., to Immediately suspend any fuflher SG roll-out, and to press for a safer, mere 
cost-effective and secure alternalive -namely fibre-optic and wired connections to every heme and business. 

Publlc servanls are expected to do the right thing- even when its not easy. They uphold the highest proressionat and ethical standards because they 
undtrstand !he high 1!:Xpectations the public has for their work.• Each public servant takes an Oath of Employment. Each lime they take lhe Oath, 
they're reminded of the duties, powers and trusts that are placed Jn public servants.• As part of the Oath, public servants swear not just to do their job 
but to:• Serve ethically and with inlegrity, loyalty, impartiality, and objecti't'ity. 
Put the interests of the public and the public service ahead of their own personal interests 
Maintain and enhance the publics trust and confidence in the public service• These commitments make sure that our actions are impartial, objective 
and beyond reproach.• 

The person must have the capacity to consent.• Thi! provider must disclose information about the matter, including the Intended btnefits and risks and 
the liktlihood er probability that the benefits and risks will occur •lhe person must understand the relevant information• This consent must nol occur 
under duress. 

The lack of information related to the effecls of EMF has created a biased and unbalanctd rtsponse •This is not a public consultation. This is railroading. 

Will you (or anyone else) consent to having a device which emfts the mu:imum output permitted by HC's CODE 6 Installed under the head of your 
bed 24/7 until your passing? 

There are no homes within 350 metres of the proposed antenna installation so I don t think this would be considtred "under thl!: hud of your bed". 
As I pointed oul earlier - I live closer to a cell site than 350 already and "yes" I have not issut with ft. 

7) Why would that proposed tower have Sg but will operate on 3 & llg netwoth 1alhe1 than Sg? lhe Sg techrte!ogy will operate in a similar 
frequency range as ustd for 4g as this is the only frequtndes available to optrate on. 

8) Pltase provide the email contact of the holder of Code 6 who can respond without saying ther, hands a,e tied by the power of the 'industry', not 
the health of Canadians. Tel.:hcinfo.infosc@canada.ca 

MarcMa,c 30-Jun Thank-you for your lnformati't'I!: reply which clearly Indicates that Chad Marlatt from cypresslandservices must immediately bl!: extracted from this public 
consultation precess. Pluse view the reasons why in the following rep1y's in GREEN, to Chad's reply's in red; 

1) What is )"OUI purpose or duty as. a 'public consultant' or are you not acting at all as an actual public consullant but rather only as Cyprenlandservices 
employee? As you appea, lo be trying lo Ignore all of the information pro•,idtd to you as a ruull of this "public consultation' process. I am the applicant 
acting on be hair of TELUS. Part of lhe ROOS process requires conducting and completing a public consultation fort the proposed communications tower. 
We are not "ignoring~ anylhin&, Any couespcndtnce between us will bl!: paned along to th! ROOS In consideration of our application. 
Chad Marlatt from cypresslandservices, the applfcant acting on behalf or TELUS has hereby told us that he has ignored the relevant information 
pruented in the many scientific, medical and pe,tinenl links (documents) sent to him during this public consultation. 

This public consultation Indicates that we do not consent• along v,ith many Canadians who are being unlnformed &/or given no reasonable choice to 
live close to 'cell sites'. against lhe!r viii!. Yes we have you as not supportive of the project. 
This is not just a question about who is 'supportive' or not of that project. This matter cannot be solely decided upon• based on uninformed publ!c 
consent. Cypresslandservices has not Informed the publlc regarding the dangers of this project as presented for example in the many links that ha\·e 
currently been made a't'ailable. Which Chad Marlatt is himself ob't'lous1y intentlonally trying to ignore. 

2) How many people (not politicians) from the population of Naramata who are not affiliated to that indust,y vi,tually attended the recent public 
consu!lation mee1ing on Wtdnesday, June 23, 2021, 5:30:- 6 00 pm PST? There were about 3- 4 folks attend the meeling. 
Of the ftw thousand people presently in Naramata possibly 3 people attended this public consullaticn concerning the total populalion of Nara ma ta. 
No information has been presented on how informed those 3 people are regarding the dan1ers of that project 01 if they are supportive of ii. 
Additionally, how many 'Industry' peopll!: {Chad, TELUS etc .. ) and hew many politicians (ROOS etc.) attended that meeting? 

3) Compared to hew many people from Naramata attended that previous (pre-covld) actual (non-virtual) public meetings regarding similar proposals 
from the same (TELUS, cypress/standardlandetc.) in whtch those proposals were all struck down? 
https:f/www.mynaramata.com/cgl-bin/show_arlicles.cgi?ID=7517&TOPIC=O 

Telus Tower Eyesore 
In response to the Telus tower topic, many of us are more Impacted with the proposed location for the po!e at North Naramala Rd. and Smtthursl than 
others located In th!!: village. Those near the Ara Viana Rd. (more ... ) 

N/A N/A 

Norbel lacis comment sheet OS-Jun 1. Do you feel lhis is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Commenls: On hillslde above hemes etc.• 1:ery unobtrusive! Great ideal 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If net, what changes would you suggesl? 
XYes 
ONO 
Comments: 

3. Additional Comments: Area really needs improvtd TELUS service. Strongly support! 

Support Geed day Norbert, 

lhank you for providing us your comm!'nts of suppo,t regarding the proposed TELUS wireless communications facility at Smethurst Rd & 
Cottonwood Ln, Naramata, BC. 

We ilppreciate your feedback and will share your comments with ROOS for consideration. Should you have additional comments, please respond 
within the nell-121 days. 

Sincerely, 

Tawny Verigin 
Manager of Government Affai,s 

22-Jun 



BCBS76 

Fh m r o l R n ld r 11 1 £m 1 !1 ,h tt u ,C om m r 11 1 S h r r to r 0 1 1t 

V o lt r M u n , , 

t om m r n lo 1Q u ri t io 11 S u p p o r1 / n o n - P. u p o nt r lo C o m m rn l o r Q uu t lo n 

1u p p o r1 / 

n r u ll a l 

0 1 1, R u p c nu S rn l 

Craig Dusel email OS-Jun Here is mr cornrneet s'ieet respoMe. 

1. res th"s is ~n lp;i:o;i:iatf lo:ati::,n 
2 \"es! .HT, s.ti1f1!d w:,, u-e dei·f~ 
~- /sic- t::i:ft:;;,~.al co.-~1rr,t ·,t! 

Craig Dusel 

r-~----+----·---- --------+------------------· David 8. Jorgenien t'm.!il 03-Jun ueer lt.s. 1/t'rigin and Ms. Peachej': 
t11£d 
Atsislant P,incip?I 
(relire.:J) 
Sled,. Gold Regionll 
Schools 

lt.arcSawon velcernail 

o;sclairr.er: The Information transmitted is intemled only ror the ,uldresne and maJ contain conlidential, proprfoluy .,nd/or p1ivifegeJ material. 
l\nr unauthc.ued re:iew, disllibutlon er ether ute of 01 lhe 1a, ins of a,v action in reliance vccn thi; intormatlcn is prch:bited. If you recet.ee this 

--+----if=.<=~-=~~-..i=-.:.a.d..L! ~t. ... ~-~~~~~L-------------------+-----l 
Good day Mr. /01gemen, 

I li\•e at~~:!ll!l!lll!!B!I on the r.:uamatl Lench, 10 ure ~:o;;-:iHd ce'roncne 101·1-.!1 h ne,a:1, in my Cac\ }'JUI. fl• ;_ ~l m·1 i:oint of-.,;!:.-, 
on the maUer may have some te.-:ring on the oulcc:me. 

I believe I his is an ucellenl location for the lower. The height and comtruclion specificalfons of lhc prepare 1. .tre acceptable 10 me and will no\ 
change my enjoyment of our properly or the suuounding area, no, will the proposed tower after• ny n · ours quality ollifo. l have been a Telu11 
cellphone customer for 25 years, and thh tower will only enhance iny at•home cellphone ser,ice, a r pre.sen! local signal strength is spolty al best. 

In sum, I heartily support this p1oposal. Piute contact me shou'.d you require fullher in 

David 8. Jorgemen M£d 

supp:irl G:io:friarf,1r. Dusel, 

Tn:;;11. )OU le; pro~·i:hn(; U! '!CJ' t::r,·,1ent~ of sup;-:i·t lf(;!'c! nii t~,t p·cp:-1!d TELUS wi•e!es1 ,:c,:nr.-n:n:c,!t•on, fac•'•:r at S::-,Hhu1H P.d l: 
CoUO'\\", :::! t". f!!•v,:~:~ ;:,: 

We 2p~:ernt!: )"Our feedt.2:i ud ,·,ill s~an ~O.J'. coT.mMI! ·,·.-1:h Rt.OS fc-r ,o•u:;!e:at1=n s-,:.:1d1;-,u hne additi~r:I c<J:nmer,ts, ;i:ei1!: fl!;r,:,:i:f 
within th!:l'l!:•.t 2i di!yl 

Ti.,·,n-;Veritb 
Manag~r of Gv;·ernmenl /\Hairs 
Aient lo THUS Communtcatir ·~'--. 

/ 

supr01t 

lhu1l. ycu for protiding u; rou, ccmrr.enh of 1uptcrl rEgndir,g tt;e pro;ic;ed THUS ,·,ire/ess coml"l'un'calions lacift"t' at ~fMlhurtt Rd£, 
Cottonwco~ln, tluamata. SC. 

\·✓e appreciate \"Our feedback and will share }"Our comments \·1ith ROOS for consideration. Should you ha,·e additionJI com men ls, please respond 
wilhinthenut21 days. 

Sincert:tv. 

Tawnyve,igin 
Manager ofGo,·ernment Allain 
/\gent lo TELUS Commun:Callons Inc. 

2:i'•Jun 

n-Jun 

non•suppo/1 Iii Chad & T;,\•,nv, 

I hea,d ffcm MlrJ.. SJbourin who will be in touch with l""U abut the p1op::ac:f ce:l lowe, lccalion in Haramaia. lte is n!lt oppo1ed to a lo\·,er being 
in that area, but is concerned i! the d1i'l:ng/digging do.-,n for lhe lo;·.-e, bHe m3y imput his ne.-, well and water now. lie li,·es al 39Jl Cotlonwood 
lane. conlacl 250 495-519! Of mjubourin11@oullo.,~. corn. lie is !Uiit'J\ing ii cou!d (;O a Ii Ille bit lull her up the hill. JuH wanted to let \"OU l.r,o,v 
he hu some conccms and will be in touch, 

Than .. )'OU, 

KaflaKouk.evich 
ROOS Chai,/ Director Area E Na,amata 

Karla -I spole with Mar>. and agree to v,ao. his properly in the future to help a11e•,•iale some or his v,ell waler cone ems. lhal said, his well ove, 
300m cway and not really downslope of our lower. The foundation put in would be a similu foolpfint to a single family home and will be fen 
disturbance then the twinning of lhe pipeline lhal will be laking place dos" to his prope1ly and along lhe entire ridie, There is really no possib!e 
impact here, I v:itl conlinue to deal wilh him though. 

Chad 

June 22/21 
Ma1c- thanks for writing in and the few phone calls we >Je h~d rega,ding the p,oject and ,·our well. I ha,·e h!d a chance 10 discuss the found.llion 
du!gn with TELUS !nd its likely a typical slab foundation lhal would not be mo,e than 3m deep. lhis is ralher shal!ow and less lntrusi·,e than the 
new pipeline lh!l is going in. That said, TELUS has been building towers for decades in an around wells and well water. There have not been any 
issuel as I heir foundations typically amount to something al.in to a typical residential home foundation. 

10-Jun 
22·/un 



BCBS7 6 

r/1mr of Rt1ldrnt Em1il, l1t1rr, Commtnt Shtet or D1lt 
VolnM111111t 

Comm1tnt or Qunlion Support/ non- Ruponu lo Comm1nl or Quullon 
support/ 
n1utul 

D1t1RuponuS1nl 

David Paisley comment sheel 16-Jun l. Do you feel lhls is an appropriate: location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? U not, what changes would you suggest? 
x res 
ONo 
Comments: 

3. Additional Commenh: 

support Good day Mr.Paisley, 

Than!; you fo1 providing us you, comments of support 1ega1ding the proposed TELUS wireless communications facility at Smethuut Rd & 
Cottonwood ln, Naramata, BC. 

We appreciate your feedback and will share your comments with ROOS for consideration. Should you have additional comments, please respond 
within the m~xt 21 days. 

Sincerely, 

Tawny Veligin 
Manager of Government Affairs 

22-Jun 

MargK email lHunHello• 

Attn: Ms. Tawny VERIGIN 

Re: tower proposal near Smeihurst & Cottonwood lane, Naramata BC (U8CBS76) 

We own property located at • which ls west of the l:.VR rail trail 

I have read the 8-pages sen! from• Cypress Land se-vkes "via Canada Post to our permane-nt address 

QUESTION 1. 
I cannot figure out in which EXACT are-as this tcwer is supposed lo IMPROVE Telus service for mobile cellular customers (and customers of those 
companies who renl service from Telus on same tower) 

lb. How much imp,ovement will there be:7 (I don t l::now how one measures• service • In tech terms) 

QUESTION 2. - how do towers such as proposed help, hinder, or harm wildlife? 

QUESTION 3. • how do the tower owners conlfibute bacl:: to the communit'I In which their towers are situaled • either on public or privale land? I thinl:: 
we agree that human infrastructure ctuuer is nothing nice to look at or be near so if !he tower is supposed to help servrc e in Summerland · then maybe 
the neighbourhoods o·,er In that community should have tower localed there. 

QUESTION 4. 
Is lhere a reason Telus cannot rent space off an al,ead'/ ellisting tov1eri' We had g1eat s ervtce bfien'I one time (20:>3) when cell was swilched to a tower 
over on west s!de of lake - bul the slo1y was that apparently Telus didn t went to use- another company s tewer long-term. (That was the- story· I don I 
!;now if correct) 

Thankyouforyourasshtance 

EMAIL - Please keep my email contact on hie for updates 

support Marg. thanks for taking the lime to comment on the project. TELUS has been trying to make Improvements in wlre~ss servic e to Naramata for the 
past several years. They have proposed a few dilferent locations for towers and equipment and there has been a consistent message from the public 
that they would prefer any new infrastructuie to be above the KVR trail. As such, we have proposed this localion about 300m above the trail and on 
the east side of the BC hydro transmission right of way and Fortis gas right of way. The area of lmpro-·1ed service wilt be from about 3km south of the 
village to about 3 km north of the village and all the developed area on within the we stem slope. Some areas will have better servk e than others. 
The service will Improve so that access to making calls will be better, voice quality will be better, service In homes/buildings/cars will be beller and 
data speeds wilt be faster. 

There is no impact to wildlife as the antennas emit ve,y low energy and the footprint of the tower is smalle1 than a typical home. As far as benefit to 
the community, the tower will provide impro,ed services to community members, businesses and visitors to the area. We receive a numbe, of 
service complaints from the area each year. Bolh Rogers and Freedom Mobile (the other two service provide1s) will also be addin& equipment to the 
tower so that another tower Is not required and all users, regardless of service provider, will have Improved servtce. The tower has been located to 
reduce- visual impact b·i setting it far from home-sin the area and locating it behind many mature trees. The backdrop of the mountain will further 
reduce visibility of the tower. 

Currently the area is serviced by towe,s In other communities that are very far away. With the on slot of many more users and Increased usage of 
data by users, SeNice to the areas continues lo decline. This is why a new tower is required he,e. 

If you have olhe, comments please- let us know. 

Regards, 
Chad Marlatt 
Cypress land Sef\l ices • Aj: ents for TELUS Su11e 10S1, ll09 Granville Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 112 

22-Jun 

email 22-Jun Thank you for your detailed reply 

COVERAGE - I understand the norlh - south distances from the village (let us sav the general store on Robinson Ave is the n-s dividing line, correct?) 

I am UNCLEAR on the east• wesl coverage 

Is there a PDF map you can email send 7 

We - for example - have- spotty service from relus mobility. 

3850 Vineyard Lane (Adjacent to KVR (west downhill slope) just north of Smethurst Rd) 

I am also interested In learning how Telus contributes back to the- communities fn which they place Infrastructure like this (I realize this specific tower is 
proposed on pri',ate property)• I would ceflainly support any contribution to Fire/ Paramedic-Rescue/ SAR. 

Thank you 

MargK 

~ 

Marg - I am just following up on this. The coverage east -wesl will be from the tower in the east to the shore of the lake and everything In-between. 
Attached is a map of lhe sel\lice area where red and yellow indicate good seNice (red been the bes! sel\l ice level). Your house-would fall in the red 
lone. That said, there are a lot of trees around the- house that impact service levels but I would ellpect you will ha\·e much improve-d seNice. 

Re-1ards, 
Chad 

19-Jul 



8(6576 

thmt ol Rnhhnl [m1ll, ltltu, Commrnl Shttl 01 O,h 
Voit,Muu,t 

Commtnlo1Quulion Support/ non• n,1pon1t lo Commrnl 01 Qut11ion 
1uppor1/ 
nrulnl 

23-Jun 1. Do }'Ou feel this is ;m i!pprop:iale rcceucn for the proposed fi!cilit{? 

XYes 
o ne 

2. /,a )O:J scfof ed v•ith th~ i!p;iecri!.n:t / dei i;r. o! tbe p:<." .. o;ed la;:il'I)? If not, \·,/,.;t ch1nies \',->-.::d }O:.i 1ui,;eH? 

XYes 
O no 
Co:nments: 

3. Add1lional Comments: 111:s is a greu so!ution to a s1.i;rnl1cmt reception prob!em. This no on1r i!Uc;:ts me but etsc peo;>!t \·ising me or ccnnectors or 

suppo:t Ri!y- th!nb Ior rou, comments of supper I. 23-Jun 

Cfrl'e Ichnscn 

reneue Cu11le cornmenlsheel 

OS•lul 1 have been trying to get on thit meelin& with not lurl-: 

Can someone help me 

I am inleries led In this proposed lower localion 

There are a number on issues wlth this site 

Call me and lell me how lo gel on this meeling call 

Clivetohnton 

------------+----------------------------------------- ---·---·------------------------ ------------------------- 
DS·Ju1 1. oo you feel lt-iis is om apptoptiate location for the p:opo1ed facilitr7 

xves 
Orio 
Comments: 

2. Are you salisfied wilh the appearance/ design of the proposed fi!cility7 If not, what changes would )'OU SUigest7 
XYes 
01:o 
Comments: 

neutral 

supp;;itl 

Clive -1 am foJlo·,:i:,g up on this emau. Can \'CU outline what scur issues ere willl lhe propo~ed 1ile7 

Thanh, 
Chad 

Os.Jul 

Rogers Wiebe comment sheel OS·Jul I. Do ,·ou feel I his is an appropriate loceticn for lhe proposed facilil)·7 
x res 
o ne 
Comments: 

2. A1e you s;Hislied with the appearance/ design of the proposed faci!il,·711 not, \',hJt char ,ges would you Sul5e1t? 
XYes 
orlo 
Commenls: 

suppo,t 

Maureen Pallicla comment sheet 
Redman 

OlMul 1. Do ,·ou feel this it an approptiate local ion for the proposed facilitr? 
x,·es 

ONo 
Comments: 

2. A,e \'OU satisfied with lhe appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 

XYes 
or:o 
Comments: 

support 

Denis Currie comment sheet 08-Ju1 1. Ooyou feel this is an appropriate location for lhe proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you salisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? II not, what changes would you suggesl? 

XYes 
0110 
Comments: 

support 



8(0576 
lhmt ol Rt1!dtnt £m,II, hlltr,Commtnl Shu I 01 Dalt 

Vol¢tMuu,, 
(omm,nl 01 Quullon Support/ non- R,1poni, loCommtnl o, Qu,1tion 

iuppo1t/ 
ntulnl 

o,1,Rt1J1onttStnt 

r crnment sheet 12-Jul 1. O:> \·0..1 feel th's i\ an zpp:opril!le tccettcn fo, the pro;i.ned fatilil\'? 
x res 
o no 

2. Are \O..! nt,!l1~C ,•,;th !hf epceerence / oes·1:n o! toe p:c;>;wej lacii1t{? II 1;~\ \', l.ar ch~fl£t'! v.cu'c \ :J SU£~elt' 
Y.\e5 
01;c, 

Commen'.s: /:o c'lrngs! lets on 1·,ith it! 

uat eetance c<>rnm!ntsheet 

comment she-el 

12-Jul I. oc sco feel this is an app:optil!te Iocetlan for the proposed faca:ty? 
x res 
0140 
Comments: 

2. A1e you utidied wilh the appurance / design of the prcpcsed facilily7 If not, what changes would \'OU sug~ul? 
XYes 
0No 
Comments: 

12·/u! 1. D;, you reer lhis is an ar,p1orria1e kcation fo, the prop::>1ed faci'ily? 
>:Ye; 
o ue 
Ccmmentv; 

2. ,Ve ycu satisfied v,ith the eppeerence / duign of the proposed lacihlr7 If no 1, what char.&es wo~1d you suuest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Commenh: 

support 

supp::irt ---·-------------------+------- 

Pat Marchar.d commentsheel 12-lul 1. Do \'OU reel lhfs is an appropriate location for the proposed raci'.it\'7 
x res 
o ne 
Comments: 

2. Are ;·ou Blisfi'!d with the Appearance/ design of the prOJ:05'd facilitr7 If net, what chan5es wcu'd ;·o~ wggcsi? 
x,·es 
01:0 

Jennife, Coc!.ra!I comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an approp1iale tecetren Jo, th'! rroposed facilitr? 
x ves 
o r~o 
Commenh: 

2. Are you salisliedwith the appea1ance / design of the propo,etf facility? U not, what ch.inges woutd you suigest? 
OYes 

support 

XNo 
Comments: Please painl the tower lo ,educe light reneclion .ind to blend in w/ the local natural landscape and surroundings, Also plnse no lights on 
the tower. The minis11y of transpo,1 does not 1equire lighllng in this loca1ion. 

neulral 

Robert Atkinson comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate localion for th~ prnposed facility? 
XYes 
OUo 
Comments: 

2.1\ie rou satisfied with the appearance/ desi5n of the proposed lacilitr? 11 not, what changes would you n.tl&ul7 
XYes 
Olla 
Comments: 

support 

r.atht)"n Mancell comment sheet 12·Ju1 1. Do rou feel this is an appropriale localion for the proposed lacilily7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with lhe appearance/ desi;:n or lhe proposed facililr? If nol, what changes would you suggesl7 
XYes 
ONO 
CommenlS: 

support 



eCS576 
fl1mr of Rr1!drnl £m1l1,h1trr, Comm,nl Shnl Dr Dile 

Volu·Muu1, 
Commtnl or Qunlion Support/ non· Rr1po,ur toCommrnl or Qu,,llon 

lUpport/ 
ntulral 

D.1hRupon1,S1tnl 

renate Jacl::es comment sheet 12-Jul l. Do you feel !his is an appropriate location for the proposed facility7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility7 If not, what changes VJould you suuest7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Chris Redman comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facilily7 
XYes 
ONo 
Commenls: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility7 tf not, what changes v,ould you suggest7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Carol Robinson comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel lhis is an appropriate location for lhe proposed facility7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility7 If not, what changes v:ould you suigest? 
XYes 
ONo 
Commtnts: 

support 

Stephanie Forsyth comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropride location for !he proposed facility7 
XYes 
ONO 
ccrnrnenn: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed faciliW7 If not, what changes would you suggest? 
XYes 
ONO 
Comments: 

suppott 

Dave Riley commentsheel 12-Jul 1. Do you re et this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
Commen1s: 

2. Are you satisfitd with the appearance/ design of the proposed facilily7 If not, what changes wcutd you suggest7 
XYes 
ONo 
Commenls: 

support 

Ralph Supemann comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the proposed facility? 
x res 
ONo 
Comments: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility7 If not, what changes would you suggest7 
XYes 
ONo 
Comments: 

support 

Julil!Quinlaw comment sheet 12-Jul 1. Do you feel this is an appropriate location for the propOSl!d faciJity7 
XYes 
ONo 
Commenh: 

2. Are you satisfied with the appearance/ dtsign of the proposed facility7 If not, what changes would you suggtst? 
XYes 
ONO 
Comments: 

support 



BC8S7 6 

P/1mt of Rtlldtnl [m1ll, LOtu,Commtnl ShHI or D1tt 
VoktM11n1t 

Commtnl Of Quution Support/ non• R11pon11 lo Commtnl Of Qvullon 
IUpport/ 
ntutnl 

OJtt Ruponu Stnt 

TomO.w.land comment sheet 12-Jul l. Do \"OU feel this ts an appropriate location Ior the proposed facility? 
XYes 
ONo 
CommenH: 

2. Are you salisf1ed with the appearance/ design of the proposed facility? If not, what changes would you suggest? 
x res 
ONO 
Comments: 

support 

non-support 
support 47 

neutral _ 
51 



Lauri Feindell 

Subject: FW: Telus Naramata Proposed Tower Questions 

From: Karla Kozakevich <kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca> 
Sent: June 23, 2021 8:18 AM 
To: JoAnn Peachey <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: RE: Telus Naramata Proposed Tower Questions 

HI Hugh, 

The Telus representative has stated that this tower does not require lighting and the positioning of it will allow It to 
blend with nearby trees. However, I don't have an answer back about the colour of the tower or if it will be designed to 
look like a tree to blend in better. I will be on the Telus information call this evening and hope that these questions will 
be clarified. 

Thank you, 
Karla 

From:> 
Sent: June 18, 2021 2:51 PM 
To: JoAnn Peachey <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca> 
Cc: Karla Kozakevich <kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: RE: Telus Naramata Proposed Tower Questions 
Importance: High 

Hi JoAnne and Karla, 

Great thank you. 
Any information is helpful. 

Your reply does tell me, however, that neither lighting or camouflage have been discussed to date with you or anyone at 
the ROOS as part of this process. 

For reference my opinion on these as both a resident and business operator in Naramata is: 

Lighting: 
.. Lighting on the tower at night will potentially intrude on local residents and tourism businesses enjoyment of 

the evening landscape. 
" So lighting should only be included if required by law and then kept to a minimum. 
0 We recognize that at the proposed height of the tower that aviation safety lighting may be required. 
., Our suggestion is that if lighting is required it be positioned or "blinkered" in a way that planes etc can see it but 

houses and businesses on the ground cannot. 

Camouflage: 
0 I am sure you are familiar with the practice throughout North America of "camouflaging" towers to look like a 

very large tree sticking out above the forest. 

1 



• Doing this makes a significant difference aesthetically to the presence of the tower and given that Naramata is a 
major economic tourism driver and destination for Area E and Penticton this is an important consideration. 

• My knowledge of construction tells me that adding camouflage elements would amount to a small percentage 
of the over-all cost of the tower. 

• In my opinion the ROOS should request this addition to maintain the aesthetics of the Naramata area and its 
tourism economic roots. 

• The argument against this will probably be the additional cost - to which my response is this: 
• Telus is putting in this tower solely to increase its business and profits in the Naramata area and possibly in the 

areas across the lake from Naramata which will also be serviced by this tower. 
• Telus puts out the story constantly that it is doing this to "improve service" to the area - but this is not the full 

truth. Telus is doing this to improve their service coverage in this area. 
• In fact the entire Naramata area has very good cell service from Telus's competitors Rogers. 
• I can attest to this as a Rogers customer for the past 15 years who uses my cell for working from home in 

Naramata, for calls and data when I am visiting clients throughout Naramata, and for calls and real-time 
Strava/Trailforks data when I am hiking and biking in the forests above Naramata. Excellent coverage from 
Rogers everywhere I go. 

• So in reality Telus is putting this tower in to better compete with Rogers and increase Telus' profits from the 
area. 

• Because this is solely a move by Telus to generate more profit from local residents and visiting tourists, it is only 
reasonable that Telus spend a fraction of those profits to provide a more aesthetic presentation of the tower to 
those same residents and tourists that Telus is profiting from. 

Thanks in advance for any info you can send my way, and for keeping the interests and quality of life experience of 
Naramata residents and the local tourism industry as a priority for ROOS Area E planning. 

Yours, 

Hugh McClelland 
Naramata Bench Wineries Association 

From: JoAnn Peachey <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca> 
Sent: Friday, June 18, 2021 8:51 AM 
To: mSubject: RE: Telus Naramata Proposed Tower Questions 

Hi Hugh, 

I have forwarded your questions to the applicant and will be in touch once they reply. 

-.•. N·li'iHUf1·1&U·ll· 

OKANAGAN• 
SIMILKAMEEN 

JoAnn Peachey. Planner I 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A SJ9 
p. 250.490.4384 • tf. 1.877.610.3737. f. 250.492.0063 
jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca • ROOS 
FACEBOOK. YOUTUBE. Sign up for REGIONAL CONNECTIONS 

From: 
Sent: June 17, 2021 3:02 PM 
To: Karla Kozakevich <kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca>; JoAnn Peachey <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca> 

2 



Subject: Telus Naramata Proposed Tower Questions 
Importance: High 

Hi Karla and JoAnn, 

About the proposed Telus cell tower in Naramata: 

Two questions prior to the on line info session. 

1. Has there been any discussion with Telus or their representatives about "camouflaging" the tower as a tree, 
which has been done in other similar settings in North America? 

2. Is there any clarity yet as to what lighting may be required to be on the tower and, if required, where on the 
tower, how bright, and will it be on 24 hours a day? 

Thanks, 

Hugh McClelland 
Naramata Bench Wineries Association 

3 



Lauri Feindell 

Subject: FW: Comment - Naramata Cell Tower Proposal 

Importance: High 

From: Sent: July 9, 202112:49 PM 
To: Planning <planning@rdos.bc.ca> 
Cc: Karla Kozakevich <kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: FW: Comment - Naramata Cell Tower Proposal 
Importance: High 

I am forwarding the message below to whom it may concern now that JoAnne Peachy is no longer an employee at 
ROOS. 
Please advise who is the new person at ROOS responsible for this file. 

Thanks 

Hugh McClelland 

From: 
Sent: Friday, July 9, 202112:28 PM 
To: publicconsultation@cypresslandservices.com 
Cc: 'Karla Kozakevich' <kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca>; 'JoAnn Peachey' <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: Comment - Naramata Cell Tower Proposal 
Importance: High 

To Whom It May Concern: 

On behalf of the Winery businesses operating in the Naramata area whom are members of the Naramata Bench 
Wineries Association (NBWA), the NBWA has the following comments on the Telus proposed cell tower near Smethurst 
Road and Cottonwood Lane in Naramata: 

1. The NBWA agrees that the proposed location is an appropriate location for the proposed facility and tower. 

2. In relation to the appearance/ design of the proposed facility the NBWA makes the following requests in order 
to minimize the proposed tower's negative visual impact for Winery customers, tourists to the area, and local 
residents: 

a. That the proposed tower be painted to minimize light reflection and enable it to visually blend with the 
surrounding environment. 

b. That no lighting be installed on the tower. 

3. The NBWA has no additional comments. 

The NBWA malling address is: #374-113-437 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A Sll 

The NBWA represents Wineries located between Vancouver Avenue in Penticton and Naramata Village. 

1 



 
 

                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 
Page 1 of 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Subdivision)– Electoral Area “A” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the application to the Agricultural Land Commission to permit a 2-lot subdivision 
on a parcel located at 8310 2nd Avenue in Electoral Area “A” (Lot 640, Plan KAP1950, 
District Lot 2450S, SDYD, Except Plan B3527 3705 5125 B7120, Manufactured Home 
Reg.# 34560) not be “authorized” to proceed.  

 

Purpose:  To allow for a 2-lot subdivision        Folio: A-006350.000 

Civic:  8310 2nd Avenue Legal: Lot 640, Plan KAP1950, District Lot 2450S, SDYD 

Zone:  part Agriculture One (AG1) and part Campground Commercial (CT2) 
 

Proposed Development: 
An application has been lodged with the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 21(2) of 
the Agricultural Land Commission Act (the Act) in order to permit a subdivision to occur within the 
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) in Area “A”. 

Specifically, the applicant is seeking the Commission’s approval to “subdivide the portion of the 
property which cannot be farmed due to poor soils, and the slope and elevation of the property which 
is prone to flooding.” 

The applicant has stated that “the intent of the subdivision is to create one additional lot allowing the 
owners to eventually sell the Lariana Cellars winery and vineyard property [and] retire on the newly 
created lot.” The property owners have proposed to “rehabilitate the land to expand the vineyard by 
approximately 1 ha. over land that is presently used for the RV Resort.” 
 
Statutory Requirements:  
Under Section 34(1) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen (RDOS) must “review the application, and … forward to the commission the application 
together with [its] comments and recommendations”, unless Section 25(3) applies wherein the Board 
has the ability to refuse to “authorise” an application. 

Under Section 25(3) of the Act, formal “authorization” by the Regional District Board is only required 
for applications that apply to land that is zoned by bylaw to permit farm use, or requires an 
amendment to an official community plan or a zoning bylaw.   

In this instance, Section 25(3) is seen to apply as the property “is zoned by bylaw to permit [an] 
agricultural or farm use”. 



  

                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 
Page 2 of 7 

 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 4.43 ha in area, situated to the east of 2nd Avenue, immediately 
north of the Canadian/American border and approximately 3km south of the Town of Osoyoos. It is 
understood that the west side of the parcel is comprised of a winery, vineyards and an accessory 
structure, and the east half contains a campground/RV park with amenities and a single family 
dwelling. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by agriculture, with residential 
properties along the lakeshore to the north; immediately south of the subject property lies the 
Canadian-American border. 
 
Background: 
It is unknown when the current boundaries of the subject property were created, while available 
Regional District records indicate that the following building permits have been issued: garage (1993), 
demolition of single family dwelling (2012), winery building (2012), and barrel storage (2013). 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2905, 2021, the subject 
property is designated part Agriculture (AG) and part Commercial Tourist (CT) and is the subject of a 
Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area designation along the eastern side of the property at 
Osoyoos Lake. 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008, the property is currently split zoned 
Agriculture One Zone (AG1) ad Campground Commercial Zone (CT2). The AG1 zone requires a 
minimum parcel size of 4.0 ha. The CT2 zone requires a minimum parcel size of 2.0 ha. 

Under Section 8.0 (Floodplain Regulations) of the Zoning Bylaw, the subject property is within the 
floodplain associated with Osoyoos Lake. 

The subject property is entirely within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and the applicant 
previously made an application to the ALC in 2019 to exclude the 2.3 ha campground portion of this 
property from the ALR for the purpose of creating a separate lot. 

This proposal was refused by the Commission on the basis that “the vineyard and winery, and the 
campground and RV resort are a viable operation as one unit and a future landowner may benefit 
from the diversified use on Property as the Applicants and their family have before them.” 

BC Assessment has classified the property as part “Residential” (Class 01), part “Light Industry” (Class 
05) and part “Business and Other” (Class 06). 

At its meeting of July 22, 2021, the Regional District Board resolved to defer consideration of this 
Subdivision application and further directed that it be referred to the Electoral Area “A” Advisory 
Planning Commission (APC). 
 
Public Process: 

At its meeting of August 9, 2021, the Electoral Area “A” APC recommended to the Board that this 
Subdivision application be authorized to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 

 
 



  

                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 
Page 3 of 7 

Attachments:  
No. 1 – Context Maps 
No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 
No. 3 – Current Zoning 
No. 4 – Site Photo 

Analysis: 
The Area “A” OCP Bylaw generally seeks to prevent the fragmentation of agricultural land and only 
supports the subdivision of such lands where it will “enhance agricultural viability.” 

In this instance, the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) has previously concluded that the existing 
vineyard and Campground/RV resort work well as one unit and suggest that future landowners may 
benefit from the diversified use on the property. In addition, the improvements being proposed to 
allow for the expansion of the vineyard are unrelated to subdivision, and subdivision will not result in 
enhanced agricultural viability. 

It is feasible that subdivision will create a new, non-agricultural parcel in the ALR that does not meet 
minimum parcel size requirements for a campground use, will comprise a 160 metre frontage to 
Osoyoos Lake and is potentially serviceable by the sewer line connecting the Osoyoos Border 
Crossing. Should the campground be deemed no longer viable in future due to its reduced size and/or 
commercial assessment rates, this is likely to create pressure for conversion to other uses, such as 
residential. The subject property is not within a growth area under the RGS Bylaw. 

Similarly, the proposed 3.2 ha remainder parcel will not meet minimum parcel size requirements for 
the creation of new agricultural parcels, while the current area under cultivation is only approximately 
1.8 ha (NOTE: that part of the campground use to be retained in this remainder parcel would enjoy 
non-conforming use rights under the Local Government Act and the Regional District could not 
compel its conversion to vineyard). 

This proposal would seem to create a de facto “homesite severance” parcel for a property owner that 
does not otherwise qualify for such a subdivision. 

The proposed subdivision would allow for the campground business to develop separately from the 
agricultural use of the remainder parcel and allow the current property owners to retire on a section 
of the property that the applicant has suggested comprises sub-standard soils for agricultural use. 

In summary, this proposal is seen to be inconsistent with the requirements in the Electoral Area “A” 
OCP and Zoning Bylaws. 
 
Alternatives:  
THAT the RDOS Board “authorize” the application to subdivide the parcel located at 8310 2nd Avenue 
to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

_____________________ _________________  
Fiona Titley, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
   



  

                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 
Page 4 of 7 

NN

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps  
   

OSOYOOS 

Subject 
Property 

CANADA/USA BORDER 

NN



 

 
                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 

Page 7 of 7 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

 

  



 

 
                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 

Page 7 of 7 

Attachment No. 3 – Current Zoning 

    
 

 

AG1 ZONE CT2 ZONE 



 

 
                                                         File No: A2021.013-ALC 

Page 7 of 7 

 Attachment No. 4 – Site Photos 

 

      



 
 

                                                         File No: F2017.026-DVP 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Development Variance Permit Application — Electoral Area “F” 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP, being an application to construct 
an over height garage in the front parcel line setback at 1135 Jonathon Drive in West Bench”, be 
denied. 

 

Legal:  Lot C, Plan KAP43732, District Lot 5145, ODYD  

Folio:  F-07465.120 Zone: West Bench Small Holdings (SH6) 

Variance  To vary the front parcel line setback from 9.0 metres to 3.37 metres; and 
Requests:  to vary the maximum height for an accessory structure (garage) from 4.5 metres to 7.26 metres.  
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a number variances in order to facilitate the construction of a garage that 
can accommodate a lifted roof handicap vehicle. 

Specifically, it is being proposed to vary the following zoning regulations for an accessory building or 
structure: 

• reduce the minimum front parcel line setback from 9.0 metres to 3.37 metres; and 

• increase the maximum height from 4.5 metres to 7.26 metres. 

In support of this request, the applicant has stated that “ the requested variance will only minimally 
be outside of bylaw requirements as it is a garage addition that will match the look of the house.” 

They have further advised that the proposed garage is to accommodate a lifted roof handicap vehicle 
so that it does not have to be stored outside in the winter for wheelchair access as the applicants 
have indicated that the vehicle would not fit in a standard height garage. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is situated in a cul-de-sac at the end of Jonathon Drive and is approximately 
2089 m2. The property currently contains a single family dwelling with an attached garage  

Surrounding land uses are predominantly Penticton Indian Band land to the North and West and 
Administration and Open Space and West Bench Small Holdings properties to the East and South. 
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property date to a plan of subdivision that was deposited with 
the Land Title Office in Kamloops on September 26, 1990. Available Regional District records indicate 



 

 File No: F2021.026-DVP 
Page 2 of 5 

that building permits have previously been issued for a single family dwelling (1991), a house addition 
(n.d.) and a garage addition (2002).  

Under the Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2790,2018, the property is 
Small Holdings (SH), and is subject to a Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area.  A RAPR 
exemption letter signed and sealed by Karen Grainger, RPBio was provided which states that “there is 
no watercourse or riparian feature 'upstream' of West Bench Drive or within 30m of 1135 Jonathon 
Drive.” 

Under the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2781, 2017, the property is zoned West Bench Small 
Holdings (SH6), which lists accessory buildings and structures as a permitted acessory use.  

BC Assessment has classified the property as Residential (Class 01), and does not possess a 
geotechnical hazard rating as it is outside the study area of the Klohn Leonoff Report. 

At its meeting on July 8, 2021, The Regional District Board resolved to defer the application to the 
Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Comission (APC).  
 
Public Process:  
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
being accepted up until one (1) week prior to the Board’s regular meeting at which the application is 
to be considered.  All comments received are included as a separate item on the Board’s Agenda. 

At its meeting of July 26, 2021, the Electoral Area “F” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) resolved to 
recommend to the RDOS Board that the subject application be approved. 
 
Analysis: 

Setbacks 

The purpose of minimum setbacks as set out in the Zoning Bylaw, is to provide a physical separation 
between the road and a building to manage traffic and pedestrian safety, maintain an attractive 
streetscape, mitigate overshadowing or loss of privacy of neighbouring properties, encourage open 
and landscaped areas along roadways, and contain development impacts on the property. 

Further, minimum setbacks from parcel lines are used to maintain a minimum space between houses 
in a residential neighbourhood to allow access to sunlight, to provide separation for fire safety or to 
mitigate nuisances (like noise) that might come from an adjacent building. 

Additionally, allowing for the development of accessory structures within a front setback is 
considered to represent poor streetscape design and is generally not representative of other 
development found on Jonathon Drive. 

In this instance, Administration notes that there are no other accessory structures sited within the 
front setback on this cul-de-sac. Similarly, there are also no over-height as significantly as the one 
proposed. 

The proposed garage will adversely impact the streetscape of this neighbourhood and, given its height 
(discussed below), may impact the views of adjacent properties. 

 

 



 

 File No: F2021.026-DVP 
Page 3 of 5 

Building Height 

Regulating the height of accessory structures through the Zoning Bylaw is done to ensure that a 
building does not impact the shade and outdoor privacy of adjacent properties, or views to significant 
landmarks, water bodies or other natural features. 

Building height is also an important component of the built form of a neighbourhood and, depending 
upon the location of an accessory structure (i.e. near a street frontage) an excessive height can have 
an impact upon established streetscape characteristics. 
The intent of the lesser height allowance for accessory structures is to ensure they remain 
subordinate to the principle residential (dwelling) use and don’t become used for other, un-related 
purposes not permitted by zoning (i.e. home industry). 

The requested height variance represents a significant increase of more than 60% over what is 
currently permitted (i.e. 7.26 metres vs. 4.5 metres) and its close proximity to Jonathan Drive will 
make it a prominent feature on the property and the streetscape. 

The outdoor storage of over-sized vehicles is a concern in the West Bench, the development of over-
sized accessory structures is an equally important concern that was expressed during the public 
consultation undertaken in support of the new Official Community Plan Bylaw. 

There is also a concern that large accessory buildings, like the one proposed, may be converted to an 
accessory dwelling or for living/sleeping facilities (bedroom) in the future or for a home industry use, 
both of which are not permitted in the SH6 Zone. 
 
Alternative: 

1. That the Board approve Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP. 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by:   
 
______________ ________________  
Fiona Titley, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

  No. 2 – Aerial Photo 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 File No: F2021.026-DVP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 
  



 

 File No: F2021.026-DVP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 2 – Aerial Photo 
 

 
 
 

Subject Area 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA – APPROXIMATE) 



Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP 
Page 1 of 5 

Development  
Variance Permit 

 

 
FILE NO.: F2021.026-DVP 

 
 
 
 
   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit that 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, the 
drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, and 
‘C’, and applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described below, and 
any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Lot C, Plan KAP43732, District Lot 5145, ODYD  

Civic Address: 1135 Jonathon Drive 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 016-439-856               Folio: F-07465.120 
  

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following variances 
to the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2781,2017, in the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen: 

a) the minimum front parcel line setback for an accessory building in the West Bench Small 
Holdings (SH6) Zone, as prescribed in Section 10.9.6(b)(i), is varied:  

i) from:  9.0 metres 

to:  3.37 metres to the outermost projection as shown on Schedule ‘B’. 



Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP 
Page 2 of 5 

b) the maximum height for an accessory building in the West Bench Small Holdings (SH6) 
Zone, as prescribed in Section 10.9.7(b), is varied:  

i) from:  4.5 metres 

to:  7.26 metres, as shown on Schedule ‘C’. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

7. Not Applicable 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable 

 
EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the terms of 
the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any construction with 
respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after the date it was issued, 
the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new development 
permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP 
Page 3 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  F2021.026-DVP 
Schedule ‘A’ 

 

 
 

NN
PENTICTON 

Subject 
Parcel 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026-DVP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  F2021.026-DVP 
Schedule ‘B’ 

  

 

3.37 metres 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. F2021.026–DVP 
 Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variace Permit File No. F2021.026-DVP 
Schedule ‘C’ 

 

 

7.26 metres 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


SaStassSEXSsssSSss'!! Feedback Form
•^DO^

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
OKANAGAN- 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planningQrdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: F2021.026-DVP

FROM: Name: Eva Durance
(please print)

Street Address: •- Jonathan Dr. Penticton, BC V2A 8Z6

RE: Development Variance Permit (DVP) Application

1135 Jonathan Drive, Electoral Area "F"

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed variances at 1135 Jonathan Drive

II I do support the proposed variances at 1135 Jonathan Drive, subject to the comments listed

below.

xx[_] I do not support the proposed variances at 1135 Jonathan Drive.

All written submissions will be considered by the Regional District Board

1. The proposed variances are both significarrLchangesJo the current standards of setback and

height of accessory buildings. As well, the property is on a small cul-de-sac and the existing

buildings , driveway, and boat parking already cover a large part of the land. The erection of

the proposed garage would mean that almost the whole of the visible land is 'hardscaped', a

serious detraction from the look of this semi-rural residential area.

2. The house already has two garages, the main one of which is under the top storey and with

direct connection to the house. The van for the wheelchairfits into the existing main garage.

The plan for another, much larger, garage does not show any such direct house connection so

the argument that it is needed so that a wheelchair and occupant can be put in and taken out

of the van in the garage doesn't make sense.

3. Since the current van for carrying the wheelchair and occupant (their daughter I believe) fits

into the current garage, I cannot see a need for one7.26 mjllgh and the dimensions shown in

the plans. The need is for one person, not a number of disabled people and sympathetic as I

am for mv neighbours, I cannot support such a drastic, and very likely unnecessary, change to

the neighbourhood.

4. Besides the permanent negative change to the view and whole look of the area for the other

properties on the cul-de-sac, the disruption from the construction would be massive. The

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BCV2A5J9, 250-492-0237.



constryction of a similar-sized sarage two properties north of me from last February to early

June was serious enough , but that was nothing compared to what this would be for

everyone along the west end of Jonathan Dr. and especially those of us living on the cul-de-

sac.

5. I trust that the Board will turn down this^ variance a&plication and building plan as being

inappropriate for the location. As an aside, I wonder whether the owners, who I know and

like, have considered that such an addition to their house might lower, not increase, its value.

That would be an unfortunate unforeseen consequence.

Feedback Forms must be be submitted to the RDOS office prior to the Board meeting upon which this DVP
application is considered.

All representations will be made public when they are included in the Board Agenda.



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Project No: F2021.026-DVP

From: James and Tammy Reid

Sent: Wednesday, July 7, 2021 3:15 PM
To: Fiona Titley <ftitley@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Project No: F2021.026-DVP

TO: Regional District ofOkanaganSimilkameen FILE NO.: F2021.026-DVP

FROM: Name: James and Tammy Reid

Street Address: 1140 Jonathan drive

RE: Development Variance Permit (DVP). Application 1135 Jonathan Drive, Electoral Area "F"

My comments / concerns are: I do not support the proposed variances at 1135 Jonathan Drive

We feel that the addition of this garage to this property is far too big and close to the road, which couid

potentially cause safety concerns as there are children, horseback riders and bike riders etc. that use this cul

de sac. We feel it does not fit in with the comuntity appearance.

james and tammy



Project No. X2021.004-SSB 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer

DATE: August 19, 2021 

RE: Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 On-site 
Sewage Disposal System Requirements 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 
2000.13, 2021, being an amendment to revise onsite sewage disposal system requirements, be 
read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 

Purpose: 
The purpose of Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13, 2021, is to amend the Regional District’s Subdivision 
Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, in order to establish requirements for on-site sewage disposal. 

Background: 
Under Section 506(1) (Subdivision servicing requirements) of the Local Government Act, the Regional 
District may, by bylaw, require that a sewer disposal system be provided as part of the subdivision of 
a parcel of land and be located and constructed in accordance with the standards established in the 
bylaw. 

At its meeting of September 19, 2002, the Board adopted the Regional District of Okanagan‐
Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, which set out, amongst other things, the 
Regional District’s requirements for the provision of onsite sewage disposal (i.e. septic systems). 

Sewerage System Regulation: 

On May 31, 2005, the provincial government introduced a new Sewerage System Regulation under 
the Public Health Act, which ushered in a fundamental shift in how septic systems are designed and 
installed.  The Regulation transferred this authority from Health Authorities to “Authorized Persons” 
(e.g. Registered Onsite Wastewater Practitioner) and is illustrative of an approach known as the 
“Professional Reliance” model. 

Consequently, the design, installation, repair and maintenance of onsite wastewater systems must be 
performed by an “Authorized Person” and, as of 2005, Health Authorities no longer issue permits for 
sewerage system construction and simply administer the filing of septic system documentation 
prepared by a Registered Onsite Wastewater Practitioner (ROWP). 

At its meeting of September 6, 2007, the Board adopted Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.03, 2007, in 
response to the enactment of the Sewerage System Regulation and removed all of the prescriptive 



 

Project No. X2021.004-SSB 
Page 2 of 4 

requirements for on-site sewage systems (i.e. minimum rates and areas required for percolation 
tests) from Schedule “A” of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw. 

Schedule “B” (Required Levels of Works & Service) of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw has, however, 
continued to require that on-site sewage disposal (i.e. “septic systems”) be provided on parcels 
greater than 1.0 ha in area. 

Subdivision Report Criteria for Authorized Persons (IHA): 

The Interior Health Authority (IHA) responds to referrals from the provincial Approving Officer on the 
suitability of onsite sewage disposal for proposed subdivisions and requires that reports demonstrate 
that there is suitable onsite sewerage dispersal areas for each proposed lot. 

It is understood that this review is generally restricted to parcels (new and remainder) that are less 
than 2.0 ha in area.  For parcels greater than 2.0 ha in area IHA does not require a report from a 
qualified professional.  

Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw No. 927, 1986: 

At its meeting of February 19, 1987, the Board adopted Bylaw No. 927, 1986, being “a bylaw to 
provide for holding tanks in Electoral Area ‘A’ only”.  Specifically, the bylaw allows for the use of a 
holding tank when: 
• a community sewer system is not available; and 
• a sewage disposal permit cannot be obtained due a malfunctioning of an existing septic tank 

system. 

It is understood that this was enacted to address the failure of septic tank systems on properties 
adjacent to Osoyoos Lake and has largely been rendered redundant following the completion of the 
Northwest Sewer Extension in 2009-10. 

The Interior Health Authority (IHA) currently advises that “a holding tank is not considered a 
sustainable method for sewage management but can be considered as a temporary measure or in 
situations where other systems would result in a health hazard.” 

By inference, the use of holding tanks is seen to be prohibited in all other Electoral Areas due to Bylaw 
No. 927 making no further accommodations beyond Electoral Area “A”. 

Board Consideration: 

At its meeting of May 6, 2021, the Planning and Development (P&D) Committee of the Regional 
District Board resolved that Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13 be initiated. 
 
Analysis:  
The current requirements of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw for on-site sewage disposal systems 
present a challenge to the successful administration of the bylaw.   

At issue is Schedule “B”, which establishes that an on-site sewage disposal system is a requirement for 
any new parcel greater than 1.0 ha in area.  Conversely, the remainder of the bylaw provides no 
guidance on how an applicant and/or property owner undertaking a subdivision that is to be provided 
with an on-site sewage disposal system can demonstrate compliance with this requirement. 

As a result, the on-site sewage disposal system requirements of Schedule “B” have generally fallen 
into disuse since 2007.   



 

Project No. X2021.004-SSB 
Page 3 of 4 

To address this, it is proposed that a basic set of requirements be introduced into the Subdivision 
Servicing Bylaw. 

This includes confirming that, where a parcel is not required to be served by a community sewer 
system under Schedule “B” (Levels of Service) of the bylaw (i.e. on parcels greater than 1.0 ha), it shall 
be served by an individual on-site sewage disposal system and that such a system must be located on 
the parcel that it is to serve. 

There would also appear to be merit in clarifying, through the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw, that use of 
holding tanks is prohibited, and that this be extended to Electoral Area “A” through the repeal of 
Bylaw No. 927, 1986.   

The repeal of Bylaw No. 927, 1986, and the incorporation of a prohibition against holding tanks in the 
Subdivision Servicing Bylaw would require Board consideration of any future holding tank proposal 
through a development variance permit (DVP) process. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT prior to first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13, 2021, the bylaw be amended to incorporate the following: 

i) TBD. 

.2 THAT first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13, 2021, be denied; 

AND THAT the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw 
No. 927, 1986, not be repealed. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
_________________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 - Schedule “B” (Levels of Service) of Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 

No. 2 – RDOS Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw No. 927, 1986 
 
 
  



 

Project No. X2021.004-SSB 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 - Schedule “B” (Levels of Service) of Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13, 2021 
(X2021.004-SSB) 

  Page 1 of 1 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2000.13 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2000.13, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13, 2021.” 

2. The “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 
2002” is amended by: 

i) replacing section 4.2.9 (On Site Sewage Disposal) under Section 4.0 (Sanitary Sewers) 
of Schedule “A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Standard Drawings) in its entirety 
with the following: 

4.2.9 On-Site Sewage Disposal 

a) where a parcel is not required to be served by a community sewer 
system under Schedule “B” (Levels of Service), it shall be served by an 
individual on-site sewage disposal system. 

b) an on-site sewage disposal system must be located on the parcel it will 
service. 

c) holding tanks are not permitted as a method of on-site sewage disposal. 

3. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw No. 
927, 1986”, is repealed. 

 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN

BYLAW N0.927

A bylaw to provide for holding tanks in Electoral Area 'A only.

WHEREAS the Regional Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen
desires to regulate the issuance of holding tank permits within Electoral

Area 'A' of the Regional District;

AND WHEREAS the approval of the Ministry of Health has been obtained;

NOW THEREFORE the Regional Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen in open meeting assembled ENACTS as follows:

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Regional District of
Okanagan-Similkameen Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw No. 927 ,1986"

2. INTERPRETATION

For the purposes of this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires,

the following words, terms and expressions shall have the meanings

hereinafter assigned to them:

Board means the Regional Board of the Regional District
of Okanagan-Similkameen.

"Community means a system of sewage disposal which serves two

Sewer System (2) or more lots and which is owned, operated, and

maintained by an Improvement District under the

Water Act or the Municipal Act, and amendments thereto;

a Municipality, a Regional District, or an Agency of
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada or her
Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province of British
Columbia.

"Holding means a tank designed to store sewage on a parcel of

tank" land for a period of time before the sewage is

transported to an approved disposal site or community

sewer system located elsewhere.

Off-site means off of the parcel on which sewage is generated.

"On-site" means on the parcel on which sewage is generated.

"Parcel" means any lot, block, or other area in which land

is held or into which land is subdivided or any
remaining portion of the land being subdivided.

"Regional means the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen.

District"

"Sewage means the Sewage Disposal Regulations, B.C. Reg. 411/85

Disposal made pursuant to the Health Act and amendments

Regulations" thereto.

Zoning means a bylaw governing the use of land adopted by

Bylaw" the Regional District pursuant to the Municipal Act,
and amendments thereto.

All other words shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Sewage
Disposal Regulations.

. .2



2 -

3. BASIC PROVISIONS

(a) Application:

( i) This bylaw shall apply to only those developed
properties within Electoral Area 'A' of the

Regional District where a community sewer system

is not available and a sewage disposal permit

cannot be obtained due to a malfunctioning of an

existing septic tank system.

( ii) This bylaw does not apply where the estimated
minimum daily sewage flows for the intended use

exceed 22,730.5 litres per day (5,000 Imperial
Gallons per day).

(b) Administration:

( i) The Chief Building Inspector or such other person
appointed by the Regional Board shall administer
this bylaw.

( ii) Persons appointed under Section 3.(b)(i)
this bylaw may enter upon the properties being
developed for sewage disposal purposes, at any

reasonable time, for the purposes of administering

or enforcing this bylaw.

(c) Prohibitions and Procedure:

( i) No person shall locate, establish or construct

a holding tank sewage disposal system on any

property in contravention of this bylaw.

( ii) No person shall commence the construction, installation,

alteration or repair of a holding tank or part thereof

until a permit in the prescribed form has been obtained

from the Public Health Inspector.

(iii) The application for a holding tank sewage disposal
permit shall be made by the owner or his agent in
the prescribed form and shall be accompanied by plans
and specifications of the proposed holding tank. The
plans and specifications shall be approved by the

person appointed pursuant to Section 3.(b)(i) of this
bylaw, who may require that they be prepared and
certified by a professional engineer specializing in

sewage disposal systems.

( iv) No person shall do any work that is at variance with
the descriptions, plans, and specifications for the

holding tank for which a permit has been issued,

unless such change has been approved by the person

appointed pursuant to Section 3. (b)(i) of this bylaw.

( v) No person shall interfere with or obstruct the entry

of the person appointed pursuant to Section 3.(b)(i)
of this bylaw acting in the conduct of administration
and enforcement of this bylaw.

..3



(d) Penalties:

Any person guilty of any infraction of this bylaw (and for
the purposes hereof every infraction shall be deemed to be

a continuing, new and separate offence for each day during

which the same shall continue) shall, upon conviction of

such infraction or infractions before the Courts having

jurisdiction within the Regional District on the oath or
affirmation of such authority, pay a fine not less than

the sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor more than the
sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each day or
part thereof for which any such infraction shall be continued,

together with the cost for each such offence. In default of

payment it shall be lawful for such Courts to commit the

offender to the common jail or any lock-up house for a period

not exceeding two calendar months unless the said fine or

penalty cost be paid. Nothing herein contained shall prevent

the Regional District from taking such other lawful action as

is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

(e) Remedial Powers:

( i) The Board may, in accordance with the provisions of
the Municipal Act, authorize the demolition, the
removal, or the bringing up to standard of any holding
tank, in whole or in part, that is in contravention of

this bylaw.

( ii) The Regional District by its workmen or others may also
undertake the pumping of sewage from holding tanks
constructed pursuant to this bylaw that are maintained

in such a manner as to create an insanitary condition

as determined by the Public Health Inspector. All
necessary and incidental expenses connected with

correcting the insanitary condition shall be charged
to the owner of the real property, and if unpaid on

the 31st day of December in any year, shall be added
to and form part of the taxes payable in respect of

that real property as taxes in arrears.

(f) Severability:

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of

this bylaw is for any reason held to be invalid by the
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
bylaw.

4. REGULATIONS

(a) On-Site:

( i) Subject to the provisions of Section 3. of this bylaw,
one (1) on-site holding tank shall be permitted per
parcel.

( ii) The estimated minimum daily sewage flows of Appendix 1
of the Sewage Disposal Regulations shall apply.

(iii) The on-site holding tank shall be designed with a reserve
capacity equal to three (3) times the estimated minimum
daily sewage flows.

( iv) An approved electronic warning device shall be installed

to provide the owner with an advanced warning of the

need to pump out the holding tank.

..4



4 -

( v) On-site holding tanks shall be sited in accordance
with the Sewage Disposal Regulations.

( vi) All on-site holding tanks shall be designed,
constructed, and approved in accordance with

the terms and conditions of the permit.

(b) Off-Site:

( i) An approved off-site disposal system shall be
provided for each holding tank. To ensure perpetual

use of the approved site a registered easement may

be required.

( ii) Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 4.(b)(i)

of this bylaw, holding tank sewage may be discharged
to a community sewer system subject to the approval

of the authority having jurisdiction to accept the
•/'discharge in perpetuity.

(iii) The off-site disposal system shall be accessible year
round.

( iv) Off-site disposal systems shall be designed, constructed
and approved in accordance with applicable provincial

regulations.

( v) All off-site disposal systems shall be designed,
constructed, and approved in accordance with the

requirements of this bylaw.

5. This bylaw may be cited as "Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen

Holding Tank Sewage Disposal Bylaw No. 927, 1986".

READ A FIRST TIME this 20
READ A SECOND TIME this 20
READ A THIRD TIME this 20

day
day
day

of
of
of

November

November

November

1986.
1986.
1986.

Certified a true copy of Bylaw No.927 at third reading.

1986. Q^^^>.

Dated at Penticton, B.C.

this .27 day of Aw^mJl^i^.

Secretary
Ji^itL

RECEIVED THE APPROVAL of the Minister of Health this 4 day of

February > 1-W f 1987.

RECONSIDERED, PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 19 day of February
l^W/ 1987.

^ '^7-7^L^
Chairman

-Q-
3^

-/</<--yTj^ D .J^wptJi
Secretary

-L
H.M. Richards
Provincial Health Officer



 

Project No. X2021.003-SSB 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 

Documentation requirements for confirming a water service 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021, being an amendment of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw to clarify 
the requirements for confirming a source of water has been provided for new parcels, be read a 
first, second and third time and be adopted.  

 

Purpose: 
The purpose of Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021, is to amend the Regional District’s Subdivision 
Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, in order to establish documentation requirements for confirming that 
a proposed subdivision is in compliance with water service levels. 
 
Background: 
Under Section 506(1) (Subdivision servicing requirements) of the Local Government Act, the Regional 
District may, by bylaw, require that a water distribution system be provided as part of the subdivision 
of a parcel of land and be located and constructed in accordance with the standards established in the 
bylaw. 

At its meeting of September 19, 2002, the Board adopted the Regional District of Okanagan‐
Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, which sets out, amongst other things, the 
Regional District’s requirements for the provision of a proven water system (i.e. well) or connection to 
a community water supply. 

These requirements include all parcels to be created by subdivision either being connected to a 
community water system, or being provided with a proof of water (i.e. groundwater well) from a 
source capable of generating at least 2,300 litres per day of potable water (i.e. drinking water) having 
a flow capacity of at least 20 litres per minute for one hour. 

At its meeting of June 19, 2003, the Board adopted Amendment Bylaw No. 2189, 2003, which deleted 
a requirement that a property owner subdividing their parcel of land submit confirmation from a 
qualified professional that a proposed water source met the Regional District’s requirements for 
water quality (i.e. potability). 

At its meeting of May 6, 2021, the Planning and Development (P&D) Committee of the Regional 
District Board resolved that Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14 be initiated. 
 
Analysis:  
As a result of the 2003 amendments to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw, the requirement that a 
potable source of water be proven at the time of subdivision has effectively been relegated as a 



 

Project No. X2021.003-SSB 
Page 2 of 2 

consideration by the Regional District at subdivision.  This is due to the inability of the Regional 
District to confirm this requirement in the absence of a report submitted by a qualified professional. 

The Bylaw is also silent on what documentation the Regional District requires in order to confirm that 
the water source to be provided to a new parcel meets the applicable requirements.  This leads to 
confusion and a potential lack of consistency by the Regional District when dealing with property 
owners seeking sign-off on their subdivision. 

The re-establishment of the requirement for written confirmation to be provided in relation to the 
water source provided to new parcels (quality and quantity) would save both the applicant and the 
Regional District time in processing our response to the Subdivision Approving Officer.   

A report from a qualified professional confirming the potability of water for parcels to be served by a 
well, or written confirmation from the operator of a community water system that capacity exists to 
connect the proposed parcels and all applicable fees have been paid. 

The Regional District has a had a long-standing requirement for water potability to be proven at 
subdivision.  The proposed amendment would clarify what documentation a property owner is to 
provide in order to achieve compliance with the bylaw and would generally align with the approach 
applied by other regional districts. 

The proposed documentation requirements would be the most effective way to ensure compliance 
with the bylaw and that the Board’s objectives for water quantity and quality are being met. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT prior to first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021, the bylaw be amended to incorporate the following: 

i) TBD. 

.2 THAT first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021, be denied. 

 

Respectfully submitted:  
 
_________________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 



 
 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021 
(X2021.004-SSB) 

  Page 1 of 3 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2000.14 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2000.14, 2021 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021.” 

 
2. The “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 

2002” is amended by: 

i) replacing the definition of “Professional Engineer” under Section 1.2 (Definitions) of 
Schedule “A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Standard Drawings) in its entirety 
with the following: 

“PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER” means a person who is registered or duly licensed in 
British Columbia under the provisions of the Professional Governance Act. 

 
ii) replacing sub-section 3.1 (Introduction) under Section 3.0 (Water Supply) of Schedule 

“A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Standard Drawings) in its entirety with the 
following: 

3.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

.1 All new parcels to be created by subdivision must be provided with 
sufficient quantities of potable water by: 

a) proving availability of sufficient quantities of potable water from a 
private water source; or 

b) connecting to a community water system. 
 

.2 where it is proposed to provide a private water source, the following shall 
be submitted to the Regional District: 



 
 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021 
(X2021.004-SSB) 

  Page 2 of 3 

a) a report certified by a Professional Engineer which includes: 

i) a site plan indicating the location and GPS coordinates of each 
proposed well; 

ii) a well log or pump test completed within the previous 12 
months; and 

iii) analysis and assessment of the pumping test data including 
professional assurance as to whether the subject well meets the 
requirements of this bylaw. 

 
.3 where it is proposed to connect to an existing community water system, 

the following shall be submitted to the Regional District: 

a) a letter from the owner of the community water system confirming 
that all of the proposed parcels can be connected to the community 
water system and that all fees have been paid for connection(s) to 
the community water system; and 

b) a current Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) 
where the community water system is operated by a private utility. 

 
iii) replacing sub-section 3.2.10 (Private Water Source) under Section 3.0 (Water Supply) 

of Schedule “A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Standard Drawings) in its entirety 
with the following: 

3.2.10 Private Water Source 

Compliance with the following regulations at the time of subdivision 
approval does not warrant or guarantee the continuing quality or quantity 
of water on a parcel over time: 

.1 All wells to be used as a private water source must be designed, 
located, constructed, tested and disinfected in accordance with the 
provincial Ground Water Protection Regulation under the Water Act. 

.2 All wells must be capable of delivering potable water from a source 
capable of: 

i) providing at least 2,300 litres per day; and 

ii) a flow capacity of at least 20.0 litres per minute for one hour. 

.3 All wells must be drilled to a depth of not less than 15 meters, be 
constructed in a way to prevent surface water from entering the well 
and meet the minimum construction standards contained in the 
provincial Groundwater Protection Regulation 299/2004. 

.4 A well must be constructed on each parcel of a proposed subdivision 
that is dependent upon groundwater as a source of water. 



 
 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14, 2021 
(X2021.004-SSB) 

  Page 3 of 3 

.5 A well is restricted to supplying water to the parcel on which it is to be 
located. 

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



 

Project No. X2021.006-SSB 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   Proposed Amendment to the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 for 

Documentation requirements for confirming a sewage disposal system 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021, being a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen to amend the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw to clarify the requirements for 
confirming a connection to sewage disposal for new parcels, be read a first, second and 
third time and be adopted. 

 
 
Background: 
Under Section 506(1) (Subdivision servicing requirements) of the Local Government Act, the Regional 
District may, by bylaw, require that a sewer system be provided as part of the subdivision of a parcel 
of land and be located and constructed in accordance with the standards established in the bylaw. 

At its meeting of September 19, 2002, the Board adopted the Regional District of Okanagan‐
Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002, which sets out, amongst other things, the 
Regional District’s requirements for the provision of a sewage disposal system. 

Despite containing detailed design standards for community sewer systems, the Subdivision Servicing 
Bylaw does not currently provide direction to property owners regarding the documentation required 
by the Regional District to confirm compliance with these bylaw standards. 

At its meeting of May 6, 2021, the Planning and Development (P&D) Committee of the Regional 
District Board resolved that Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15 be initiated. 
 
Analysis:  
Lack of documentation standards can create confusion for property owners seeking to obtain 
confirmation from the Regional District on compliance of their subdivision with the requirements of 
the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw, and for Regional District staff advising on what level of 
documentation is required to satisfy the bylaw. 

To address this, it would be beneficial to introduce a standard set of documentation requirements 
into the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw.  This would include written confirmation from the operator of a 
sewer system being provided to the Regional District that capacity exists within the system to 
accommodate the subdivision and that all applicable fees to connect to the system have been 
received. 

When it is proposed to construct a new community sewer system, the proposed operator of the 
system would provide written confirmation to the Regional District that it has been constructed to 
provincial standards.  If the Regional District is to assume ownership of the system upon completion, 



 

Project No. X2021.006-SSB 
Page 2 of 2 

that it consent to the design, and that the Regional District may request that excess capacity be 
designed into the system in order to allow for its expansion to additional lands in future. 

With regard to on-site sewage disposal systems, it is being proposed that written confirmation from 
the local authority having jurisdiction stating that their requirements with regard to onsite sewage 
disposal have been satisfied on all parcels less than 2.0 ha in area.  For parcels greater than 2.0 ha in 
area, no confirmation would be required. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT prior to first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021, the bylaw be amended to incorporate the following: 

i) TBD. 

.2 THAT first reading of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021, be denied. 

 

Respectfully submitted:  
 
_________________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 
 



 
 

Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021 
(X2021.005-SSB) 

  Page 1 of 2 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2000.15 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2000.15, 2021 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 2002 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  
Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021.” 

 
2. The “Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Subdivision Servicing Bylaw No. 2000, 

2002” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 4.1 (Introduction) under Section 4.0 (Sanitary Sewers) of 
Schedule “A” (Design Criteria, Specifications and Standard Drawings) in its entirety 
with the following: 

4.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

.1 All new parcels to be created by subdivision must be provided with 
sufficient disposal of on-site sewage by: 

a) an individual on-site sewage disposal system; or 

b) connecting to a community sewer system. 

.2 where a parcel is less than 2.0 ha in area and is to be served by an 
individual on-site sewage disposal system, the following shall be 
submitted to the Regional District: 

a) written confirmation from the authority having jurisdiction stating 
that their requirements with regard to onsite sewage disposal have 
been satisfied. 

.3 where it is proposed to connect to an existing community sewer system, 
the following shall be submitted to the Regional District: 



 
 

Subdivision Servicing Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15, 2021 
(X2021.005-SSB) 

  Page 2 of 2 

a) a letter from the owner of the community sewer system confirming 
that: 

i) all of the proposed parcels can be connected to the community 
sewer system; and 

ii) all fees have been paid for connection(s) to the community sewer 
system. 

.4 where it is proposed to construct a new community sewer system, 
conditions for approval shall include: 

a) Each community sewer system shall be designed and constructed to 
the standards prescribed by the Environmental Management Act and 
the Public Health Act and regulations pursuant to those Acts; or 
where standards are not provided, in accordance with standards 
generally accepted as good engineering practice; 

b) Where a community sewer system is to be acquired by the Regional 
District, the design of such shall be submitted to the Regional District 
for approval prior to the commencement of construction as required 
by this Bylaw; 

c) Where a community sewer system is to be installed, and before 
confirmation of compliance with the requirements of this section is 
provided by the Regional District to the provincial Approving Officer, 
the community sewer system shall be: 

i) installed by the property owner or by the authority having 
jurisdiction at the property owner’s expense and be approved by 
the authority having jurisdiction; or  

ii) the subject of a Works and Servicing Agreement entered into by 
the property owner and the Regional District in which the 
required works and services will be installed by the property 
owner at their expense. 

d) The Regional District may request of the provincial Approving Officer 
that part of a sewage collection system have greater capacity than is 
needed to serve the proposed subdivision. The cost of providing 
excess capacity shall be paid for pursuant to Section 508 (Latecomer 
charges and cost recovery for excess or extended services) of the 
Local Government Act. 

 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



 

 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: August 19, 2021 
  
RE:                                   2021 Schedule of Special Meetings 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Fall Schedule of Special Meetings be approved as presented. 

• Thursday November 4, 2021 – Legislative Workshop / Inaugural Meeting (full day) 
• Friday November 12, 2021 –Budget Committee Meeting #1 (full day) 
• Friday November 19, 2021 –Budget Committee Meeting #2 (full day) 
• Wednesday November 24, 2021 – Strategic Planning (evening only) with Gordon McIntosh 
• Thursday November 25, 2021 – Strategic Planning (full day) with Gordon McIntosh 

 
Purpose: 
To establish a schedule of special meetings for 2021 in accordance with relevant legislation and the 
RDOS Procedure Bylaw. 
 
Reference: 
Local Government Act 
RDOS Procedure Bylaw 
 
Analysis: 
Generally, the Board follows a schedule of convening meetings on the first and third Thursday of 
each month; although, there are additional meetings that take place towards the end of each year 
with a focus on preparing for the upcoming year.  These meetings include a business meeting, 
strategic planning and budget planning. 
 
Administration has been in contact with the Corporate office of each municipality to share the 
proposed additional meeting dates noted above, to ensure there are no conflicts in scheduling  
 
Strategic Planning for a local government’s final year can look a lot different than the first three 
years of the term, and administration has procured the services of Local Government consultant, 
Dr. Gordon McIntosh to lead the strategic planning process.  Dr. McIntosh will focus on walking the 
Board through determining what issues or matters the Board would like to be working on, 
completing or starting, as it moves through the final year of the term.   



 

 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Dr. McIntosh has 40 years of local government management, educator, and consultancy 
experience.  He provides governance, strategic and leadership services and has conducted 1,300 
workshops involving 140,000 people on local government related topics.   
 
The special meeting schedule listed above allows for two full budget workshop days.  Any additional 
budget discussions required will be incorporated into regular Board meeting days. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden” 

  
_C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  

 
 


	Schedule of Meetings
	Planning and Development Committee
	B. F2021.011-ZONE Report - Faulder Zone Review
	B.1. F2021.011-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2790.03)
	B.2. F2021.011-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2461.19)

	C. X2021.007-SSB PD Report - Street Lighting
	D. Mobile Homes Regulations in the Electoral Area Zoning Bylaws - Administrative Response

	ProtectiveServices
	B. Report Q2_RDOS

	CorporateServices
	B. City of Penticton Administration Response Final

	Environment
	C. SOCF Terms of Reference
	C.1. SOCF Terms of Reference Edits_August_2021_ 2222


	OSRHD Board
	B. 20210722MINOSRHD
	C. 101-437 Martin Street Designation
	C.1. IHA - Request to Designate Martin St. UPCC (DG Comments)


	RDOS Board
	A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A.1.a. 20210712APC A MIN-Minutes-edited
	A.1.b. 20210712 APC E MIN-Minutes
	A.1.c. 20210726 APC F MIN-Minutes
	A.1.d. 20210420 APC H MIN-Minutes
	A.1.e. CON 20210720 MIN Kaleden P R Minutes
	A.1.f. 20210722MINCorporateServices
	A.1.g. 20210805MINCorporateServices
	A.1.h. 20210805MINEnvironment
	A.1.i. 20210805MINProtectiveServices
	A.1.j. 20210805MINBD
	A.1.k. 20210714 Area D Service Boundary Minutes
	A.1.l. Area G OCP Citizen's Committee Appointments
	A.2.a. E2021.028-DVP Report - DurmanX
	A.2.a.i. E2021.028-DVP (Permit - Durman)

	A.2.b. D2021.030-DVP Report - White
	A.2.b.i. D2021.030-DVP (Permit - White)

	A.2.c. A2021.016-TUP Report - Burk
	A.2.c.i. A2021.016-TUP (Permit - Burk)
	A.2.c.ii. A2021.016-TUP Representations - Burk(1)

	A.2.d. H2021.003-DVP Report - May
	A.2.d.i. H2021.003-DVP (Permit - May)

	A.2.e. E2021.018-TUP Report Currie-Schaeffer
	A.2.e.i. E2021.018-TUP (Permit - Currie-Schaeffer)
	A.2.e.ii. E2021.018-TUP (Representations - Currie-Schaeffer)


	B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters
	B.1. CoP Referral - 955 Timmins Street
	B.2. CoP Referral - 877 Westminster Avenue West
	B.3. E2021.001- Telus-1100125 Alberta Inc
	B.3.a. 2021.001-CL (Representations - Telus)

	B.4. A2021.013-ALC Report - Scott
	B.5. F2021.026-DVP Report - Artymowicz
	B.5.a. F2021.026-DVP (Permit - Artymowicz)
	B.5.b. F2021.026-DVP Artymowicz Representations

	B.6. X2021.004-SSB  Report - 1st2nd3rdAdopt - Onsite Septic Requirements 2
	B.6.a. Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.13 (2021-08-19)
	B.6.b. X2021.004-SSB (Report Attachment No. 2)

	B.7. X2021.005-SSB Report - 1st2nd3rdAdopt - Confirmation of WaterX
	B.7.a. X2021.005-SSB (Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.14)

	B.8. X2021.006-SSB Report - 1st2nd3rdAdopt - Confirmation of Community Sewer
	B.8.a. X2021.006-SSB (Amendment Bylaw No. 2000.15)


	C. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
	C.1. 2021 Special Meetings

	D. CAO REPORTS
	E. OTHER BUSINESS
	F. ADJOURNMENT




